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MR. BROOKS: Back on the record. At t h i s time, we 

c a l l Case No. 14186, A p p l i c a t i o n of the New Mexico O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n f o r an Order against McElvain O i l and Gas 

P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , San Juan County, New Mexico. 

C a l l f o r appearances. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Mi k a l Altomare on b e h a l f of the O i l 

Conservation D i v i s i o n . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Michael Feldewert w i t h the Santa Fe 

o f f i c e o f Holland and Hart on be h a l f of the respondent, 

McElvain O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I n c . , and w i t h me i s Mr. Kip 

Joda, who i s general counsel f o r the company. 

MR. BROOKS: How many witnesses? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I a n t i c i p a t e c a l l i n g t h ree of the f o u r 

l i s t e d on my pre-h e a r i n g statement, p o s s i b l y c a l l i n g the 

f o u r t h . I w i l l be c a l l i n g K e l l y Roberts, Brandon Powell and 

C h a r l i e P e r r i n and p o s s i b l y c a l l i n g Daniel Sanchez. 

MR. FELDEWERT: And I have three witnesses, 

Mr. Examiner. 

MR. BROOKS: How long do you a n t i c i p a t e your cases 

w i l l take? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I honestly don't know. I t ' s going t o 

depend a l a r g e p a r t on cross-examination. I would a n t i c i p a t e 

t h a t probably about an hour t o an hour-and-a-half f o r d i r e c t 

p r e s e n t a t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 
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MR. FELDEWERT: I t h i n k we are s i m i l a r . I f I was a 

b e t t i n g man, I would guess i t ' s going t o take t h r e e or fo u r 

hours. 

MR. BROOKS: For your p r e s e n t a t i o n o n l y or f o r both? 

MR. FELDEWERT: For both. I'm s o r r y , f o r t o t a l . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. I f we took f o u r hours, we'd be 

6:15 and probably even a l i t t l e l a t e r . Because of the t i m i n g , 

I don't t h i n k we can r e a l l y a f f o r d t o devote more time t o i t . 

So I t h i n k we're going t o have t o l i m i t everybody t o not more 

than two hours f o r your p r e s e n t a t i o n , and t h a t would i n c l u d e 

both your d i r e c t and your cross. 

MR. FELDEWERT: This i s s t a r t i n g t o sound f a m i l i a r . 

MR. EZEANYIM: I f I may -- i f I may. I f you guys 

don't want t o have t h i s case today, we might send i t o f f docket 

so t h a t you can have a l l the time i n the world, i f you want t o 

do t h a t . Because I see t h i s case going a f t e r 7:00, the way you 

guys -- and I'm not a proponent of not g i v i n g you due process, 

you know. I t w i l l be u n t i l 7 o'clock, I t h i n k , 7 o'clock, 

t r u s t me. 

So i f I may suggest we might move t h i s t o o f f docket 

and we would be w i l l i n g t o do t h a t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I would s t r e n u o u s l y o b j e c t t o t h a t , 

w i t h a l l due respect. We have worked very hard t o make t h i s 

case ready t o go today. We've p u l l e d f o u r i n d i v i d u a l s out of 

the f i e l d o f f i c e and brought i n d i v i d u a l s out o f town, and I 
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t h i n k i n some cases even from f u r t h e r than t h a t . 

And I would r e a l l y o b j e c t t o postponing t h i s any 

f u r t h e r . I t h i n k we should a t l e a s t give i t a go. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I n t h a t case, we w i l l l i m i t your time, 

Let's get i t going. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Very good. I w i l l keep t r a c k o f 

the time l i m i t s here. S t a r t i n g a t 2:20, Ms. Altomare, do you 

want t o use any of your time on an opening statement? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Just very b r i e f l y . I t h i n k the 

pre-hearing statement and the a p p l i c a t i o n l a r g e l y speak f o r 

themselves. 

I would l i k e t o d i r e c t the Hearing Examiner's 

a t t e n t i o n t o the f a c t t h a t , although t h e r e may appear a t f i r s t 

b lush t o be sev e r a l issues i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case, what t h i s 

case i s not about i s -- i t i s not about what the new P i t Rule 

i s about versus what the o l d P i t Rule i s about. I t i s not 

about what our D i v i s i o n has made a v a i l a b l e t o operators at 

la r g e i n the State w i t h regard t o i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50 as 

i t was a p p l i e d . 

What i t i s about i s , s p e c i f i c a l l y , t h a t McElvain O i l 

and Gas P r o p e r t i e s had s p e c i f i c , very w e l l a r t i c u l a t e d and 

repeated n o t i c e o f what Rule 50 was and what the D i v i s i o n ' s 

p o l i c y was f o r c a l c u l a t i n g the t i m e l i n e f o r p i t c l o s u r e , and 

about what t h e i r options were f o r r e q u e s t i n g an extension f o r 

t h a t time p e r i o d . And de s p i t e having t h a t very s p e c i f i c 
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n o t i c e , chose t o d i s r e g a r d i t and knowing and w i l l f u l l y and i n 

v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50, and proceeded t o a l l o w those w e l l s t o 

remain open i n excess of t h a t six-month p e r i o d of time. 

I would ask t h a t , as we proceed w i t h the p r e s e n t a t i o n 

of evidence, t h a t the Hearing Examiners keep t h a t i n mind 

des p i t e what might be presented here today. A l o t of the 

evidence i s l i k e l y t o be not d i r e c t l y r e l a t e d t o t h a t core 

issue, which i s the issue of whether or not they knowingly and 

w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d Rule 50 by l e a v i n g these p a r t i c u l a r two p i t s 

open beyond the six-month date. 

The r e s t of i t , I t h i n k , w i l l speak f o r i t s e l f . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, I i n v i t e you t o take 

the notebook, please, and t u r n t o E x h i b i t No. 4, which i s a 

time l i n e a ssociated w i t h the Wiedemer w e l l s . So i n the white 

notebook, I have an E x h i b i t 4. 

And we're t a l k i n g about p i t s at two w e l l s here, and I 

don't b e l i e v e there's going t o be any di s p u t e about t h i s time 

l i n e . And what i t shows i s t h a t we have -- th e r e were l i n e d 

p i t s at two of these w e l l s , and these p i t s were u t i l i z e d d u r i n g 

the completion process. And i t ' s undisputed, Mr. Examiners, 

t h a t these p i t s were closed w i t h i n s i x months and when 

McElvain's use of these p i t s ceased. There's no disp u t e about 

t h a t . 

They were completed on A p r i l 6. They were closed by 
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September 25th, 2007. What i s a t issue here i s t h e i r 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50. I f you keep your thumb on t h i s and 

t u r n t o E x h i b i t 1, I have Rule 50 which i s the P i t Rule t h a t 

was i n existence a t the time of t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n was 

issued and the one i n which they s p e c i f i c a l l y r e l y upon. 

And i t says, "A p i t or below-grade tank s h a l l be 

p r o p e r l y closed w i t h i n s i x months of ce s s a t i o n of use. Two 

p o i n t s here: I t says "a p i t . " I t doesn't d i f f e r e n t i a t e 

between types of p i t s ; i t says "a p i t . " 

The second t h i n g i t says i n t h i s p u b l i s h e d r u l e i s 

t h a t they are t o be closed w i t h i n s i x months of cess a t i o n of 

use. McElvain d i d e x a c t l y t h a t . They closed these p i t s w i t h i n 

s i x months of the time t h a t they ceased usin g t h i s p i t . 

There are g u i d e l i n e s t h a t were issued i n connection 

w i t h t h i s P i t Rule. I f you look a t the g u i d e l i n e s , the 

g u i d e l i n e s say one t h i n g w i t h respect t o the time: That the 

p i t s h a l l be closed w i t h i n s i x months of ce s s a t i o n of use. 

McElvain d i d t h a t . 

What we have here, as f a r as I can t e l l , i s a 

circumstance where the D i v i s i o n i s suggesting t h a t t here i s 

some s p e c i a l r u l e f o r McElvain and t h a t McElvain had an 

o b l i g a t i o n t o close t h i s p i t w i t h i n s i x months, not of 

cessation of use, but when a casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented. 

Now, I i n v i t e you t o f i n d any p u b l i s h e d d e f i n i t i o n of 

cessation of use, any published g u i d e l i n e , or any pub l i s h e d 
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r u l e t h a t says t h a t a d r i l l i n g p i t i s t o be closed w i t h i n s i x 

months of when a casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented. And the 

reason t h a t ' s important here -- and I guess t h a t ' s why we're 

here -- i f you go back t o t h i s time l i n e , t h a t ' s the only 

reason they generated a f i n e , because the p r o d u c t i o n casing 

s t r i n g on each of these w e l l s was set and cemented, i n one case 

on February 5 t h , 2007, and on the other case on January 27, 

2007. These p i t s were closed by September 25th, 2007. 

So i f they can go back and use when the casing s t r i n g 

was set and cemented, they say, "Well, you're one month too 

l a t e . Therefore we're going t o issue a Notice of V i o l a t i o n 

saying i t ' s knowing and w i l l f u l , and we're going t o issue --

and seeking here a $5,000 f i n e . " That's what t h i s case i s a l l 

about. 

MR. BROOKS: I t seems l i k e i t would be two months i f 

you go from January 27th t o September 25th. 

MR. FELDEWERT: When the p i t s were closed, yes. We 

got the Notice of V i o l a t i o n -- I ' d have t o -- January 8th --

okay, two months. So t h a t ' s why we're here. They are r e l y i n g 

upon an unpublished, undisclosed, i n t e r n a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

cessa t i o n of use, and there i s not a s i n g l e p u b l i c a t i o n by the 

D i v i s i o n t h a t was provided t o operators t h a t supports t h a t 

d e f i n i t i o n . 

So the f i r s t q u estion i s : Has t h e r e been a v i o l a t i o n 

of Rule 50 as w r i t t e n ? I submit t o you the r e has not. 
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Second qu e s t i o n -- more i m p o r t a n t l y f o r purposes of a 

f i n e : Has the r e been a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n of Rule 

50? And t h a t r e q u i r e s , as you look here on E x h i b i t 1 -- and 

I ' l l use t h e i r own d e f i n i t i o n t h a t they have i n t h e i r 

r e g u l a t i o n s -- t h a t r e q u i r e s a showing by the D i v i s i o n . I t 

uses words l i k e c r i m i n a l i n t e n t , c r i m i n a l or e v i l i n t e n t , t o 

v i o l a t e the r u l e , s p e c i f i c i n d i f f e r e n c e or re c k l e s s d i s r e g a r d 

f o r t h a t six-month p e r i o d under the r u l e . 

But you have an honest mistake or mere inadvertence. 

You don't have a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n , and you don't 

have grounds f o r a p e n a l t y . So as you l i s t e n t o the evidence 

here today, I want you t o glean, as I'm going t o t r y t o glean, 

whether there's been any p u b l i c a t i o n of t h i s unique d e f i n i t i o n 

of c e s s a t i o n of use, whether i t makes any sense when you look 

at the language of t h i s r u l e . And then, i n a d d i t i o n , was 

McElvain i n t h i s case s u b j e c t t o a d e t e r m i n a t i o n t h a t they had 

some c r i m i n a l or e v i l i n t e n t t o v i o l a t e Rule 50? 

I t doesn't e x i s t . That's why we're here. That's why 

we have fought t h i s a l l the way t o t h i s h e a r i n g . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Very good. Ms. Altomare, you 

have 1 hour, 58 minutes l e f t . You may continue. 

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s time, I ' d l i k e t o c a l l my 

f i r s t w i t ness, K e l l y Roberts. 

We need t o have our witnesses sworn, Mr. Hearing 

Examiner. 
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MR. BROOKS: Okay. Would a l l the witnesses please 

stand and be sworn? Please s t a t e your names. 

[Witness sworn.] 

MR. PERRIN: C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 

MR. POWELL: Brandon Powell. 

MR. ROBERTS: K e l l y Roberts. 

MR. STEUBLE: John Steuble. 

MR. MERRICK: A r t M e r r i c k . 

MR. BRATCHER: Mike Bratcher. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you, Mr. Hearing Examiner. 

KELLY ROBERTS 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Can you please s t a t e your name and t i t l e f o r the 

record, please? 

A. My name i s K e l l y Roberts, and I'm a S t a f f 

Manager I I f o r the Aztec o f f i c e of the OCD. 

Q. Okay. And t h a t i s D i v i s i o n I I I ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And a t the time t h a t t h i s i n i t i a l i n s p e c t i o n o f 

these w e l l s was conducted, what was your p o s i t i o n ? 

A. I was a f i e l d compliance o f f i c e r . 

Q. As a compliance o f f i c e r , what were your general 
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d u t i e s ? 

A. My general d u t i e s were w e l l i n s p e c t i o n s . 

Q. Okay. And i n the course of conducting a normal 

day of w e l l i n s p e c t i o n s , how d i d you go about conducting 

i n s p e c t i o n s on any given day? 

A. I f I d i d n ' t have a s p e c i f i c assignment from my 

super v i s o r , then I would choose a general geographic area and 

go out and conduct i n s p e c t i o n s on w e l l s i n t h a t area. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the operator known as 

McElvain O i l and Gas Propertie s ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And s p e c i f i c a l l y , are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the w e l l s 

i n v o l v e d i n t h i s matter, the Wiedemer #7 and #6? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Did you on a p a r t i c u l a r day conduct a r o u t i n e 

i n s p e c t i o n of the Wiedemer #6 and #7? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And can you describe f o r the Hearing Examiners 

your i n s p e c t i o n -- how you came t o i n s p e c t those w e l l s a t t h a t 

time? 

A. On September 11th, I was i n the Angel Peak area 

doing w e l l i n s p e c t i o n s and came across the McElvain 

Wiedemer #6. I found on t h a t l o c a t i o n an open d r i l l i n g p i t . 

The l i n e r was i n t a c t , the f e n c i n g was i n t a c t , and e v e r y t h i n g 

seemed t o be okay w i t h t h a t p i t . I continued t o conduct my 
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i n s p e c t i o n s t h a t day and came across the Wiedemer #7 and noted 

on t h a t l o c a t i o n an open d r i l l i n g p i t w i t h s e v e r a l r i p s and 

te a r s i n the l i n e r . 

MR. BROOKS: What day i s t h i s ? 

THE WITNESS: This i s September 11th, 2007. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I t h i n k i t ' s on the time l i n e , 

E x h i b i t 4. 

THE WITNESS: At the #7, a f t e r I noted the tea r s and 

r i p s i n the l i n e r , I took s e v e r a l photos of t h a t p i t , and I 

contacted Karen Sharp, who i s the compliance o f f i c e r i n our 

o f f i c e and asked her about the cl o s u r e deadline f o r those p i t s . 

And she i n d i c a t e d t h a t both the Wiedemer #7 and #6 were beyond 

t h e i r c l o s u r e date. I then r e t u r n e d t o the #6 and took photos 

of t h a t p i t as w e l l . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Upon r e t u r n i n g t o the o f f i c e , 

what d i d you do w i t h the i n f o r m a t i o n you had obtained on the 

Weidemer #6 and #7? 

A. I presented my photos and the i n f o r m a t i o n on the 

we l l s t o Brandon Powell, our f i e l d environmental s p e c i a l i s t . 

Q. And i s t h a t the t y p i c a l procedure i n the 

D i s t r i c t I I I o f f i c e f o r h a n d l i n g suspected v i o l a t i o n s ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h OCD Rule 50 as i t was 

p r e v i o u s l y designated regarding p i t closures? 

A. Yes, I am. 
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Q. And what are the requirements f o r p i t c l o s u r e s , 

according t o Rule 50? 

A. That p i t s be closed w i t h i n s i x months of 

ces s a t i o n of use. 

Q. And how were you t r a i n e d t o c a l c u l a t e the 

six-month p e r i o d a f t e r c e s s a t i o n of use, f o r purposes of 

Rule 50? 

A. I n my t h r e e years w i t h OCD, we have always used 

the date t h a t they set and cemented t h e i r casing. 

Q. Have you ever known anyone else i n the D i v i s i o n 

t o use any other method f o r c a l c u l a t i n g t h a t six-month time 

period? 

MR. EZEANYIM: Let me understand: "The day you set 

the cement." Could you say t h a t again? 

THE WITNESS: The date t h a t they set and cemented the 

l a s t casing s t r i n g i n the w e l l . 

MR. EZEANYIM: That's the date t h a t t h e y ' r e making 

use of t h a t w e l l? 

THE WITNESS: We begin at t h a t date, and s i x months 

a f t e r t h a t i s the deadline f o r closure of the p i t . 

MR. EZEANYIM: Let me understand. You d r i l l a w e l l , 

set cement, t r y i n g t o produce: That's where when you s t a r t 

c o u n t i n g . I s t h a t what you are saying? 

THE WITNESS: That was -- i n our d i s t r i c t o f f i c e , 

t h a t ' s the d e t e r m i n a t i o n f o r cessation of use on a d r i l l i n g 
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p i t -

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n , i t ' s 

a c t u a l l y a D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And r a t i o n a l e f o r t h a t i s t h a t t h a t ' s when the 

d r i l l i n g process has stopped; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l being i n v o l v e d i n a previou s 

compliance enforcement a c t i o n w i t h McElvain on t h e i r Amacker #1 

s i t e ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Can you e x p l a i n what involvement you had i n t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r matter? 

A. On A p r i l 20th, 2007, I conducted an i n s p e c t i o n at 

the Amacker #1 w e l l s i t e . I n o t i c e d an open p i t t h a t had 

f l u i d s t h a t were overtopping the l i n e r i n the p i t . I again 

took s e v e r a l photos of the l o c a t i o n and the p i t and brought 

those photos back t o the o f f i c e f o r review by our environmental 

s p e c i a l i s t , Brandon Powell. 

MR. BROOKS: How do you s p e l l the name of t h a t w e l l ? 

THE WITNESS: A-m-a-c-k-e-r. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): At t h i s time, I ' d l i k e t o 

d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t B i n your packet i n f r o n t o f 
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you. Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s document f o r the re c o r d , please? 

A. This i s the Notice of V i o l a t i o n f o r the 

Amacker #1 w e l l . 

Q. Okay. And t h i s N otice of V i o l a t i o n was issued on 

May 11, 2007; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. Fo l l o w i n g the issuance of t h i s Notice o f 

V i o l a t i o n r e g a r d i n g the Amacker #1 w e l l , was an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference held? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And were you i n attendance a t t h a t conference? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I was. 

Q. When was t h a t conference conducted? 

A. That conference was conducted May 30th, 2007. 

Q. Okay. I ' d l i k e t o p o i n t you t o E x h i b i t C, i f you 

would. Can you i d e n t i f y t h a t document f o r the record, please? 

A. This i s the s i g n - i n sheet f o r the McElvain 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference. 

Q. The conference t h a t was h e l d on May 30, 2007, 

regarding the Amacker s i t e ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. According t o the e x h i b i t i n f r o n t of you, 

the s i g n - i n sheet, who a l l attended t h a t p a r t i c u l a r conference? 

A. C h a r l i e P e r r i n , myself, A r t Merrick w i t h 

McElvain, and John Steuble w i t h McElvain. 
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Q. Looking t o E x h i b i t D i n your packet, do you 

recognize t h i s document? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And can you i d e n t i f y t h a t f o r the record? 

A. These are my notes from the NOV a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r the Amacker #1 dated 5/30/07. 

Q. Okay. Based on your notes and your r e c o l l e c t i o n 

from t h a t conference, what was discussed at t h a t conference 

w i t h McElvain r e g a r d i n g t h e i r o b l i g a t i o n s under Rule 50? 

A. The di s c u s s i o n t h a t we had concerning overtopping 

of the l i n e r was the e x t r a o r d i n a r y amount of s n o w f a l l t h a t we 

had t h a t year i n January and February and the f a c t t h a t 

McElvain had problems i n February g e t t i n g t r u c k s t o the 

l o c a t i o n . Also discussed were the f a c t t h a t McElvain had 

f o r g o t t e n t o submit a request f o r extension on the p i t , and 

they had planned t o re-complete i t as a Mesaverde w e l l . 

Q. What d i d the f a c t t h a t they mentioned t o you t h a t 

they had f o r g o t t e n t o submit an extension f o r the time p e r i o d 

t o close the p i t -- what does t h a t i n d i c a t e t o you? 

A. To me, t h a t i n d i c a t e s t h a t they were aware of the 

requirements of Rule 50 f o r closure of the p i t . 

Q. For both the deadline and the o p t i o n t o request 

an extension? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Were other p i t s t h a t were i n v i o l a t i o n or nearing 
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v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 f o r c l o s u r e discussed a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

conference? 

A. Yes, ma'am. McElvain s t a t e d t h a t they had done 

an i n t e r n a l review of t h e i r paperwork and would be s u b m i t t i n g 

c l o s u r e extensions f o r other p i t s t h a t were -- f o r s e v e r a l 

other p i t s . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And i n my notes, I show t h a t f i v e t o s i x 

extensions would be f i l e d soon. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t you t o E x h i b i t F. Can you 

i d e n t i f y what t h i s -- t h i s i s a two-page e x h i b i t -- i d e n t i f y 

what these two documents are, please. 

A. This i s an e-mail t h a t was sent by John Steuble 

w i t h McElvain, t o myself, and t o C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 

Q. And the date of t h a t e-mail i s ? 

A. Frida y , June 8th, 2007. 

Q. And what was the purpose of t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

e-mail? 

A. The e-mail was p r o v i d i n g us w i t h a l i s t of the 

p i t s t h a t McElvain had open and were working on e i t h e r f i l i n g 

extensions f o r c l o s u r e or were going t o close. 

Q. And t h a t i s t h a t p a r t i c u l a r l i s t of p i t s i s 

lo c a t e d on the second page of t h a t document? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Can you summarize what you see on t h a t c h a r t on 
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page 2 of E x h i b i t F, please? 

A. I see a l i s t of w e l l names and then a t a b l e t h a t 

shows whether or not the p i t i s open, whether or not the p i t 

has plans t o be closed, whether or not they have plans t o f i l e 

f o r an extension on the w e l l or i f the p i t i s a l r e a d y closed, 

as w e l l as remarks. 

Q. Okay. And what k i n d of remarks are noted on t h i s 

p a r t i c u l a r chart? 

A. The fo u r remarks I see are a l l s t a t i n g t h a t the 

p i t would be closed a f t e r completion. 

Q. For fo u r of the l i s t e d w ells? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Are any of those four l i s t e d w e l l s t h a t are t o be 

closed a f t e r completion e i t h e r of the two Weidemer w e l l s t h a t 

are a t issue i n t h i s case? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Are the two Weidemer w e l l s i n t h i s case l i s t e d 

i n c l u d e d on t h i s l i s t on E x h i b i t F? 

A. Yes, ma'am, they are. 

Q. What are the n o t a t i o n s i n d i c a t e d on the l i s t f o r 

the two wells ? 

A. That the p i t was opened, and they had plans t o 

close i t . 

Q. I s there any i n d i c a t i o n t h a t an extension i s 

planned t o be sought f o r e i t h e r of the two we l l s ? 
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A. No, ma'am. 

Q. The Amacker enforcement a c t i o n u l t i m a t e l y 

r e s u l t e d i n the a p p l i c a t i o n of an Agreed Compliance Order; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t G. 

Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s document f o r the record? 

A. This i s the Agreed Compliance Order entered i n t o 

w i t h McElvain, ACO #196, and t h i s i s f o r the Amacker w e l l . 

Q. And t h a t was t o reso l v e the issues having t o do 

w i t h both the t o r n l i n e r and the f a i l u r e t o t i m e l y close? 

A. No, ma'am. On the Amacker i t was f o r overt o p p i n g 

the l i n e r and f o r f a i l u r e t o close. 

Q. My mistake. Thank you. What enforcement a c t i o n 

d i d you, your s u p e r v i s o r , and Mr. Powell decide t o u l t i m a t e l y 

take w i t h regard t o the two Weidemer wells? 

A. I t was u l t i m a t e l y decided t o issue an NOV, Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t Notice of V i o l a t i o n was issued on 

January 25th, 2008? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And what were the v i o l a t i o n s -- what was the 

v i o l a t i o n t h a t was noted i n t h a t ? 

A. The v i o l a t i o n noted i n t h a t Notice o f V i o l a t i o n 

was f o r t e a r s i n the l i n e r and f o r f a i l u r e t o close w i t h i n s i x 
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months a f t e r c e s s a t i o n of use and f a i l u r e t o submit a request 

f o r an ext e n s i o n . 

Q. Okay. I t h i n k , a c t u a l l y , the d e c i s i o n was made, 

wasn't i t , not t o i n c l u d e the t e a r s i n the l i n e r because t h e r e 

was no f l u i d l e f t i n them? 

A. Yes, ma'am, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Wasn't an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference u l t i m a t e l y 

h e l d t o attempt t o re s o l e the v i o l a t i o n s c i t e d i n t h i s Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And were you i n attendance a t t h a t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. When was t h a t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference 

conducted? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t was February 27, 2008. 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t H. 

Can you i d e n t i f y t h i s document f o r the record? 

A. This i s the s i g n - i n sheet f o r the McElvain O i l 

and Gas a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference conducted February 27, 2008. 

Q. And according t o t h i s document, who was i n 

attendance a t t h a t p a r t i c u l a r conference? 

A. C h a r l i e P e r r i n , Brandon Powell, myself, and A r t 

Mer r i c k w i t h McElvain and John Steuble w i t h McElvain. 

Q. Looking f u r t h e r t o E x h i b i t I , can you i d e n t i f y 

t h i s document f o r the record? 
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A. These are my notes taken a t the McElvain 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference conducted February 27, 2008. 

Q. And based on your notes and your r e c o l l e c t i o n 

from t h a t p a r t i c u l a r conference, what was discussed a t t h a t 

conference r e g a r d i n g Rule 50 and McElvain's v i o l a t i o n of 

Rule 50 w i t h regard t o the Wiedemer p i t s ? 

A. I t was s t a t e d t h a t the operator f e l t t h a t they 

had not l e f t the p i t open beyond the s i x months' cessation of 

use due t o t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of s i x months. 

Q. What was t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of s i x months? 

A. Their i n t e r p r e t a t i o n was t h a t c e s s a t i o n of use 

was a f t e r they had completed the w e l l . 

Q. And based on your i n t e r a c t i o n and your knowledge 

of McElvain's p r a c t i c e s , does t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation 

of use as being s i x months beyond the completion of the w e l l , 

does t h a t seem t o go along w i t h t h e i r general p r a c t i c e f o r 

t i m i n g o f p i t closures? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I t does? For the — 

A. I'm s o r r y . 

Q. Do they tend t o comply w i t h t h e i r own pur p o r t e d 

standard t h a t they are t o close t h e i r p i t s w i t h i n s i x months of 

completing w e l l s ? Do they always close t h e i r p i t s w i t h i n t h a t 

time period? 

A. No, ma'am. 
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Q. Was i t discussed at t h a t second a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference i n February t h a t , at the previous a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference, you had advised them of the D i v i s i o n ' s p o l i c y f o r 

d e f i n i n g the six-month p e r i o d of time? 

A. Yes. I have a s p e c i f i c note i n t h e r e t h a t says, 

"Cessation of use was discussed at the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r the NOV on the Amacker #1 w e l l . " 

Q. Did they p r o v i d e any e x p l a n a t i o n f o r why they d i d 

not close these w e l l s w i t h i n t h a t six-month p e r i o d of time? 

These p i t s , r a t h e r . 

A. They d i d make a statement t h a t they were busy 

c l o s i n g p i t s i n another area. 

Q. Okay. And d i d they a l t e r n a t i v e l y g i v e you any 

ex p l a n a t i o n why they d i d n ' t seek an extension f o r these two 

p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s since they were expending resources on other 

s i t e s ? 

A. No, ma'am, not t h a t I have i n my notes. 

Q. To your knowledge, d i d they seek any k i n d of an 

extension f o r the c l o s u r e of the Wiedemer p i t s ? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. What conclusions have you drawn w i t h regard t o 

McElvain's conduct i n the f a i l u r e t o close the two Wiedemer 

p i t s between the six-month p e r i o d of time a l l o t t e d by Rule 50? 

A. My conclusion i s t h a t McElvain had s p e c i f i c 

knowledge of Rule 50 due t o the f a c t t h a t we had discussed i t 
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w i t h them i n a previous Notice of V i o l a t i o n , and they had 

s p e c i f i c knowledge of our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of c e s s a t i o n of use. 

Q. And based on t h a t , would you say t h a t t h e i r 

v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 w i t h regard t o these two w e l l s was knowing 

and w i l l f u l ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay. I ' l l pass the w i t n e s s . 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert, you have 1 hour and 56 

minutes . 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Roberts, I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t 

what's been marked as McElvain E x h i b i t No. 5. 

A. No. 5. 

Q. I n the white notebook. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Are these the photos t h a t you took on your 

i n s p e c t i o n on September 11th? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. The f i r s t one i s Wiedemer #6 -- or the 

Wiedemer #7; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And the second one i s Wiedemer #6? 

A. The second photo, or the second w e l l s i t e ? 

Q. Second photo. 
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1 A. The second photo --

2 Q. I'm s o r r y . Second w e l l s i t e . 

3 A. Yes . 

4 Q. And these p i t s were the ones t h a t were closed — 

5 and I'm l o o k i n g now on E x h i b i t No. 4 -- these are the p i t s t h a t 

6 were closed September 25th, 2007? 

7 A. E x h i b i t No. 4? 

8 Q. Yes . 

9 A. According t o t h i s , yes, s i r . 

10 Q. Okay. And they were closed w i t h o u t any 

11 remediation r e q u i r e d ; c o r r e c t ? 

12 A. Yes, s i r , I b e l i e v e so. 

13 Q. They posed no t h r e a t t o the environment? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, you have suggested here t h a t 

16 McElvain had s p e c i f i c knowledge of Rule 50, c o r r e c t ? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, they don't di s p u t e they had 

19 s p e c i f i c knowledge of Rule 50. I t h i n k what's a t issue here i s 

20 s p e c i f i c knowledge of the d i s t r i c t ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

21 ces s a t i o n of use. 

22 A. I would agree. 

23 Q. Okay. Would you p o i n t t o me what gave McElvain 

24 s p e c i f i c knowledge of the d i s t r i c t ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

25 ces s a t i o n of use as being when a casing s t r i n g i s set and 
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cemented? 

A. That was i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t was discussed i n the 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference f o r the Amacker #1. 

Q. For the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference f o r the 

Amacker #1? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. So l e t ' s go t o your notes f o r t h a t , 

please. While you're going t h e r e , i s the r e a n y t h i n g else t h a t 

you contend gave them s p e c i f i c n o t i c e of the d i s t r i c t ' s 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t h a t c e s s a t i o n of use means when a casing s t r i n g 

i s set and cemented? 

A. Like I s a i d , i t was j u s t p a r t of our di s c u s s i o n 

i n the Notice of V i o l a t i o n f o r the Amacker #1. 

Q. So you can't p o i n t me t o any other event or 

document t h a t gave them s p e c i f i c , w e l l - a r t i c u l a t e d n o t i c e of 

the d i s t r i c t ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of ces s a t i o n of use? 

A. None t h a t I had personal knowledge o f . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f I go t o your notes here -- w e l l , 

l e t me ask you something: You were a t a conference, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. What's your general r o l e at these conferences? 

A. My general r o l e ? 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. I s t o -- most of the times I w i l l read the Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n t o the operator and help w i t h my d i s t r i c t 
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s u p e r v i s o r and anyone else a t t e n d i n g i n g i v i n g them 

understanding of my p e r s p e c t i v e w h i l e I was i n the f i e l d . 

Q. I s p a r t of your r o l e a l s o t o be the note-taker? 

A. No, s i r . I take notes on my own v o l i t i o n . 

Q. I've looked a t the notes t h a t the D i v i s i o n has 

produced, and I compliment you. I t h i n k you take the most 

d e t a i l e d notes of anyone else t h e r e ; would you agree? 

A. I f e e l I d i d a good j o b . 

Q. Okay. Now, when you take your notes, are you 

being very c a r e f u l t o note e x a c t l y what was s a i d by e i t h e r 

p a r t y ? 

A. I make every attempt. 

Q. And i f I'm understanding how you do i t , you do a 

good j o b of p u t t i n g b u l l e t p o i n t s wherever you t h i n k there's an 

important d i s c l o s u r e ; do you not? 

A. I do. 

Q. Okay. And so i f there's something t h a t ' s 

i mportant i n t h a t d i s c u s s i o n , you make sure t o w r i t e i t down, 

and you put a b u l l e t p o i n t by i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Now, I've gone through your notes here -- t h a t ' s 

on E x h i b i t D. 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Can you p o i n t t o me a s p e c i f i c note or a b u l l e t 

p o i n t t h a t i n d i c a t e s t h a t t he re was a s p e c i f i c , 
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w e l l - a r t i c u l a t e d d i s c u s s i o n of how the d i s t r i c t i n t e r p r e t s 

c e s s a t i o n of use? 

A. I cannot. 

Q. I s the r e a n y t h i n g i n here t o i n d i c a t e t o you on 

these notes t h a t t h i s six-month p e r i o d i n Rule 50 was even 

discussed or was an issue a t t h i s conference? 

A. Just my own personal reminder i n the b u l l e t where 

I s t a t e , "Forgot t o submit request f o r exte n s i o n on p i t . " That 

was p a r t of our con v e r s a t i o n t h a t suggested t o me t h a t McElvain 

d i d know the requirements f o r f i l i n g f o r an extension --

Q. Okay. 

A. -- and f a i l e d t o do so. 

Q. Now, would i t be f a i r t o say t h a t t h a t would 

i n d i c a t e t o you t h a t they were aware t h a t t h e r e was a six-month 

period? 

A. No, s i r . That i n d i c a t e s t o me t h a t they were 

aware of the requirements f o r f i l i n g f o r an extensi o n . 

Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t . Would i t i n d i c a t e t o you t h a t 

they were aware t h a t t h e r e was a six-month p e r i o d t h a t 

commenced t o s t a r t whenever the casing s t r i n g was set and 

cemented? 

A. Not w i t h t h a t note, no. 

Q. Okay. I n f a c t , by the time you had t h i s 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference, indeed, when you issued your Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n f o r the Amacker w e l l , t h a t w e l l s i t e had been long 
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abandoned by F r o n t i e r . 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. We were -- a t the time you issued your Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n , i f my time l i n e i s c o r r e c t , we were beyond seven or 

e i g h t -- a t l e a s t seven or e i g h t months beyond when any 

a c t i v i t y took place a t t h a t abandoned w e l l s i t e ? 

A. I cannot speak t o t h a t . 

Q. Do you r e c a l l what was s p e c i f i c a l l y s a i d a t t h i s 

conference about cessation of use? 

A. I n the b u l l e t where i t says, " C h a r l i e suggests 

waiving the p e n a l t y f o r 50C(1), overtopping, but cannot suggest 

t h a t we waive the p e n a l t y f o r c l o s u r e , " a t t h a t time, t h e r e was 

dis c u s s i o n between C h a r l i e and John and A r t t h a t concerned 

mainly the ce s s a t i o n o f use and our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of how the 

six-month p o l i c y i s . 

Q. Now, can you t e l l me e x a c t l y what was said? 

A. I can't t e l l you e x a c t l y what was s a i d , no, s i r . 

This was a "year and a h a l f " ago. 

Q. Okay. And you w i l l agree w i t h me t h a t a t the 

time you had t h i s conference, you were s i x months beyond when 

the w e l l was completed f o r F r o n t i e r ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Correct? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Now, i f you had s p e c i f i c a l l y and i n t e n t i o n a l l y 
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used t h i s conference t o i n f o r m McElvain t h a t t h a t six-month 

p e r i o d d i d n ' t commence when you ceased usin g the p i t , but 

i n s t e a d when you set the casing s t r i n g and cemented i t , why 

wouldn't you have noted t h a t i n your notes? 

A. At the time, I d i d n ' t know t o note t h a t i n my 

notes. 

Q. And you have n o t h i n g else t h a t you can p o i n t t o 

me, Mr. Roberts, t h a t would i n d i c a t e t h a t McElvain, i n your 

mind, was c l e a r l y and unambiguously aware t h a t t h e r e was an 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation of use by the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. Not p r i o r t o the Wiedemer #6 and #7. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. You mentioned t h a t t h e r e was some k i n d of 

D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y . That was your term on the use of or 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of c essation of use? 

A. To my knowledge, t h a t i s c o r r e c t . 

Q. Where does t h a t knowledge come from? 

A. That knowledge comes from the way I was t r a i n e d . 

That's been the p o l i c y as I've known i t from the day I s t a r t e d 

w i t h the OCD. 

Q. And a D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y or d i s t r i c t p o l i c y ? 

A. D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y . 

Q. Okay. Do you have any -- when you say i t was a 

D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y , how was t h a t communicated t o you? 
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A. To me, d i r e c t l y , i t was communicated by 

supe r v i s o r . 

Q. That would be Mr. Perr i n ? 

A. Mr. P e r r i n , and a t the time, Mr. Henry 

V i l l a n e u v a , who was also t h e r e . 

Q. Have you conducted any other i n v e s t i g a t i o n t o 

determine whether t h i s i s indeed a D i v i s i o n - w i d e p o l i c y ? 

A. I have not. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. That's a l l the questions I 

have. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. I don't have any questions. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I do. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

Q. Do you have McElvain's E x h i b i t No. 4? Do you 

have t h a t book w i t h you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Go t o t h a t e x h i b i t , then. I want t o s t r a i g h t e n 

t h i s -- and before I ask t h i s q u e s t i o n , I want t o make a p o i n t 

here t h a t the D i v i s i o n can make some procedures of how we 

conduct our business. Sometimes i t ' s not i n a r u l e or i n an 

order, but i t must be something we want t o use t o do our work 

e f f e c t i v e l y . But i t needs t o be communicated t o people so they 

understand what i t i s . Okay. 

But having s a i d t h a t , i f you look at the time l i n e 

500 
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t h a t i s on t h i s e x h i b i t , and as a D i v i s i o n , once you have the 

pr o d u c t i o n casing set and cemented, you s t a r t c o u n t i n g . Okay. 

One question i s , once t h a t i s done, do they s t i l l have any use 

f o r t h a t p i t ? I s t h a t why we come up w i t h the f a c t t h a t once 

they cement the p r o d u c t i o n casing, we s t a r t c o u n t i n g the time? 

So because a f t e r they do t h a t , i s t h a t a l l they do 

f o r the operatio n s and cement the p i t ? I don't see they should 

have closed i t before they do some other o p e r a t i o n t o t h e i r 

w e l l . So I want t o understand t h i s , you know. 

A. I agree w i t h you. A l l I can say i s t h a t the way 

t h a t I was t r a i n e d f o r d r i l l i n g o p e r a t i o n s , c e s s a t i o n of use 

was the date t h a t they set and cemented t h e i r l a s t casing 

s t r i n g . 

Q. Okay. For your understanding, d i d they -- l e t ' s 

say I cement my p r o d u c t i o n casing today, and then, you know, 

close my p i t tomorrow. And I'm t r y i n g t o do an op e r a t i o n down 

here and I need a p i t . Do I have t o go back and reopen t h a t 

p i t before t h a t i s done? 

I'm t r y i n g t o get t o the core of the issue of here of 

the cessation of use; why we have been doing i t . Of course, I 

sa i d we can do t h a t , but there must be a reason why we do t h a t , 

which i s f a i r . So i f they can use the p i t a f t e r they have 

cemented the p r o d u c t i o n casing, does i t make sense t o close 

t h a t p i t and then d i g i t up t o f i n i s h the job? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Mr. Examiner, I t h i n k our witnesses 
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are probably b e t t e r q u a l i f i e d t o answer t h a t q u e s t i o n . 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. Very good. That would be one 

question I would l i k e an answer t o . Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. Ezeanyim): Another t h i n g I wanted t o 

ask, t o b r i n g up something here, i s McElvain i s a good 

operator. They have been o p e r a t i n g i n t h a t area. This i s not 

the only p i t t h a t you have d e a l t w i t h them. And, you know, t o 

answer the questi o n whether they knew whether you put your 

p r o d u c t i o n casing and cement i t , t h a t ' s when i t s t a r t s . 

Have they closed any p i t a t a l l where they used the 

time l i n e you gave of once you set your p r o d u c t i o n casing and 

cement i t , then your s i x months begins? And i f they have 

closed a p i t using the time l i n e i n your d i s t r i c t or any other 

d i s t r i c t , then t h a t would i n d i c a t e a t l e a s t t h a t they know our 

p o l i c y . 

A. I don't have personal knowledge of t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n . The p i t closures go through our environmental 

s p e c i a l i s t , Brandon Powell. He would be able t o answer t h a t 

q u e s t i o n . 

Q. I s t h a t what we are r e a l l y going t o decide here, 

t h a t they know, t h a t McElvain has closed a p i t us i n g t h a t , you 

know, what you j u s t said? I s the r e anybody who i s going t o 

answer t h a t question? I s the r e somebody who cou l d answer t h a t ? 

MR. POWELL: I'm the one t h a t reviews i t . I'm one of 

the witnesses. 
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1 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. Are you going t o be a witness? 

2 MR. POWELL: Yes. 

3 MR. EZEANYIM: So you're going t o answer t h a t 

4 question when you come up here? 

5 MR. POWELL: I ' l l do my best. 

6 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

7 MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Steuble i s here, Mr. Examiner. 

8 MR. STEUBLE: I would l i k e t o answer t h a t q u e s t i o n 

9 al s o . 

10 MR. EZEANYIM: What i s your name? 

11 MR. STEUBLE: John Steuble. I'm w i t h McElvain O i l 

12 and Gas. 

13 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. Good. Okay. So we leave i t , 

14 but please remember because I t h i n k i t ' s important t h a t we 

15 understand i t 

16 THE WITNESS: I p e r s o n a l l y don't have the knowledge 

17 t o answer your q u e s t i o n . 

18 MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. I t ' s okay i f you don't, but I 

19 t h i n k somebody can answer i t . 

20 MR. BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Warnell? 

21 MS . ALTOMARE: I have one f o l l o w - u p . 

22 MR. BROOKS: Proceed. 

23 REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

24 BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

25 Q. Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n purposes, Mr. Feldewert 
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had asked you some questions about you n o t i n g important p o i n t s 

i n the course of the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference. 

When you have a conference t h a t i n v o l v e s a Rule 50 

v i o l a t i o n f o r p i t c l o s u r e , i s i t a standard conversation t h a t 

you have w i t h an operator about c e s s a t i o n of use and time l i n e 

f o r closure? 

A. T y p i c a l l y i n my experience, yes. 

Q. And when you have a standard conversation of t h a t 

nature, would you n e c e s s a r i l y document i t i n every s i n g l e case? 

A. Not f o r my own notes, no. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. The witness may stand down. 

You may c a l l your next witness, Ms. Altomare. 

MS. ALTOMARE: The OCD would l i k e t o c a l l Brandon 

Powell. 

BRANDON POWELL 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Would you s t a t e your name and p o s i t i o n f o r the 

record, please. 

A. Brandon Powell. I'm the environmental s p e c i a l i s t 

f o r the Aztec D i s t r i c t I I I o f f i c e . 

Q. What i s the standard process once a compliance 
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o f f i c e r has discovered what he or she f e e l s might be a 

v i o l a t i o n of OCD r u l e s ? 

A. They b r i n g the i n f o r m a t i o n t o me. I review the 

w e l l f i l e s , and I make sure t h a t i t i s or i s n ' t a v i o l a t i o n of 

the r u l e s . At t h a t p o i n t , I go t o my s u p e r v i s o r and w i t h the 

in s p e c t o r t h a t found i t , and we review i t t o see i f i t needs t o 

go t o the NOV process. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r and McElvain O i l and Gas 

Properties? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are you f a m i l i a r , s p e c i f i c a l l y , w i t h the two 

Wiedemer w e l l s i n v o l v e d i n t h i s case? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What i n f o r m a t i o n d i d Mr. Roberts provide you w i t h 

r e g a r d i n g those two w e l l s a f t e r h i s September 11th in s p e c t i o n ? 

A. He brought me photos of both s i t e s and informed 

me t h a t both of them were over t h e i r c l o s u r e time l i n e and t h a t 

the l i n e r was r i p p e d on the #7. 

Q. Okay. And what d i d you do a t t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. I reviewed the photos from the #7. I t appeared 

t h a t t h e r e was no f l u i d i n the p i t , and the l i n e r wasn't t o r n 

below the f l u i d l e v e l . I also reviewed the w e l l f i l e t o make 

sure t h a t both p i t s were over the c l o s u r e time l i n e . 

Q. What a d d i t i o n i n f o r m a t i o n , i f any, d i d you 

discover i n your review of the w e l l f i l e s and of McElvain's 
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1 p r a c t i c e s ? 

2 A. Between the Amacker and the Wiedemer w e l l s , I had 

3 discovered a p i t t h a t was open on the Badger 14 #1-A. I t also 

4 had t e a r s i n the p i t l i n e r . That i n s p e c t i o n was approximately 

5 8/6/07. 

6 Q. And t h a t occurred w h i l e n e g o t i a t i o n s were ongoing 

7 to r e s o l v e the Amacker #1 s i t e ? 

8 A. That i s c o r r e c t . 

9 Q- So a t t h a t p o i n t i n time, was a subsequent 

10 compliance a c t i o n pursued w i t h regard t o the Badger w e l l ? 

11 A. We had c a l l e d McElvain on 8/13/07 and discussed 

12 t h a t the p i t was over the time l i m i t , and also discussed t h a t 

13 r i p s i n the l i n e r went below the f l u i d l e v e l and t h a t they 

14 needed t o t e s t t h a t f l u i d . 

15 Q. And when you say "we," who was i n v o l v e d i n t h a t 

16 phone c a l l ? 

17 A. Me and D i s t r i c t Supervisor C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 

18 ' Q. And w i t h whom d i d you speak t o on beh a l f of 

19 McElvain? 

20 A. I b e l i e v e i t was A r t M e r r i c k . 

21 Q. And what was McElvain's response? Did they agree 

22 t o do what you had asked? 

23 A. They d i d . 

24 Q. And was any formal compliance or enforcement 

25 a c t i o n taken w i t h regard t o the Badger 14 #1-A? 
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A. No. I t was j u s t a v e r b a l warning. 

Q. A f t e r you f i n i s h e d your review o f the w e l l f i l e s 

and review o f McElvain o p e r a t i o n s , what d i d you do next w i t h 

regard t o the Wiedemer f i l e s ? 

A. I got w i t h C h a r l i e and K e l l y and discussed the 

Wiedemer, and we sent i t i n t o the NOV process. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h OCD Rule 50 as i t was 

p r e v i o u s l y designated r e g a r d i n g p i t closures? 

A. I am. 

Q. And you've heard testimony r e g a r d i n g how 

Mr. Roberts c h a r a c t e r i z e d what the requirements were under 

Rule 50? Do you agree w i t h h i s summary of t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And how were you t r a i n e d t o c a l c u l a t e the 

six-month p e r i o d of time under Rule 50? 

A. Six months past the time the l a s t casing s t r i n g 

was cemented. 

Q. Have you ever known i n the D i v i s i o n t o c a l c u l a t e 

t h a t time p e r i o d i n any other way? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Okay. Who t r a i n e d you t o do those c a l c u l a t i o n s ? 

A. The environmental person t h a t r e t i r e d t h a t I took 

h i s p o s i t i o n . I was able t o work w i t h him f o r over a month. 

He was the r e f o r 16 years. He t r a i n e d me and also my D i s t r i c t 

Supervisor, C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 
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Q. So the gentleman t h a t was the r e before you would 

have been th e r e when t h i s r u l e came i n t o e f f e c t ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the p r i o r 

enforcement a c t i o n t h a t Mr. Roberts was speaking of re g a r d i n g 

the Amacker #1 s i t e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. With what i n f o r m a t i o n do you have re g a r d i n g t h a t ? 

A. I t ' s my understanding t h a t the NOV was w r i t t e n 

because of the f l u i d over the top i n the l i n e r and f o r i t being 

over the six-month c l o s u r e date. 

Q. And what r o l e , i f any, d i d you have i n t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r enforcement action? 

A. On the i n i t i a l NOV review, I was i n v o l v e d i n 

t h a t . 

Q. And were you able t o a t t e n d the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference i n t h a t ? 

A. I was not. 

Q. And t h a t p a r t i c u l a r a c t i o n r e s u l t e d i n the 

issuance of an ACO? 

A. Yes, i t d i d . 

Q. You i n d i c a t e d t h a t a f t e r you completed your 

review on the Wiedemer f i l e s , you met w i t h Mr. P e r r i n and 

Mr. Roberts t o determine whether or not t o provide w i t h a 

Notice o f V i o l a t i o n . Obviously, you've heard testimony t h a t 
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you a l l d i d proceed w i t h an issuance of a Notice of V i o l a t i o n 

on January 25th, 2008. What i s your understanding of the basis 

f o r t h a t ? 

A. The basis was they were informed of the Rule 50 

and the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n on the Amacker. They were informed 

again on the i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50 on the Badger 14 l-A, 

and we s t i l l found p i t s t h a t were open then, and t h a t ' s when we 

pursued the NOV. 

Q. When you had the con v e r s a t i o n regarding the 

Badger 14 # l - a , d i d you r e i t e r a t e the standard of the s i x 

months beyond the cessation of use and how the D i v i s i o n 

c a l c u l a t e s t h a t time p e r i o d --

A. Yes. 

Q. -- f o r the McElvain operators? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So they were once again informed of the 

D i v i s i o n ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50 a t t h a t time? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Given the sundry i n f o r m a t i o n f o r the casing 

s t r i n g s e t t i n g dates of January 27th and February 5th f o r these 

two p a r t i c u l a r w e l l s , the Wiedemer w e l l s , what were the 

deadlines f o r cl o s u r e based on D i v i s i o n p o l i c y and Rule 50? 

A. For the #7 the deadline would have been 7/27/07, 

and f o r the #6, i t would have been 8/5/07. 

Q. So as of September 11th, 2007, they were c l e a r l y 
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beyond t h e i r c l o s u r e deadlines? 

A. Co r r e c t . 

Q. To your knowledge, was any extension ever 

requested by McElvain f o r any reason f o r these p i t s ? 

A. No. 

Q. What i s your understanding of the process f o r 

re q u e s t i n g an exten s i o n f o r p i t closures and how those requests 

are processed and evaluated w i t h i n the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. The operator would submit a C-103 w i t h the 

extension request on i t w i t h reasonable cause. I would review 

t h a t and insu r e i t met our requirements. I f i t d i d , I would 

then get w i t h an i n s p e c t o r and have them go out and inspect the 

p i t s t o make sure i t conforms w i t h the r u l e s and can be 

c o n t i n u a l l y used or l e f t open. At t h a t time, i f the i n s p e c t o r 

comes back and says i t ' s f i n e , then we would grant the 

extensio n . 

Q. Would the f a c t t h a t a p a r t i c u l a r operator i s 

using resources on another l o c a t i o n , f o r instance -- i n t h i s 

case, using resources i n the L i n d r i t h area -- would t h a t 

t y p i c a l l y be one scenario where an ope r a t o r might f i l e a 

request f o r an extension? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How about i f the operator decided t h a t they 

wanted t o t r y and use the p i t f o r another use i f they wanted t o 

re-complete the w e l l or continue using the p i t f o r another 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Suite 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



43 

purpose? Would t h a t be one reason t h a t an operator might 

submit a request f o r an extension beyond the six-month period? 

A. Yes. That's u s u a l l y the process. I f they want 

to keep using i t past the s i x months, they f i l e an extension 

f o r t h a t . 

Q. So t h e r e i s a p r o v i s i o n w i t h i n the r u l e t o permit 

operators t o continue using the p i t s beyond the running of the 

casing s t r i n g i f t h e r e are other t h i n g s they want t o use the 

p i t f o r or i f they ' r e not able t o close i t w i t h i n t h a t time 

period? 

A. Co r r e c t . 

Q. Just t o back up f o r one moment, we had discussed 

a l i t t l e b i t about how the Badger r e s u l t e d i n only a warning, 

but i t was moved forward w i t h a f u l l NOV on the Wiedemer w e l l s . 

Why was the d e c i s i o n made t o go forward w i t h a more formal 

compliance a c t i o n i n Wiedemer versus a warning l i k e what was 

done w i t h the Badger? 

A. The Badger gave them a warning. We were t r y i n g 

t o l e t them wrap up t h e i r p i t work as p a r t of the Amacker, and 

by the time the Wiedemer's came up, they had a l r e a d y had a 

warning, and they were s t i l l out t h e r e . That's why we 

proceeded w i t h the NOV. 

Q. Did you a t t e n d the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference t h a t 

was h e l d i n an attempt t o re s o l v e the Notice of V i o l a t i o n f o r 

the Wiedemer w e l l s i n t h i s case? 
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A. Yes. 

Q. I want t o d i r e c t you t o E x h i b i t J. Do you 

recognize t h i s document -- when you get there? 

A. Yes, i t ' s my notes from the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference. 

Q. Based on these notes and your r e c o l l e c t i o n from 

conference, what was your r e c o l l e c t i o n of what was discussed 

w i t h regard t o McElvain's v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 w i t h regard t o 

the Wiedemer w e l l s ? 

A. They d i d not agree w i t h our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

cessation of use. 

Q. Even though i t had already been d i s c l o s e d t o them 

on previous occasions t h a t t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n was not the 

c o n t r o l l i n g i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. I t h i n k you have a n o t a t i o n i n t h e r e t h a t the 

p i t s were d r i l l i n g p i t s as opposed t o work-over p i t s . What i s 

the s i g n i f i c a n c e of t h i s n o t a t i o n ? 

A. The p i t s were p e r m i t t e d as d r i l l i n g p i t s , 

s p e c i f i c a l l y . There wasn't any a d d i t i o n a l comments i f they 

were going t o use i t f o r work-over completions or completions 

when they f i l e d the p e r m i t . 

Q. Okay. And again, a work-over might be something 

t h a t somebody might f i l e an extension f o r ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. You heard the testimony p r o v i d e d by Mr. Roberts 

when he reviewed E x h i b i t F -- i f I could get you t o t u r n back 

t o E x h i b i t F -- the l i s t of w e l l s t h a t had been pro v i d e d by 

Mr. Steuble back i n June. Does t h i s document look f a m i l i a r t o 

you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you recognize the h a n d w r i t i n g on the document? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s t h i s your handwriting? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. And when d i d you make these n o t a t i o n s ? 

A. I made these n o t a t i o n s d u r i n g the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r the Wiedemer w e l l s . 

Q. And what was --

MR. FELDEWERT: Sorry t o i n t e r r u p t . Which document 

are you on? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Second page of E x h i b i t F. I t ' s 

e n t i t l e d " P i t Closures." 

MR. FELDEWERT: Got i t . Okay. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): What i s the meaning of the 

n o t a t i o n s on t h i s p a r t i c u l a r l i s t ? 

A. During the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference, I was 

revi e w i n g the w e l l s t h a t were on the l i s t t h a t McElvain 

provided t o see i f they had prov i d e d c l o s u r e f o r each w e l l on 

the l i s t . 
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Q. Okay. And what do your n o t a t i o n s i n d i c a t e t h a t 

you concluded d u r i n g t h i s review process? 

A. They had f i l e d c l o s u r e paperwork on a l l the w e l l s 

except f o r the Cougar Com 33 1-B, the Cougar Com 33 1-M and the 

Cougar Com 4 #2-A. 

Q. So as of February 27th, 2008, upon reviewing the 

l i s t t h a t was pro v i d e d i n June o f 2007, they s t i l l had three 

w e l l s t h a t they had not yet closed? 

A. Corr e c t . 

MR. BROOKS: This was a t what a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference t h a t you d i d t h i s review? 

THE WITNESS: The Wiedemer #6 and #7. 

MR. BROOKS: That was the one i n January of '08 — 

February of 08? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Go ahead. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): To your knowledge, was any 

formal a d m i n i s t r a t i v e a c t i o n taken w i t h regard t o any of the 

thre e Cougar Com w e l l s t h a t are l i s t e d on the l i s t as having 

not been closed? 

A. No. 

Q. And a t t h i s p o i n t i n time, were these three 

Cougar Com w e l l s beyond the clos u r e date according t o D i v i s i o n 

p o l i c y f o r i n t e r p r e t i n g Rule 50? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. Were these t h r e e w e l l s -- were the p i t s beyond 

the c l o s u r e date according t o McElvain's i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

Rule 50? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s t h a t i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

A. Their i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i s --

MR. FELDEWERT: Object t o the form of the questio n . 

I don't know how t h i s witness --

MS. ALTOMARE: I ' l l rephrase i t . 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): At t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

conference, d i d McElvain express t o you how they i n t e r p r e t e d 

Rule 50 and the six-month c a l c u l a t i o n f o r the cl o s u r e of p i t s ? 

A. They d i d . They referenced t h a t t h e i r six-month 

c a l c u l a t i o n was from the date the completion was done on the 

w e l l . 

Q. And are these three w e l l s , the Cougar Com w e l l s , 

t h a t are noted on t h i s p i t closure l i s t as of February 

27, 2008, were they beyond t h a t six-month mark according t o how 

McElvain expressed t h a t they i n t e r p r e t e d the r u l e ? 

A. They were. 

Q. At the February 27, 2008, conference, was any 

ex p l a n a t i o n given t o you as t o why they had f a i l e d t o close the 

Weidemer w e l l s w i t h i n the six-month p e r i o d of time? 

A. They s a i d they were working on p i t s i n the 

L i n d r i t h area. 
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Q. Did they g i v e you any e x p l a n a t i o n as t o why they 

d i d n ' t seek an extension f o r e i t h e r of these w e l l s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. What conclusions have you drawn w i t h 

regard t o McElvain's conduct i n the v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 w i t h 

t h e i r h a n d l i n g of the Wiedemer p i t s ? 

A. They had previous knowledge of Rule 50 and our 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cess a t i o n of use, and these were s t i l l open 

beyond t h a t time. 

Q. Okay. And do you have s p e c i f i c knowledge of 

having p r o v i d e d them w i t h the d e f i n i t i o n of ce s s a t i o n of use 

according t o OCD p o l i c y p r i o r t o the deadline f o r c l o s u r e of 

the Wiedemer p i t s ? 

A. V e r b a l l y , yes. 

Q. Based on t h i s , would you say t h a t t h e i r v i o l a t i o n 

of Rule 50 w i t h regard t o these two p i t s was knowing and 

w i l l f u l ? 

A. Yes. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I w i l l pass the witness. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. Mr. Feldewert? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Powell, at the Wiedemer conference, now, 

which occurs a f t e r the Notice of V i o l a t i o n was issued f o r the 

Wiedemer w e l l s , when you discussed your d i s t r i c t ' s 
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1 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cess a t i o n of use, d i d McElvain express 

2 s u r p r i s e at your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

3 A. They d i d . 

4 Q. They did? Okay. And i t ' s your testimony t h a t 

5 you r e c a l l p r o v i d i n g McElvain w i t h s p e c i f i c , w e l l - a r t i c u l a t e d 

6 n o t i c e as how your d i s t r i c t i n t e r p r e t e d c e s s a t i o n o f use at 

7 some p o i n t i n time before the Wiedemer conference? 

8 A. Yes . 

9 MS. ALTOMARE: I'm going t o o b j e c t because i t 

10 mi s c h a r a c t e r i z e s h i s testimony. I t ' s how the D i v i s i o n 

11 i n t e r p r e t s . 

12 Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : You s a i d yes? 

13 MR. BROOKS: Overruled. 

14 THE WITNESS: Yes. 

15 Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : Okay. Now, when d i d t h a t 

16 occur? 

17 A. That occurred on 8/13/2007. 

18 Q. 8/13/2007. And t h a t was i n connection w i t h what? 

19 A. The Badger 14 #1-A. 

20 Q. And who d i d you d i s c l o s e --

21 A. I inspected the w e l l and found i t , yes. 

22 Q. Okay. And then who -- you s a i d somebody provided 

23 McElvain w i t h , I t h i n k , you s a i d v e r b a l announcement of the 

24 d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation of use. Who d i d 

25 t h a t v e r b a l announcement? 
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A. I d i d along w i t h C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . C h a r l i e P e r r i n and y o u r s e l f . And who 

d i d you give t h a t v e r b a l n o t i c e to? 

A. A r t Merrick , over the phone. 

Q. Did you take any notes? 

A. No, I d i d not. 

MR. BROOKS: That was on what date? 

THE WITNESS: Huh? 

MR. BROOKS: This was on what date? 

THE WITNESS: 8/13/2007. 

MR. BROOKS: Continue. 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : And what s p e c i f i c a l l y -- d i d 

you say anyth i n g t o Mr. Merrick? 

A. Yes, I d i d . 

Q. What d i d you say t o him? 

A. I t o l d him t h a t h i s p i t was over the closure 

date, e x p l a i n e d what the deadline was and why i t was t h a t 

deadline. 

Q. What d i d you explain? That's what I'm t r y i n g t o 

f i n d out. 

A. I explained -- I don't remember what the exact 

deadline i s a t t h i s p o i n t -- but I exp l a i n e d t o him what the 

deadline was and how I c a l c u l a t e d i t . I also explained t o him 

t h a t t h e r e was --

Q. Let me stop you t h e r e . 
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A. Okay. 

Q. You e x p l a i n e d t o him what the deadline was t o 

close the p i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You s a i d you explained t o him how you c a l c u l a t e d 

i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. What d i d you t e l l him? 

A. I t o l d him t h a t , based on s i x months a f t e r the 

cementing of the l a s t casing s t r i n g , the deadline date i s t h i s , 

and i t ' s over t h a t . 

Q. Did you say anything else? 

A. I also t o l d him there were r i p s i n the l i n e r 

below the f l u i d l e v e l , and I r e q u i r e d him t o perform t e s t i n g on 

t h a t l o c a t i o n t o make sure there was no contamination and t o 

close the p i t . 

Q. Okay. Anything else? 

A. No. 

Q. Did Mr. P e r r i n say anything t o him? 

A. I don't r e c a l l what Mr. P e r r i n s a i d t o him. 

Q. Okay. Do you know whether t h e r e was any use of 

t h a t p i t by McElvain a f t e r the casing s t r i n g had been set and 

cemented? 

A. Yes. On t h a t p i t -- I've got notes here. 

Q. What notes are you l o o k i n g at? 
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1 A. Just some i n t e r n a l documentation t h a t I p u l l e d 

2 out of the w e l l f i l e so I could have i t . 

3 MR. BROOKS: What w e l l are you i n q u i r i n g about? 

4 THE WITNESS: The Badger 14 #1-A. 

5 Q • (By Mr. Fe l d e w e r t ) : I haven't seen t h a t f i l e , so 

6 I apologize. 

7 A. I am showing here t h a t the w e l l was -- the l a s t 

8 casing s t r i n g was cemented January 16, 2006. 

9 Q. A l l r i g h t . 1/16/06. That's the cementing? 

10 A. Yes . 

11 Q. Okay. 

12 A. They completed the w e l l on 10/2/1006. 

13 Q. 10/3/2006. Okay. 

14 A. And they closed the p i t 9/3/2007, a f t e r I 

15 contacted them. They closed the p i t approximately seven months 

16 past completion and 20 months past the cementing of the l a s t 

17 casing s t r i n g 

18 Q. A l l r i g h t . So when you had t h i s c o n v e r s a t i o n , no 

19 matter what d e f i n i t i o n anyone used, they were beyond the 

20 six-month period? 

21 A. Correct. 

22 Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t . Now, you had t h i s conversation 

23 you s a i d 8/13/2007? 

24 A. Yes . 

25 Q. How do you know t h a t ? 
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1 A. I t a l k e d t o C h a r l i e P e r r i n , and he had documented 

2 t h a t t h a t was the date t h a t we t a l k e d t o McElvain. 

3 Q. What documents d i d you look at? 

4 A. His notes t o f i n d out which day we t a l k e d t o him. 

5 Q. Do you have those here today? 

6 A. No, I don't. 

7 Q. Mr. P e r r i n brought them w i t h him today? 

8 A. Not t h a t I'm aware o f . 

9 Q. Is there a reason you di d n ' t ? 

10 A. I t was no s p e c i f i c notes. I t was j u s t t h a t we 

11 had t a l k e d t o him about t h a t w e l l . That was the resource. 

12 Q. Okay. But you d i d n ' t have any notes about what 

13 was said? 

14 A. No. 

15 Q. So you're basing t h i s e n t i r e l y on your 

16 r e c o l l e c t i o n of events t h a t took place on August 13, 2007. 

17 A. I'm basing i t o f f my normal process when I c a l l 

18 an operator t h a t the w e l l i s out of compliance due t o the 

19 clos u r e date. 

20 Q. Okay. Now, 8/13/2007 would have been -- would 

21 you t u r n t o E x h i b i t 4 f o r me, please? 

22 A. Yours? 

23 Q. Yes . 

24 A. I got i t . 

25 Q. I t ' s the Wiedemer time l i n e ? 
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1 A. I've got Wiedemer w e l l #6 tab, a Wiedemer w e l l #7 

2 tab. 

3 Q. I'm s o r r y . I f you look a t Tab 4 and then there's 

4 a time l i n e r i g h t behind Tab 4. 

5 A. I'm s o r r y . 

6 Q. That's okay. 

7 A. Okay. 

8 Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, you don't d i s p u t e any of the 

9 events on t h i s time l i n e , do you? 

10 A. I haven't reviewed i t , but I would assume they're 

11 c o r r e c t . 

12 Q • We've got s u p p o r t i n g w e l l records. I'm going t o 

13 represent t o you t h a t the w e l l records support the time l i n e 

14 here. 

15 A. Okay. 

16 Q. Okay. So your conference w i t h Mr. Mer r i c k here 

17 would have taken place on August 13th, 2007? 

18 A. Yes . 

19 Q. Which would have been, f o r the purposes of the 

20 Wiedemer w e l l s , more than s i x months a f t e r the date t h a t they 

21 were completed? 

22 A. The Wiedemer wells? 

23 Q. I'm s o r r y -- when the casing s t r i n g was set and 

24 cemented. When I look a t February 5, 2007, as the date the 

25 casing s t r i n g was set and cemented f o r the Wiedemer #6, your 
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1 conference w i t h him on 8/13/07 would have been beyond the s i x 

2 months? 

3 A . Yes. 

4 Q Okay. And i f I look a t when a p r o d u c t i o n casing 

5 s t r i n g i s set and cemented so January 27th '07, your d i s c u s s i o n 

6 w i t h them would have been, again, beyond the six-month 

7 p e r i o d --

8 A . Yes. 

9 Q -- f o r these wells? 

10 A . Yes . 

11 Q Okay. So whatever n o t i c e you pr o v i d e d t o them at 

12 t h a t time, i t would have been beyond -- the time l i n e f o r t h i s 

13 w e l l would have been beyond when the six-month p e r i o d had 

14 e x p i r e d already f o r the Wiedemer w e l l s , under your 

15 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

16 A Yes . 

17 Q Okay. And then when, as t h i s time l i n e shows, 

18 Mr. Roberts inspected these w e l l s and asked McElvain t o close 

19 them, okay, based on your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n --

20 A . Uh-huh. 

21 Q -- they d i d i t w i t h i n t h r e e days, c o r r e c t ? 

22 A Correct. 

23 Q . A l l r i g h t . 

24 A That's what was r e p o r t e d . 

25 Q A l l r i g h t . And based on t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n , do you 
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b e l i e v e , Mr. Roberts, t h a t -- I'm s o r r y , Mr. Powell do you 

b e l i e v e t h a t t h e r e was some k i n d of c r i m i n a l or e v i l i n t e n t on 

the p a r t of McElvain t o v i o l a t e the six-month p e r i o d under 

Rule 50? 

A. Do I b e l i e v e they knew the r u l e and v i o l a t e d i t ? 

Yes . 

Q. Okay. Can you p o i n t me t o any ot h e r d i s c l o s u r e 

of the d i s t r i c t ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of ce s s a t i o n of use other than 

what you r e c a l l o c c u r r i n g i n a conversation on August 13, 2007? 

A. I wasn't here when t h a t d i s c l o s u r e would have 

occurred, so, no, I do not know of any o t h e r . 

Q. Okay. Can you p o i n t me t o any d i s c l o s u r e by your 

d i s t r i c t t o operators i n general, okay, where you're sending 

out n o t i c e t o the operators t h a t your d i s t r i c t considers 

c e s s a t i o n of use t o be when -- begin t o run t h a t six-month 

p e r i o d --

A. I wasn't w i t h the OCD when t h a t would have taken 

place. 

Q. I'm not asking you --

A. Well, when the r u l e came out, the d i s c l o s u r e 

would have went out s h o r t l y a f t e r the r u l e came out. I wasn't 

w i t h the OCD a t t h a t p e r i o d , so I wouldn't have any knowledge 

of anything --

Q. But you've had t r a i n i n g ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Can you p o i n t me t o any document 

where the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e n o t i f i e d operators t h a t they were 

going t o i n t e r p r e t c e s s a t i o n of use t o be when the casing 

s t r i n g i s set and cemented? 

A. No. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l the questions I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. I have no que s t i o n s . 

Mr. Ezeanyim? 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

Q. Okay. Maybe you can answer my q u e s t i o n now. 

F i r s t of a l l , how do we communicate t o the operators when the 

time l i n e has s t a r t e d and the circumstances? How do we l e t 

them know t h a t the time l i n e s t a r t e d t o run immediately a f t e r 

you set your p r o d u c t i o n casing and cement i t ? And then the 

c o r p o r a t i o n t h a t comes behind t h a t -- t h i s i s the q u e s t i o n you 

might t r y t o answer -- McElvain has closed the p i t . Have they 

used t h a t time l i n e from p r o d u c t i o n casing set and cement 

p r o d u c t i o n casing t o close some of the p i t s w i t h o u t g e t t i n g a 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

A. Can you repeat the f i r s t question? 

Q. What I'm saying i s t h a t the only p i t t h a t 

McElvain had closed under t h i s p r o v i s i o n or i n D i s t r i c t I I I ? 

I s t h i s the only p i t t h a t they have closed? 

A. They have closed several other p i t s . I don't 
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know which time l i n e they f o l l o w e d . I know the time l i n e t h a t 

they presented t h a t they s a i d they f o l l o w e d . We have 

documentation t h a t they d i d n ' t f o l l o w t h a t , e i t h e r . 

Q. So he d i d n ' t f o l l o w i t ? 

A. We've got some p i t s t h a t were closed years 

a f t e r w a r d s , so I don't know which time l i n e they were 

f o l l o w i n g . I b e l i e v e they d i d close some p i t s w i t h i n the s i x 

months, but I don't have s p e c i f i c s . 

Q. Yeah, because you know where I'm going. I f they 

know t h a t you close a p i t a f t e r you set your p r o d u c t i o n casing, 

s i x months a f t e r t h a t , and they have closed p i t s , t h a t might 

say, okay, they know the procedure. That's why I asked the 

question how do we communicate t o them. And then, has t h i s 

happened w i t h McElvain t h a t they know t h a t t h a t ' s when the time 

l i n e s t a r t s t o run and close a p i t ? 

A. I don't know i f before the Amacker and the Badger 

i f they had any s p e c i f i c knowledge, or how they were c l o s i n g 

the p i t s . I would have t o do a w e l l f i l e review t o determine 

t h a t . 

MR. BROOKS: I s t h a t a l l , Mr. Ezeanyim? 

MR. WARNELL: I have one que s t i o n . Does OCD, t o your 

knowledge, d i f f e r e n t i a t e a d r i l l i n g p i t from a work-over p i t , 

or i s a p i t a p i t ? 

THE WITNESS: They d i f f e r e n t i a t e . U s u ally the 

operator w i l l put i t on the a p p l i c a t i o n whether i t ' s a d r i l l i n g 
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or work-over p i t . 

MR. WARNELL: Thank you. 

MR. BROOKS: I do have a qu e s t i o n a f t e r a l l . 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BROOKS: 

Q. You sa i d something about completion on a c e r t a i n 

day. What do you mean when you use the word "completion"? 

A. They e i t h e r f r a c the w e l l or do some k i n d of 

completion work. I t ' s a f t e r they move the d r i l l i n g r i g o f f and 

come back t o complete the w e l l . 

Q. Okay. That being -- you s a i d f r a c treatment? 

A. Right. G e t t i n g i t ready f o r p r o d u c t i o n . 

Q. Anything else? 

A. I don't know t h a t much about p r o d u c t i o n of a 

w e l l . 

Q. Okay. But when you're t a l k i n g about a w e l l being 

completed on a c e r t a i n date, you're t a l k i n g about when they d i d 

the f r a c job? 

A. The f r a c j o b , yes. That would be one of them. 

Q. Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: That's a l l . Ms. Altomare? 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Just f o r c l a r i f i c a t i o n . When you're c a l c u l a t i n g 

from day of completion, you're using the sundries t h a t are 
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1 submitted by the o p e r a t o r . 

2 A. Yes . 

3 Q. From the date of completion t h a t ' s r e p o r t e d by 

4 the operator. 

5 A. Correc t , the C-105. 

6 MR. FELDEWERT: I do have one que s t i o n I f o r g o t t o 

7 ' ask. 

8 MR. BROOKS: Go ahead. 

9 RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

10 BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

11 Q • I f an operator i s i n t e n d i n g t o close the p i t 

12 w i t h i n s i x months of cess a t i o n of use, there's no reason t o 

13 f i l e f o r an extension of the p i t r e g i s t r a t i o n form, i s there? 

14 A. Cessation of use based on our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , 

15 c o r r e c t . 

16 Q. Based on your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n ? 

17 A. The D i v i s i o n ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

18 Q. As opposed t o when they cease using the p i t ? 

19 A. Righ t . I f they need t o do completion work a f t e r 

20 t h a t s i x months, we have them f i l e an extension t o accommodate 

21 t h a t , i f they cannot close i t -- do the work and s t i l l close 

22 i t . 

23 Q. Okay. I f I am an operator here, l i k e McElvain, 

24 or any other operator coming i n t o t h i s S t a t e , okay? 

25 A. Okay. 

500 
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Q. And they d r i l l a w e l l , and they set t h e i r casing 

s t r i n g and cement. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. And then they, w i t h i n a month, do the completion 

o p e r a t i o n s , and d u r i n g those completion o p e r a t i o n s , they use 

the p i t , okay? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And they go t o Rule 50 t o a s c e r t a i n when they are 

r e q u i r e d t o close the p i t . The only t h i n g they have t o go on, 

l o o k i n g at Rule 50, i s they have t o close i t w i t h i n s i x months 

of c e s s a t i o n of use, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's the way Rule 50 reads. 

Q. And you go t o the p i t g u i d e l i n e s , and you look at 

the p i t g u i d e l i n e s . What do they say? 

A. The same. 

Q. Same language? 

A. Yes. 

Q. They don't say anyth i n g about s e t t i n g of the 

casing s t r i n g i s commencement of the period? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: One more t h i n g . To take i t one step 

f u r t h e r , i f t h a t operator i s McElvain and t h a t scenario i s 
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happening a f t e r the Amacker a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference, knowing 

what you know about what was conveyed t o them about the 

s p e c i f i c i n f o r m a t i o n f o r c a l c u l a t i n g t h a t six-month p e r i o d of 

time, how would you expect McElvain t o c a l c u l a t e the p i t 

clos u r e time l i n e ? 

THE WITNESS: A f t e r s i x months past the l a s t casing 

s t r i n g has been set and cemented. 

FURTHER EXAMINATION 

BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

Q. When you -- a t what p o i n t do you expect t o get a 

vari a n c e . I n other words, you say they can get an extension, 

r i g h t --

A. Correct. 

Q. -- w i t h i n the s i x months. So you're a t the p o i n t 

where i t ' s pushing s i x months or a month of the time where i t ' s 

pushing s i x months and one month a f t e r the s i x months -- when 

d i d they give you the extension? 

A. They should get i t before they pass the s i x 

months past the cementing the casings. 

Q. So i f they pass the s i x months, you wouldn't have 

approved i t , would you? 

A. We would review i t t o see circumstances, but 

there's a p o s s i b i l i t y we would grant the extension a f t e r w a r d s . 

Q. Even i f they were past the s i x months? 

A. Correct. 
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Q. Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: Did you have something else, 

Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Powell, I t h i n k there was some 

confusion here. Were you a t the Amacker a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference ? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. So you don't know what was 

sa i d at t h a t conference? 

THE WITNESS: No, I do not. 

MR. FELDEWERT: A l l r i g h t . Thank you. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r , Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: No. 

MR. BROOKS: The witness may stand down. You may 

c a l l your next witness. You have 1 hour and 27 minutes 

remaining. 

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s time, we c a l l C h a r l i e P e r r i n . 

CHARLIE PERRIN 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Could you s t a t e your name and t i t l e f o r the 

record, please? 

A. C h a r l i e P e r r i n . I'm the Aztec d i s t r i c t 
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su p e r v i s o r . 

Q. And how long have you been a d i s t r i c t supervisor? 

A. Since March of '05. 

Q. P r i o r t o t h a t , what was your p o s i t i o n ? 

A. I supervised the i n s p e c t i o n enforcement s t a f f . 

Q. Okay. You've heard the testimony today of 

Mr. Roberts and Mr. Powell r e g a r d i n g the usual procedures f o r 

i n s p e c t i n g w e l l s and conducting f u r t h e r i n v e s t i g a t i o n and 

determining when i t ' s a p p r o p r i a t e t o b r i n g a compliance a c t i o n . 

Do you agree w i t h the testimony t h a t ' s been pr o v i d e d so fa r ? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 

Q. Do you have anyt h i n g t o add re g a r d i n g the 

procedural aspects t h a t they've discussed a t t h i s p o i n t ? 

A. No, ma'am, I don't. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h McElvain Operating? 

A. Yes, l a m . 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the Wiedemer #7 and #6 

wells? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. When d i d you become i n v o l v e d or informed of the 

issues i n v o l v e d i n these two wells? 

A. A f t e r K e l l y Roberts conducted h i s i n s p e c t i o n and 

Brandon Powell d i d a w e l l f i l e review, they came t o see me 

about what a c t i o n t o take. 

Q. Okay. And, of course, you're f a m i l i a r w i t h OCD 
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Rule 50 as i t was p r e v i o u s l y designated r e q u i r i n g s i x months --

clo s u r e w i t h i n s i x months of cessation of use f o r p i t s ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I ' d l i k e to. d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n a t t h i s p o i n t 

t o E x h i b i t A, our OCD E x h i b i t A. Do you recognize t h i s 

document? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 

Q. Can you i d e n t i f y i t f o r the re c o r d , please? 

A. Yes, ma'am. This was a n o t i c e sent out t o a l l 

the d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r s i n November of 2004 when Frank Chaves 

was the d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r . 

Q. And again, a t t h a t p o i n t i n time, what was your 

p o s i t i o n ? 

A. I was the s t a f f manager. I supervised the 

i n s p e c t i o n and enforcement team. 

Q. Okay. And l o o k i n g at E x h i b i t A on page 2, can 

you read question 3 and the f i r s t sentence of the answer t o 

question 3? 

A. Yes, ma'am. The question i s : "When does the 

time frame f o r c l o s i n g d r i l l i n g p i t s c o n s t r u c t e d a f t e r A p r i l 

15, 2004, s t a r t ? " 

The response i s : "The six-month time frame f o r 

c l o s i n g d r i l l i n g p i t s c o n s t r u c t e d a f t e r A p r i l 15, 2004, w i l l 

s t a r t on t h a t date t h a t the l a s t casing s t r i n g i s set or the 

w e l l i s p r o p e r l y plugged and abandoned i f the w e l l i s a dry 
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hole. " 

Q. Okay. And t h i s was a memorandum issued by the 

D i r e c t o r of the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n t o a l l d i s t r i c t 

s upervisors? 

A. That's my understanding. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And i t i s dated November 12, 2004? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I s t h i s the D i v i s i o n p o l i c y , as you understand 

i t , f o r c a l c u l a t i n g the six-month p e r i o d under Rule 50? 

A. Yes, ma'am, i t i s . 

Q. And have you ever known anyone w i t h i n the 

D i v i s i o n t o c a l c u l a t e i n any other fashion? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. What, i f any, a c t i o n have you or anyone els e i n 

your o f f i c e taken t o i n f o r m area operators of the department --

or D i v i s i o n -- p o l i c y r e g a r d i n g c a l c u l a t i o n of s i x months f o r 

cessation of use? 

A. Denny Fouts made an announcement a t the San Juan 

Basin Working Committee of our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . L a t e r , a f t e r I 

became d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r , I also made the v e r b a l 

announcement. 

Q. And what i s the San Juan Basin Working Committee 

Meeting? 

A. I t ' s the NMOGA-based meeting where the operators 

come to g e t h e r -- many of the operators come to g e t h e r -- and the 
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Bureau of Land Management, Forest Service, and OCD give 

q u a r t e r l y updates t o them. 

Q. So i t ' s a forum f o r d i s s e m i n a t i n g i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

the o p e r a t o r s h i p i n the area? 

A. Yes, ma'am, i t i s . 

Q. And who was Denny Fouts? 

A. Denny Fouts was Brandon Powell's predecessor. 

Denny was our environmental engineer before Mr. Powell came. 

Q. And both of these announcements occurred 

sometimes i n 2005, d i d you say? 

A. To the best of my memory, yes, ma'am. 

Q. Do you have a s p e c i f i c r e c o l l e c t i o n of having 

made the announcement, though? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l the compliance and enforcement 

a c t i o n t h a t was taken against McElvain regarding the Amacker #1 

s i t e t h a t you've heard discussed here today? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. As discussed by Mr. Powell and Mr. Roberts, an 

NOV was issued on May 11th, 2007, t o McElvain. What i s your 

understanding r e g a r d i n g the b a s i s f o r t h a t Notice of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. On Amacker? 

Q. On the Amacker #1. 

A. K e l l y was i n the f i e l d doing an i n s p e c t i o n . He 

found a p i t t h a t was overtopping, and he came i n and t a l k e d t o 
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Brandon. Brandon d i d a w e l l f i l e research, and i t was 

determined t h a t i t was past i t s c l o s u r e date as w e l l . 

Q. And d i d you p a r t i c i p a t e i n the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r t h a t p a r t i c u l a r N otice of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I d i d . 

Q. And i f I could d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o 

E x h i b i t E. Do you recognize t h i s document? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Are these your notes from the May 30th, 2007, 

Amacker #1 Notice of V i o l a t i o n a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference? 

A. Yes, ma'am, i t i s . 

Q. According t o your notes and your r e c o l l e c t i o n 

from t h i s a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference, what do you r e c a l l was 

discussed r e g a r d i n g McElvain's v i o l a t i o n s and o b l i g a t i o n s under 

Rule 50? 

A. McElvain brought i n i n f o r m a t i o n i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 

the reason i t was overtop was because of the snow f a l l , the 

amount of snow f a l l . They also i n d i c a t e d t h a t they had j u s t 

taken over the w e l l and t h a t they hadn't had an o p p o r t u n i t y t o 

do a due d i l i g e n c e , a good due d i l i g e n c e on i t . 

And we t a l k e d t o them about our i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the 

cessation of use r u l e and how the whole -- l e t me see: Six 

months a f t e r the casing s t r i n g i s cemented i n t o the hole, the 

p i t i s t o be closed or an extension i s t o be requested. We do 

t h a t at each a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference r e g a r d i n g Rule 50. We 
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d i d i t then. 

Q. So t h a t ' s a standard p r a c t i c e or was at the time 

t h a t t h i s p i t r u l e was i n place? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. I t h i n k your notes a l s o i n d i c a t e t h a t they d i d 

not remember t o f i l e f o r a p i t extension? 

A. Yes. When an a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference s t a r t s , 

we e x p l a i n t o the operator t h a t what we're going t o do i s ask. 

We're going t o go through the Notice of V i o l a t i o n and t e l l them 

what we found and ask f o r any m i t i g a t i n g or ex t e n u a t i n g 

circumstances. 

And one of the t h i n g s we ask f o r i s a reason, and we 

were t o l d t h a t they had f o r g o t t e n t o f i l e the extension. 

Q. And what d i d t h a t comment i n d i c a t e t o you? 

A. That they were aware o f the r u l e and t h a t they 

missed t h a t step. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l d i s c u s s i n g a number of other p i t s 

t h a t were i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 f o r c l o s u r e deadlines at t h a t 

p a r t i c u l a r conference? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 

Q. I f I could d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t F 

t h a t was p r e v i o u s l y discussed. I t ' s t h a t two-page e x h i b i t , the 

e-mail and the p i t l i s t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. What i s your impression of what's i n d i c a t e d on 
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t h a t l i s t r e g a r d i n g the w e l l s t h a t are i n d i c a t e d ? 

A. Mr. Steuble i n d i c a t e d he had se v e r a l w e l l s , t h a t 

he was k i n d of concerned about h i s p i t s , and t h a t they were 

doing an i n v e n t o r y . We asked him t o send us a l i s t and t e l l us 

the s t a t u s of them. This i s the l i s t he sent. The Wiedemer #6 

and #7 are open; they ' r e going t o close them; they have no 

i n t e n t i o n of asking f o r an extensi o n . 

Q. Okay. And t h e r e are w e l l s on t h e r e l i s t e d t h a t 

they are i n t e n d i n g c l e a r l y t o request an extensi o n . 

A. Yes. 

Q. And are t h e r e w e l l s there l i s t e d t h a t they have 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t they p l a n t o do a d d i t i o n a l completion work on? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what i s the n o t a t i o n there? 

A. The remarks are: Close a f t e r completion, close 

a f t e r completion. 

Q. And again, n e i t h e r of those two w e l l s , the 

Wiedemer #6 or #7, have a n o t a t i o n of t h a t s o r t ? 

A. No, ma'am, they do not. 

Q. And the Amacker enforcement a c t i o n d i d u l t i m a t e l y 

r e s u l t i n an ACO being issued? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l the communication w i t h McElvain 

r e g a r d i n g the Badger s i t e t h a t Mr. Powell spoke about? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 
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Q. Okay. What was the basis f o r i n i t i a t i n g c o n tact 

w i t h McElvain r e g a r d i n g the Badger s i t e ? 

A. I t was over i t s c l o s u r e time, and i t had a t o r n 

l i n e r w i t h f l u i d above the l i n e r . 

Q. Who a l l p a r t i c i p a t e d i n t h a t discussion? 

A. Brandon Powell and myself v i a telephone t o 

Mr. Me r r i c k . 

Q. And what was discussed d u r i n g the course of t h a t 

phone c a l l ? 

A. We went over again t h a t i t was past c l o s u r e . The 

d e f i n i t i o n of cl o s u r e was the cess a t i o n of use, and Mr. Powell 

i n d i c a t e d t h a t they needed t o close i t and do some t e s t i n g . 

Q. Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: What date was t h i s ? 

THE WITNESS: 8/13. 

MR. BROOKS: Of '07? 

THE WITNESS: Of '07. 

MR. BROOKS: Go ahead. 

Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Why was the d e c i s i o n made 

w i t h regard t o the Badger s i t e not t o seek formal enforcement 

action? 

A. We thought i t was an o v e r s i g h t on McElvain's 

p a r t , and we were t r y i n g t o work w i t h them. We were already 

working w i t h McElvain, they were sending s t u f f i n , g e t t i n g 

t h e i r arms around the issue. So we opted t o not issue a 
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n o t i c e , j u s t a v e r b a l phone c a l l and have them b r i n g t h a t i n . 

Q. Okay. What enforcement a c t i o n do you r e c a l l 

o f f i c i a l l y d e c i d i n g t o do w i t h regard t o the Wiedemer w e l l s 

a f t e r Mr. Powell had completed h i s review? 

A. We determined t h a t because of the knowledge t h a t 

they had -- and we had t a l k e d t o them i n May, and we had t a l k e d 

t o them i n September -- I mean, August -- we determined t h a t i t 

wasn't working and we needed t o do something t o move them 

along, so we issued a Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

Q. And t h a t was issued January 25th, 2008? 

A. Yes, ma'am, t h a t ' s when i t went out. 

Q. Okay. To your knowledge, was any extension ever 

f i l e d -- extension request -- ever f i l e d f o r e i t h e r of these 

two s i t e s ? 

A. No, ma'am. 

Q. Did you a t t e n d the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference h e l d 

t o r esolve the Wiedemer w e l l s #6 and #7 h e l d on February 

27, 2008? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I d i d . 

Q. I f we could look at E x h i b i t K. Do you recognize 

t h i s document? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And are these your notes from t h a t a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference? 

A. Yes, ma'am, they are. 
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Q. Based on your notes and your r e c o l l e c t i o n from 

t h a t event, what was discussed a t t h a t conference r e g a r d i n g 

Rule 50 and McElvain's v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50? 

A. We discussed again c e s s a t i o n of use, and John was 

very f r u s t r a t e d . We went over our d e f i n i t i o n of ces s a t i o n of 

use again, and then he t a l k e d about the work t h a t they were 

doing. 

Q. Okay. And the work t h a t they were doing i n terms 

of what? 

A. Closing p i t s i n another area. 

Q. Okay. And by the "other area," you're r e f e r r i n g 

t o the L i n d r i t h area t h a t Mr. Powell was speaking of? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t was the e x p l a n a t i o n t h a t was given t o 

you as t o why they hadn't yet closed t o the two Wiedemer p i t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Was the f a c t t h a t you had p r e v i o u s l y discussed 

the D i v i s i o n ' s p o l i c y f o r i n t e r p r e t i n g the cessation of use and 

c a l c u l a t i n g the six-month time p e r i o d a t the Amacker 

conference, was t h a t r a i s e d at the subsequent conference on the 

Wiedemer s i t e s ? 

A. I'm not sure I --

Q. Did you r e i t e r a t e -- d i d you discuss w i t h them 

again at the Wiedemer conference the f a c t t h a t you had already 

put them on n o t i c e at the previous conference of what our 
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p o l i c y i s f o r i n t e r r u p t i n g the r u l e ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. Did they g i v e you any e x p l a n a t i o n as t o why no 

extension had been sought f o r e i t h e r of these w e l l s ? 

A. No, ma'am, they d i d not. 

Q. What conclusions have you drawn w i t h regard t o 

McElvain's conduct w i t h regard t o these w e l l s ? 

A. McElvain had s p e c i f i c knowledge of both Rule 50 

and the D i v i s i o n ' s s p e c i f i c p o l i c y f o r enforcement of t h a t from 

the May 30th, a l s o from the phone c a l l t o Mr. M e r r i c k and then 

again f o r the Wiedemer. I t h i n k t h a t i t was knowing and 

w i l l f u l . 

Q. Okay. Do you have any a d d i t i o n a l comments t o 

add? 

A. Yes, I do. I would l i k e t o address 

Mr. Examiner's q u e s t i o n from e a r l i e r . 

Right a f t e r the r u l e came out, t h e r e was tremendous 

com p l i c a t i o n s r e g a r d i n g how t o i n t e r p r e t the r u l e . The 

northwest operators would d r i l l a w e l l and complete one 

fo r m a t i o n and w a i t s i x months or a year or two years t o 

complete the o t h e r . 

We had t o have some way t o get ahold of t h a t . So not 

only us, but I t h i n k the f o l k s i n the southeast were having 

issues of the same. They came i n . They t r i e d t o f i n d 

something t o make something work. That's when i t was 
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determined by the D i v i s i o n t h a t i t would be s i x months a f t e r 

c e s s a t i o n of the d r i l l i n g . 

The d r i l l i n g p i t i s used normally d u r i n g the d r i l l i n g 

process, and when you set and cement your l a s t casing s t r i n g i n 

the w e l l , b a s i c a l l y your d r i l l i n g process i s complete. So then 

you u s u a l l y move o f f the d r i l l i n g r i g and move i n the 

completion u n i t . I f you complete from the d r i l l i n g r i g or move 

one i n immediately, many operators are capable of doing t h i s i n 

t h e i r six-month time l i m i t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I ' l l pass the witness. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Feldewert? 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. P e r r i n , you have a l i s t of op e r a t o r s , 

c o r r e c t ? You have access t o a l i s t of operators i n your 

d i s t r i c t o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I f you were having t h i s concern and 

you wanted t o communicate an i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of ce s s a t i o n of use 

t h a t you could apply across the board, why d i d n ' t you send out 

w r i t t e n n o t i c e t o your l i s t of operators how you were going t o 

i n t e r p r e t i t ? 

A. I wasn't the d i s t r i c t s u p e rvisor a t the time t h a t 

memo was issued. 

Q. Why haven't you done i t since? 
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A. We made a couple of v e r b a l attempts a t i t . 

Q. Okay. Now, you s a i d McElvain had — I t h i n k your 

quote was " s p e c i f i c knowledge of your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

cessa t i o n of use." 

A. Yes. 

Q. What can you p o i n t me to? 

A. Our v e r b a l c o n versations. 

Q. You're t a l k i n g then -- when were those? 

A. Excuse me? 

Q. When were those v e r b a l conversations? 

A. At the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference f o r the Amacker. 

Q. And t h a t was i n May of 2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And what's the other one? 

A. When Brandon Powell and myself c a l l e d 

Mr. Merrick 

Q 

A 

Q 

And t h a t was i n August of 2007? 

I b e l i e v e so. 

Okay. Now, I'm l o o k i n g at your notes from the 

Amacker conference which took place almost a year-and-a-half 

ago, and I don't see any i n d i c a t i o n i n th e r e t h a t you t a l k e d 

about your d e f i n i t i o n of cessation of use? 

A. Well, y o u ' l l n o t i c e i n my notes t h a t because I do 

a l o t of t a l k i n g , I do some r e a l l y poor w r i t i n g , and i t ' s not 

n e c e s s a r i l y complete. That's the reason I ask the others t o 
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take good notes. 

Q. Well, and you noted the f a c t t h a t — l e t ' s go 

through t h i s . 

You noted the f a c t t h a t Amacker w e l l -- now, we're 

t a l k i n g about the Amacker w e l l , r i g h t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. You noted t h a t f a c t t h a t the operator had l e f t 

the b asin, r i g h t ? 

MR. BROOKS: Which e x h i b i t are you l o o k i n g at? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I'm s o r r y . I'm l o o k i n g a t — 

THE WITNESS: E x h i b i t E, OCD. 

MR. FELDEWERT: You know, I can make i t easy and have 

them look a t our E x h i b i t 16, or you can look a t the D i v i s i o n ' s 

E x h i b i t E? 

THE WITNESS: E. 

MR. BROOKS: D i v i s i o n ' s E x h i b i t E doesn't seem t o be 

the same as your -- w e l l , you've got a bunch of t h i n g s 

under 16. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I t would be the second page of our 

E x h i b i t 16 -- or t h i r d page. 

MR. BROOKS: T h i r d page, yeah. The t h i r d page i s the 

same. Go ahead. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): So you are making a note 

here t h a t the previous operator l e f t the basin, r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And l e f t the basin, as I r e c a l l when I look a t 

the records, some time i n what, September of 2007? 

A. I'm not c e r t a i n , s i r . 

Q. I'm s o r r y , September o f 2006. Okay. We'll get 

to t h a t . But they l e f t the basin, and McElvain took over 

operations you note here, s p e c i f i c a l l y , January 1s t , 2007. 

A. This was i n f o r m a t i o n p r o v i d e d t o me by John. 

Q. Okay. And they took over the w e l l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And t h a t t h e r e was snow t o t a l s of 35 

inches f o r January and February; you made a s p e c i f i c note of 

th a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. That they had t r i e d t o send a t r u c k , heavy 

equipment, up t h e r e but couldn't do i t , r i g h t ? 

A. Cor r e c t . 

Q. Okay. That they had a c t u a l l y removed 320 b a r r e l s 

of o i l from t h a t p i t -- I'm s o r r y -- b a r r e l s of water -- thank 

you -- 320 b a r r e l s of water from t h a t p i t before your i n s p e c t o r 

had even been able t o get up there? 

A. That's what they r e p o r t e d , yes, s i r . 

Q. And t h a t was r u n o f f , was i t not? 

A. I'm not sure. 

Q. Okay. And t h a t they had a p p l i e d t o the D i v i s i o n 

to re-complete the well? 
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A. That was an NSL a p p l i c a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. What's the r e s t of these notes say? 

A. Let me see: The top p a r t o f the note i s what I 

take when he's t a l k i n g about communicating e x t e n u a t i n g 

circumstances. They s t a r t e d e v a l u a t i n g the w e l l i n October. 

Q. Okay. 

A. The photos were taken i n January when they took 

i t over. They d i d not remember t o f i l e f o r the p i t extension. 

They w i l l f i l e f o r the p i t extension. I can't make out the 

f i r s t one. We t a l k e d about an Agreed Compliance Order. 

Knowing and w i l l f u l was a problem. They s a i d they d i d n ' t f e e l 

i t was knowing and w i l l f u l . 

Q. Okay. So there's n o t h i n g i n here t h a t you can 

look t o t o i n d i c a t e t h a t you had a c t u a l l y had a s p e c i f i c 

d i s c u s s i o n w i t h them how about your i n t e r p r e t c essation of use? 

A. No, s i r . These are my notes of what they t o l d 

me. 

Q. Now, you s a i d t h i s other c o n v e r s a t i o n was i n 

August of 2007, which was over a year ago. Do you have notes 

of t h a t conversation? 

A. I'm sorry? 

Q. Do you have any notes of t h a t conversation? 

A. Which one? 

Q. The one f o r the Badger 14 A i n August of 2007? 

A. I have yellow t a b l e t s l i k e yours, and every time 
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I take a phone c a l l or every time I do something, I s c r i b b l e 

i t out. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And when Mr. Powell was l o o k i n g i t up, he asked, 

and we went back and f l i p p e d through a l l my notebooks, and 

ther e on 8/13, phone c a l l t o A r t Merri c k . 

Q. And t h a t ' s a l l you have? 

A. That's a l l I have i n my notes, s i r . 

Q. Okay. And i t ' s your -- you r e c a l l having a 

di s c u s s i o n about cessation of use? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And i t ' s your testimony t h a t you informed them 

s p e c i f i c a l l y t h a t c e s s a t i o n of use -- what i t meant? 

A. As d e f i n e d by the r u l e , yes. 

Q. As d e f i n e d by the r u l e ? 

A. As d e f i n e d by our p o l i c y , the D i v i s i o n p o l i c y . 

Q. Okay. Now, d i d you d r a f t the Wiedemer NOV, 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. No, s i r I d i d n ' t . 

Q. Why don't we t u r n t o t h a t , please. Let's go t o 

E x h i b i t 3 i n our notebook. This i s the Notice of V i o l a t i o n f o r 

the Wiedemer p i t s which are a t issue here today, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

Q. I t ' s got your s i g n a t u r e on i t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 
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1 Q. But someone else d r a f t e d i t ? 

2 A. Yes . 

3 Q. Who d r a f t e d i t ? 

4 A. I b e l i e v e i t was Brandon Powell. 

5 Q. I'm sorry? 

6 A. I b e l i e v e i t was Brandon Powell. 

7 Q. Okay. Did you -- was t h i s reviewed by y o u r s e l f 

8 before i t was sent out? 

9 A. Yes . 

10 Q. Okay. And d i d anybody else review i t before i t 

11 went out? 

12 A. Yes . 

13 Q. Who? 

14 A. Legal. 

15 Q. Who i n l e g a l ? 

16 A. The l e g a l s t a f f . We sent i t up t o the l e g a l 

17 s t a f f . 

18 Q. Here i n Santa Fe? 

19 A. Yes . 

20 Q. Before i t went out? 

21 A. Yes . 

22 Q. And were the people t h a t you copied here, are 

23 they the ones t h a t would have reviewed i t before i t went out? 

24 A. I'ra sorry? 

25 Q. I see you copied Mr. Sanchez, Ms. MacQuesten and 
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Ms. Altomare on t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. When we d r a f t a Notice of V i o l a t i o n i n the 

d i s t r i c t , we send i t up t o the l e g a l s t a f f i n t h i s format, and 

they review i t and send i t back, and they make any changes or 

recommendations and send i t back t o us. I t goes out from our 

o f f i c e . 

Q. Okay. Why i s t h e r e a copy t o the Bureau of Land 

Management? 

A. Because i t ' s a f e d e r a l w e l l . 

Q. This i s on f e d e r a l land? 

A. That would be the reason we copied them. That 

would be the reason t h a t we sent a copy t o the Bureau of Land 

Management. 

Q. Are these w e l l s on f e d e r a l lands? 

A. I ' d have t o look at a sundry d e t a i l . I don't 

know r i g h t o f f the top of my head. 

Q. Did anyone check the dates on t h i s Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n b efore i t went out? 

A. Check the dates f o r what? 

Q. The var i o u s dates t h a t you l i s t here s t a r t i n g 

w i t h paragraph 1? 

A. Yes. We check i t as we d r a f t i t . 

Q. Okay. Do you see here i n paragraph 1 i t says 

t h a t the p i t permits f o r the Wiedemer #7 and #6 were approved 

on January 12, 2006? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. That's not c o r r e c t , i s i t ? 

A. Okay. I don't have any way of knowing. I ' l l 

take your word f o r i t . 

Q. Were they approved on January 12, 2007? 

A. For the Wiedemer? 

Q. Uh-huh. 

A. I don't have t h a t . 

Q. Why don't you go t o E x h i b i t No. 4? 

A. E x h i b i t No. 4. 

Q. Which i s the time l i n e ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I'm going t o o b j e c t t o r e l i a n c e on 

E x h i b i t 4 as any t h i n g other than a summary by counsel. There's 

no founda t i o n f o r i t . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Let me f i n i s h . 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): Behind the time l i n e t h e r e 

i s a tab f o r --

MR. BROOKS: Sustained. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): -- the Wiedemer w e l l #6. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And do you see behind t h a t tab th e r e i s a p i t 

r e g i s t r a t i o n and c l o s u r e form. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t ' s dated -- approved January 12, 2007. 

A. Yes. I also n o t i c e d t h a t under Mr. F i e l d e r ' s 
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name, i t was submitted 11/6/06. 

Q. Rig h t . 

A. Okay. 

Q. So i n your Notice of V i o l a t i o n here t h a t you sent 

out t o the BLM and copied the s t a f f , i t says t h a t a t permits 

were approved January 12, 2006. That's a typo? I t should have 

been '07? 

A. I t could be. 

Q. I j u s t want t o make sure the r e c o r d i s c l e a r . So 

i t ' s not l i k e these p i t s have been s i t t i n g out t h e r e and 

approved since 2006. They weren't approved u n t i l 2007. 

A l l r i g h t . Secondly, paragraph 2; do you see that? 

A. No. 

Q. Of your Notice of V i o l a t i o n , second page? 

A. Let me get back t o i t . 

Q. I t says f o r the Wiedemer #7, the OCD received a 

sundry r e p o r t r e p o r t i n g t h a t the p r o d u c t i o n casing s t r i n g was 

set and cemented i n d i c a t i n g t h a t the d r i l l e r process had been 

completed on January 27, 2006, and t h a t ' s not a c o r r e c t date, 

i s i t ? I t should be 2007? 

A. Now, you're asking about which casing s t r i n g ? 

Yes. The w e l l was spud i n 2007, according t o the sundry. 

Q. Okay. So i t was not January -- the casing s t r i n g 

was not set and cemented January 27, 2006, i t was 2007. 

A. Correct, yes, s i r . 
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Q. Now, what you omit from your time l i n e here or 

the sundry r e p o r t s t h a t were submitted by McElvain i n d i c a t i n g 

when the completion operations took place; do you not? 

A. Well, as we used ce s s a t i o n of use as d e f i n e d by 

the D i v i s i o n as the casing cementing, yes, we don't i n d i c a t e 

a nything about completion. 

Q. Okay. So i f I'm j u s t the BLM l o o k i n g a t your 

time l i n e here, you get the impression, do you not, t h a t the 

use of the p i t s ceased when the casing s t r i n g was set and 

cemented because you mention n o t h i n g about the use of the p i t s 

d u r i n g the completion process. You don't even reference the 

sundry n o t i c e of completion process. 

A. No. We reference the date the casing was set and 

we see t h a t as an e r r o r date. 

Q. And you don't even note i n your time l i n e here 

t h a t you sent out t o the BLM t h a t these p i t s were closed by 

September 25th, 2007? 

A. I'm not sure we knew t h a t when we issued the 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

Q. This Notice of V i o l a t i o n was sent out January 

25, 2008. You had already approved c l o s u r e of these p i t s on 

September 25th, 2007, r i g h t ? 

A. I'm not the one t h a t approves the clo s u r e s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But your time l i n e omits the closure 

date of these p i t s ? 
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A. Yes, i t does. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Why wouldn't you put the f a c t -- why 

wouldn't you note the cl o s u r e date o f these p i t s on the time 

l i n e ? 

A. I would have t o look back and see when we d r a f t e d 

the NOV and when we sent i t t o be reviewed. 

Q. Okay. And i f I go then t o McElvain 

E x h i b i t No. 4 •-- are you there? 

A. You're t a l k i n g about your time l i n e ? 

Q. Yeah. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay. The time l i n e f o r the Notice of V i o l a t i o n , 

do you see t h a t a t the bottom? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Roberts i n s p e c t s the w e l l s on September 11th; 

do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And he then w a i t s ten days before he even 

c a l l s McElvain about h i s i n s p e c t i o n ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Do you know why? Why would you wait ten days? 

A. Well, I would -- what we t r y t o do i s get 

together and t a l k about what i t i s and the d i r e c t i o n we're 

going w i t h i t . I can't speak t o why we waited t h a t p e r i o d 

other than we were w a i t i n g on communication. 
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Q. And then once you f i n a l l y contacted McElvain, 

they then closed these p i t s , these w e l l s , w i t h i n t h r e e days; 

d i d they not? 

A. Yes, s i r , they d i d . 

Q. And then you a c t u a l l y approved the c l o s u r e of 

those p i t s on October 16th of 2007? 

A. I b e l i e v e they were approved, yes. 

Q. They were approved -- c l o s u r e w i t h o u t any 

remediation required? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So they were closed on 

September 25th, and you approved them on October 16th, 2008, 

and you don't issue a Notice of V i o l a t i o n u n t i l January 25th, 

2008? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Why d i d you wait so long i f t h i s was such a 

serious knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. I t has t o be run through the process. I t has t o 

be reviewed by l e g a l . 

Q. I f I go back t o your Notice of V i o l a t i o n , 

Mr. P e r r i n , E x h i b i t No. 3. 

A. Yes. 

Q. And I'm going t o page 2. I'm a t the l a s t 

paragraph. You say because the r u l e v i o l a t i o n s at issue are 

serious and occurred over a p e r i o d o f time, the OCD Aztec 
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D i s t r i c t O f f i c e b e l i e v e s t h a t t h i s time a $2,000 c i v i l p e n a l t y 

and a d e f i n i t e commitment t o f u t u r e c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n are 

e s s e n t i a l . Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. Now, we've already p o i n t e d out you waited 

u n t i l almost two-and-a-half months before you issued what you 

consider t o be a Not i c e of V i o l a t i o n f o r a serio u s v i o l a t i o n of 

Rule 50. 

What d e f i n i t e commitment t o f u t u r e c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n 

are e s s e n t i a l here? What c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n are you t a l k i n g 

about? 

A. Well, not t o do i t i n the f u t u r e . 

Q. Because these p i t s had alr e a d y been closed, 

r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And you're saying the c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n t h a t ' s 

necessary i s t h a t they need t o make sure they close t h e i r p i t s 

w i t h i n s i x months of the casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented? 

You don't say t h a t here, t h a t ' s why I'm t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out 

how they're supposed t o know what c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n i s 

e s s e n t i a l here. 

A. We t a l k about the c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n . I t ' s not on 

the paper; you're r i g h t . We t a l k about i t a t the 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference. 

Q. Well, the problem I have w i t h your Notice of 
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V i o l a t i o n i s t h a t somebody reading t h i s sees: A, you don't 

t e l l them t h a t the p i t s were closed i n t h i s Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n ; you don't t e l l them t h a t t h i s p i t was u t i l i z e d 

d u r i n g the completion process; and, you give the impression i n 

t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t t h i s p i t i s not yet closed and 

t h a t c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n i s e s s e n t i a l here. Do you see where I'm 

coming from? 

A. I hear what you're saying, yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, when you issued t h i s Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n f o r t h i s , what you c a l l a serious v i o l a t i o n of 

Rule 50, you s a i d at t h a t time t h a t a $2,000 c i v i l p e n a l t y was 

ap p r o p r i a t e , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I d i d . 

Q. And t h a t ' s a f t e r review by l e g a l and a f t e r review 

by your s t a f f ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. Now the D i v i s i o n i s coming before t h i s body here 

and saying, w e l l , we want a $5,000 f i n e . Can you e x p l a i n t o me 

why t h i s , what you consider t o be a $2,000 f i n e back i n January 

of 2008 has now ballooned up t o a $5,000 f i n e ? 

A. Yes, s i r , I can. 

Q. Why i s t h a t ? 

A. Through the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e -- the Agreed 

Compliance Order, we were going t o address s e v e r a l other w e l l s . 

I f you look at the d r a f t , y o u ' l l see t h a t had t a l k e d about 
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se v e r a l of the w e l l s . I f those haven't been done, w e ' l l have 

t o determine what, i f any, a c t i o n s can be taken on t h a t . We 

have the expenses of a l l our people standing here t o t e s t i f y t o 

be away from our normal j o b s . 

Q. So because McElvain d i d n ' t concede t h a t t h i s was 

a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n i n t h e i r Agreed Compliance 

Order, you've now upped the f i n e t o $5,000? 

Now, you've already t e s t i f i e d when you consider 

c e s s a t i o n of use t o have occurred here. Have other operators 

expressed t o you, Mr. P e r r i n , the l a c k of awareness about your 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cess a t i o n of use? 

A. I can't s p e c i f i c a l l y r e c a l l . 

Q. What about the Patina? Do you remember a f i n e 

f o r Patina? 

A. Not r i g h t o f fhand. 

Q. The Agreed Compliance Order f o r Patina? 

MR. FELDEWERT: May I approach? 

MR. BROOKS: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : I'm going t o hand you what 

I'm going t o mark as E x h i b i t 21, i f I may. 

MS. ALTOMARE: E x h i b i t what? 

MR. FELDEWERT: E x h i b i t 21. 

MS. ALTOMARE: There's already a 21. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I'm s o r r y . E x h i b i t 22, please. 

Thank you. 
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Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): I f you look a t t h i s Agreed 

Compliance Order, i t was entered i n t o December 31st, 2007, 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h i s i s -- w e l l , i t ' s j u s t s h o r t l y before you 

issued your Notice of V i o l a t i o n t o McElvain. 

A. Pardon? 

Q. This i s s h o r t l y before you issued your Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n t o McElvain. And your Notice o f V i o l a t i o n t o 

McElvain i s dated January 25th, 2008, okay? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Does t h a t put i t i n perspective? I f I go t o 

paragraph 16 through 19 on page 3 of 5, you note i n th e r e --

the d i v i s i o n notes i n here Agreed Compliance Order t h a t , 

"Patina i n t e r p r e t e d the cessation of use of the p i t as when the 

w e l l was completed not as when the d r i l l i n g process was 

completed." Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. They go on t o say, "Patina b e l i e v e s the 

use of the phrase 'cessation of use' i n the r u l e i s ambiguous 

and open f o r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . " 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And do you r e c a l l now t h a t they expressed t o you 

t h a t they were unaware of your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation o f 

use? 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. When t h i s operator was t e l l i n g you i n 2007 t h a t 

they were unaware of your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , d i d you undertake any 

e f f o r t s t o i n s u r e t h a t operators i n your d i s t r i c t were aware of 

your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation of use? 

A. No, s i r . Only on a case-by-case b a s i s . 

Q. So i t ' s your p o l i c y , then -- you're i n f o r m i n g 

operators i n the basin of your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n on a case-by-case 

b a s i s . 

A. Mr. Denny Fouts informs the San Juan Basin 

Working Committee as w e l l as I d i d on separate occasions. 

Q. And i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r order, Mr. P e r r i n , d i d n ' t 

you and the D i v i s i o n agree t o take out the language t h a t t h i s 

was a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n i n the conclusions of the 

O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n ? 

A. My l e g a l s t a f f i s the one t h a t makes those 

d e t e r m i n a t i o n s . 

Q. I f I look at paragraphs 20, 21 and 22, they don't 

s t a t e i n here t h a t t h a t was a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . 

Now, I want you t o take a look a t McElvain E x h i b i t 6, 

please. This i s a Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t was sent out by you 

i n February of 2007; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Do you r e c a l l t h i s ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . This i n v o l v e d where you found an open 

d r i l l i n g p i t , r i g h t , where the w e l l had been plugged? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And i n paragraph 1 t h e r e , you reference 

the sundry n o t i c e t h a t was received from the BLM and i t shows 

t h a t the p l u g g i n g of the w e l l was completed on A p r i l 11, 2006; 

do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. And i n paragraph 2 you p o i n t out t h a t the p i t has 

been open f o r more than nine months a f t e r d r i l l i n g and pl u g g i n g 

operations on t h i s l o c a t i o n have ceased; do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And so you're not r e f e r e n c i n g i n t h i s 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n when the casing s t r i n g i s set or cemented, 

are you? 

A. No. 

Q. You're n o t i n g when operations on the w e l l s i t e 

had ceased as a p o i n t f o r determining when c e s s a t i o n of use had 

occurred. 

A. The w e l l as plugged and abandoned. 

Q. Okay. Does t h a t make a d i f f e r e n c e ? 

A. Well, i t ' s -- w e l l was d r i l l e d , and i f I r e c a l l , 

i t was plugged under a d r i l l i n g r i g . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But you d i d n ' t reference when the 

casing -- you d i d n ' t s t a r t cessation of use when the casing 
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s t r i n g was cemented, because i t was a dry hole. They wouldn't 

have set casing s t r i n g . I s t h a t what you're saying? 

A. I would have t o look and see. 

Q. We don't know. But what you set out here i s t h a t 

you s a i d we are l o o k i n g a t nine months a f t e r the d r i l l i n g and 

plu g g i n g o p e r a t i o n s on t h i s l o c a t i o n had ceased, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You d i d n ' t say an y t h i n g about when a casing 

s t r i n g was set and cemented? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. The memorandum s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e s t o p l u g i t 

w i t h i n s i x months a f t e r p l u g g i n g and abandoning. 

Q. And i f I go over t o paragraph 5 on page 2 of them 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n , what you say here i s t h a t t h i s operator 

v i o l a t e d OCD Rule 50.F(1) by f a i l i n g t o p r o p e r l y close a 

d r i l l i n g p i t w i t h i n s i x months a f t e r cessation of use. 

A. Correct. 

Q. You don't say anything about casing s t r i n g being 

set and cemented? 

A. No, s i r . 

Q. And you go on here t o say on t h i s page -- i f I go 

to the second f u l l paragraph -- you say, "Because the r u l e 

v i o l a t i o n s a t issue are s e r i o u s " -- do you see t h a t paragraph? 

A. Yes, I do. 
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Q. I t ' s the same language you placed i n the McElvain 

Notice o f V i o l a t i o n . 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And because you're imposing a $1,000 f i n e . 

A. Correct. 

Q. So r a t h e r than a $2,000 f o r McElvain i n January 

of '08, and the $5,000 t h a t you're seeing now f o r t h i s 

operator, you s a i d a $1,000 f i n e was a p p r o p r i a t e where they had 

f a i l e d t o close a p i t nine months a f t e r any operatio n s at the 

w e l l s i t e had ceased? 

A. I t also says t h i s p e n a l t y i s based on one 

v i o l a t i o n of OCD Rule 50 on one w e l l . I t ' s f o r one w e l l . The 

Wiedemer #6 and #7 i s two w e l l s . And t h a t was where the $2,000 

came from o r i g i n a l l y . 

Q. I see. Okay. And then i f I go over t o the 

Agreed Compliance Order here f o r t h i s -- continue on t h i s 

e x h i b i t -- there's a March 19th, 2007, Agreed Compliance Order. 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f I go t o paragraph 4, i t has the same language 

we j u s t went through, r i g h t ? You're r e f e r e n c i n g when 

operations on the s i t e had ceased. I t doesn't say anything 

about when the casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented. 

A. Okay. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f I go t o page 2 of t h i s Agreed 

Compliance Order I'm l o o k i n g a t paragraph 3 at the bottom. 
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Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes . 

Q. This p i t hasn' t even been closed y e t , has i t ? 

A. No, i t hadn't as of the time of the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. So you were d e a l i n g here w i t h a p i t t h a t 

had been opened i n March here when t h i s was sent out, d e s p i t e 

the f a c t t h a t you had sent a Notice of V i o l a t i o n i n February? 

Compliance Order w i t h a p i t t h a t remained open d e s p i t e your 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t you had sent out a month e a r l i e r , 

r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And which had been open f o r almost a year, by 

t h i s time, a f t e r operations of the w e l l had ceased? 

A. We have our a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference and then we 

d r a f t up the Agreed Compliance Order and send i t t o Santa Fe 

f o r l e g a l t o review, so anything t h a t happens d u r i n g t h a t 

p e r i o d of time a f t e r t h a t , i t ' s hard t o get i t i n the ACO. 

operator gets a $1,000 f i n e when they are beyond any use of 

the -- the p i t i s s t i l l open beyond any use or any a c t i v i t y of 

the w e l l s i t e and they get a $1,000 f i n e , and when i t comes t o 

McElvain, who closed the p i t t h r e e days a f t e r you contacted 

A. Excuse me? 

Q. I mean, you were d e a l i n g here i n t h i s Agreed 

Q. Okay. I'm j u s t t r y i n g t o f i g u r e out why t h i s 
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them, and w i t h i n s i x months when cessation o f use had occurred 

at t h a t w e l l s i t e , you're asking f o r a $5,000 f i n e . 

Now, when t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n went out t o 

McElvain, do you r e c a l l t h e i r a t t o r n e y c o n t a c t i n g you by e-mail 

about your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n o f cessation of use? 

A. When you say " t h e i r a t t o r n e y , " you're t a l k i n g 

about Mr. Joda, yes. 

Q. Would you look at McElvain E x h i b i t 7? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Go t o the l a s t page of t h a t because we have t o go 

backwards on t h i s . 

A. Okay. 

Q. He's sending you an e-mail, and he says, 

" C h a r l i e , I've searched the website and can't f i n d the 

captioned guidance document you r e f e r r e d me t o . As a reminder, 

I'm t r y i n g t o f i n d the connection t o NMOCD's p o s i t i o n t h a t 

c e s s a t i o n of use under Rule 50.F i s the same as s e t t i n g and 

cementing the p r o d u c t i o n casing." Do you see th a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And i n response, you d i r e c t him t o the p i t 

g u i d e l i n e s ; do you not? I'm s o r r y . You d i r e c t him t o Rule 50 

f i r s t . 

A. P i t r u l e s and g u i d e l i n e s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You d i r e c t him t o the language of 

Rule 50, and then you d i r e c t him t o the language of the 
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g u i d e l i n e s . 

A. Correct. 

Q. You don't d i r e c t him t o anything e l s e . 

A. No. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . We've looked a t Rule 50, and we know 

t h a t your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n i s not w i t h i n Rule 50, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i f I go t o the g u i d e l i n e s , the next page, 

McElvain E x h i b i t No. 8? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Now, these are the g u i d e l i n e s t h a t operators are 

supposed t o be r e l y i n g upon when they're d e a l i n g w i t h p i t s i n 

New Mexico, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t ? You're sending t h i s out t o give them 

n o t i c e what you i n t e n d them t o do and what you expect them t o 

do? 

A. I s there one more e-mail t h a t should be w i t h 

t h i s ? 

Q. I don't know. I s there? I haven't seen any. I t 

d i d n ' t come i n the f i l e t h a t you a l l send t o me. Are we 

missing something out of the f i l e t h a t you sent t o me? 

A. Well, I thought my response t o him i n d i c a t e d what 

we d i d use. Maybe I'm missing something. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t ' s on the next page. Your e-mail i s 
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s p l i t i n h a l f , I t h i n k . I t ' s on page 2 a t the very top. 

Q. (By Mr. Fe l d e w e r t ) : I'm s o r r y . Yeah, you t e l l 

him i n t h i s e-mail a f t e r t h i s Wiedemer NOV had been issued 

already --

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. -- t h a t we use when the casing s t r i n g i s set and 

cemented. 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. And he says t o you, where do you get t h a t from? 

And you send him t o Rule 50, and you sent him t o the p i t 

g u i d e l i n e s . You don't send him anywhere else? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t . 

Q. Okay. I f I go t o the p i t g u i d e l i n e s , E x h i b i t 8, 

and I look a t page 4, and I look at the bottom, i t says, "A p i t 

or below-grade tank w i l l be closed w i t h i n s i x months a f t e r 

c e s sation of use." 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t doesn't say an y t h i n g about s e t t i n g the casing 

s t r i n g or cementing the casing s t r i n g or anything l i k e t h a t ? 

A. No. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What I f i n d i n t e r e s t i n g about these 

p i t g u i d e l i n e s i s look at your E x h i b i t A, your i n t e r n a l 

memorandum from Mr. Fesmire t h a t went t o the D i v i s i o n 

d i r e c t o r s . 

A. Yes. 
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Q. What's the date on t h a t ? 

A. November 12th, 2004. 

Q. Okay. These p i t g u i d e l i n e s are sent out t o the 

operators w i t h i n j u s t -- a l i t t l e l e s s -- almost two weeks 

p r i o r t o t h i s memorandum going out. 

A. Okay. 

Q. Can you e x p l a i n t o me why the d e t a i l e d 

i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t Mr. Fesmire sends out t o you a l l by v i r t u e of 

t h i s i n t e r n a l memorandum c l e a r l y d e f i n i n g when t o use -- how 

you want t o i n t e r p r e t c essation of use -- can you e x p l a i n why 

t h a t i s not i n the p i t and below-grade g u i d e l i n e s ? 

A. No, s i r , I can't. 

Q. Why d i d n ' t you pro v i d e t h i s memorandum t o 

Mr. Joda? 

A. Because I d i d n ' t have a copy of t h a t memorandum. 

Q. You di d n ' t ? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t . 

Q. Where was i t ? 

A. I t went t o the s u p e r v i s o r s . I don't know. 

Q. Had you seen t h i s memorandum before? 

A. No. 

Q. So p r i o r t o t h i s case, you, a d i s t r i c t 

s u p e r v i s o r , had never seen t h i s memorandum? 

A. Not t h a t I r e c a l l , no. 

Q. Okay. 
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A. What I d i d have i s the d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r at the 

time, who was my su p e r v i s o r , t e l l me how we were going t o 

enforce the r u l e s . 

Q. He t o l d you? 

A. Yes. 

Q. He d i d n ' t show you t h i s ? 

A. No, not t h a t .1 r e c a l l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So you're not r e l y i n g upon t h i s t o 

s u b s t a n t i a t e your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n , because you never saw t h i s . 

A. I'm doing what I was i n s t r u c t e d t o do. 

Q. Okay. Can you e x p l a i n t o me, Mr. P e r r i n , why the 

d e f i n i t i o n of ce s s a t i o n of use t h a t i s i n t h i s memorandum t h a t 

you never saw, why i t ' s not at l e a s t on the gl o s s a r y of terms 

on the D i v i s i o n ' s website? 

A. No, s i r , I can't. 

Q. Because I got E x h i b i t 9 here, McElvain E x h i b i t 9. 

This i s your g l o s s a r y of terms on the D i v i s i o n ' s website; i s i t 

not? 

A. I b e l i e v e i t i s . 

Q. Okay. Unless I'm missing something, there's no 

d e f i n i t i o n of ces s a t i o n of use i n these g l o s s a r y of terms 

t h a t ' s c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what you have p r o f f e r e d here today. 

A. That would be c o r r e c t . 

Q. Let me ask you something, Mr. P e r r i n : Take a 

look at E x h i b i t No. 1 f o r me, please. E x h i b i t No. 1 i s the 
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d e f i n i t i o n of the Rule 50.F t h a t was i n exi s t e n c e a t the time 

you issued the Wiedemer NOV. 

A. Yes. 

Q. We've been through t h i s . I t says, "a p i t " -- i t 

doesn't d i f f e r e n t i a t e between p i t s -- " s h a l l be closed w i t h i n 

s i x months of cess a t i o n of use." 

That's what operators had t o go on, c o r r e c t --

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. --- plus the g u i d e l i n e s . But now t h a t we have a 

new r u l e here i n E x h i b i t 2, we have a new P i t Rule. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And i f I'm reading t h i s c o r r e c t l y -- and 

you can c o r r e c t me i f I'm wrong -- under the new P i t Rule --

and I'm l o o k i n g a t subparagraph 7 of the c l o s u r e 

requirements --

A. Yes. 

Q. --- i t says -- I'm s o r r y -- number 6, subparagraph 

6, "An operator s h a l l close any other p e r m i t t e d temporary p i t 

w i t h i n s i x months from the date t h a t the operator releases the 

d r i l l i n g or work-over r i g . " Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes, I do. 

Q. Okay. Now, here -- t h i s r u l e a t l e a s t gives 

operators a d e f i n i t e time frame, does i t not? I mean, you're 

not using cessation of use any longer. 

A. Correct. 
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Q. Do you know why they chose not t o use ce s s a t i o n 

of use language? 

A. I wasn't i n v o l v e d i n t h a t . 

Q. Okay. I t al s o says when the operator releases 

the d r i l l i n g or work-over r i g . Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. I s the r e any d i f f e r e n c e between a 

work-over r i g and a completion r i g i n terms of t h e i r f u n c t i o n s ? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. So j u s t so we don't have any confusion i n 

the f u t u r e , i f I'm an operator out there i n the San Juan Basin, 

and I go d r i l l a w e l l , and I b r i n g i n a d r i l l i n g r i g , okay, and 

I release t h a t d r i l l i n g r i g and then I b r i n g i n a completion 

r i g , and i t does i t s work, and I release t h a t completion r i g , 

now which date commences the cess a t i o n of use? I s i t when I 

release the completion r i g , which i s l i k e a work-over r i g , or a 

d r i l l i n g r i g ? 

A. I understand i t t o be a d r i l l i n g r i g . 

Q. D r i l l i n g r i g . 

A. The d r i l l i n g process i s complete. The d r i l l i n g 

p i t i s f i n i s h e d , and t h a t ' s why many operators mark i n t h e r e , 

" w i l l use f o r completion work." 

What t h a t does i s i t allows everybody t o know what's 

going on and when Mr. Powell approves i t , he understands what's 

going on. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . So you t h i n k , as we go forw a r d now, 

at l e a s t , operators should know t h a t when they release t h a t 

d r i l l i n g r i g , t h a t ' s when the six-month p e r i o d commences? 

A. That's my understanding. 

Q. Even i f they b r i n g i n a completion r i g t o 

complete the w e l l . I s t h a t how we're i n t e r p r e t i n g i t now, 

gentlemen? 

MR. POWELL: Yes. Unless you f i l e i n f o r m a t i o n or an 

extension. 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : And when I look a t the p i t 

form here -- l e t ' s look at E x h i b i t No. 4, which i s our time 

l i n e . You can go t o the f i r s t page under the Wiedemer 

w e l l #6 tab . I'm s o r r y . Let's go t o the second t o the page --

I'm s o r r y -- f i r s t page. I'm s o r r y -- f i r s t page under the 

Wiedemer #6 tab. I check e i t h e r d r i l l i n g box f o r p i t , r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Production box, d i s p o s a l box, work-over box or 

emergency box, okay? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So there's n o t h i n g t o check i f I got 

a p i t t h a t you're using f o r completion operations? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. I don't know i f t h i s i s the form. 

MR. POWELL: That's the o l d form t h a t was used. 
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Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : I t h i n k I'm j u s t about 

f i n i s h e d , Mr. P e r r i n . Hold on one second. Okay. 

Then the only -- I j u s t want t o make sure t h a t we're 

c l e a r here and I'm not missing a n y t h i n g , because I'm hoping you 

know because you're a d i s t r i c t d i r e c t o r -- can you i d e n t i f y f o r 

me any D i v i s i o n p u b l i c a t i o n t h a t provides a c t u a l n o t i c e t o 

operators t h a t the D i v i s i o n considers c e s s a t i o n of use under 

the o l d Rule 50 t o be when the casing s t r i n g i s set and 

cemented? 

A. No, s i r , I cannot. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have. Thank you. 

MR. BROOKS: Before we go t o the Examiner's 

questions, l e t ' s take a ten-minute recess. 

[Recess taken from 4:25 p.m. t o 4:38 p.m., and 

testimony continued as f o l l o w s : ] 

MR. BROOKS: We're ready t o resume. Mr. Ezeanyim, do 

you have questions f o r the witness? 

MR. EZEANYIM: Well, I do have one comment here. 

Mr. P e r r i n , thank you f o r answering my qu e s t i o n . That was --

but I have a comment r a t h e r than a questi o n here. 

Li k e I s a i d before, when I d i d n ' t understand. Now, I 

understood the context of t h i s h e a r i n g today. I s t a t e d t h a t 

the D i v i s i o n has the a u t h o r i t y t o develop any p o l i c i e s or 

procedures t o c a r r y out t h e i r d u t i e s , you know. Like I sa i d , 

not knowing t h a t we have t h i s a lready. I d i d n ' t even know i t 
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was i n my f i l e u n t i l you mentioned i t . 

So i t came from the d i r e c t o r , and t o be able t o 

determine the d e f i n i t i o n of cessation of o p e r a t i o n , whatever 

the d e f i n i t i o n i s . But my concern here i s the way i t was 

handled. I mean, t h i s was given t o a l l the d i s t r i c t 

s u p e r v i s o r s , so I t h i n k we d i d a poor j o b of communicating t o 

the operators so t h a t they know what t h a t d e c i s i o n i s . 

Because i t was confusing t o me when I read i t , and 

then when I looked a t the other order and e x h i b i t s , then I 

begin t o wonder w i t h o u t knowing t h i s . We cou l d do t h i s . I 

want you t o understand t h a t . You understand t h a t , yes? 

But t h i s i s our duty t o communicate t h a t i n f o r m a t i o n 

t o the operator so they know what we mean. So I t h i n k -- so I 

agree w i t h what you s a i d , but you know now we can do t h a t . So 

we can even say t h a t , you know, how was t h a t defined? That 

might be once you spud i n , t h a t ' s c e s s a t i o n of o p e r a t i o n so 

they can say t h a t , but we need t o communicate t h a t t o you. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I agree. And t h a t ' s why we are here. 

MR. EZEANYIM: That's why I was asking you, 

Mr. P e r r i n , i f you can answer t h a t q u e s t i o n . Maybe somebody 

else can answer i t . Using the d e f i n i t i o n t h a t was developed 

and given t o a l l of the d i s t r i c t s u p e r v i s o r s , what has McElvain 

done i n the past? Have they used t h a t d e f i n i t i o n of once you 

set the p r o d u c t i o n casing and cement i t , s i x months from t h a t 

date, you have t o close the p i t ? Have they closed the p i t 
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w i t h i n t h a t s i x months? So t e l l me t h a t at l e a s t they know 

t h a t ' s what i t i s , j u d g i n g from what I j u s t s a i d about 

communicating the i n f o r m a t i o n t o the ope r a t o r s . 

THE WITNESS: The only way I can answer t h a t i s t o 

t e l l you t h a t we don't review f o r date each c l o s u r e . 

MR. EZEANYIM: You don't? 

THE WITNESS: Here's what I'm saying. The only time 

t h i s gets a f u l l review other than Brandon's review f o r 

approval i s when the i n s p e c t o r goes t o the f i e l d . We don't --

I haven't assigned my i n s p e c t o r s t o go t o f i e l d t o check p i t s . 

I haven't assigned my i n s p e c t o r s t o go down t o the f i e l d and 

check o p e r a t o r s . 

We're a very small s t a f f . And what we have t o do i s , 

i f we have a t e s t out somewhere, we send somebody out t o the 

t e s t and in s p e c t the area. When we f i n d something wrong, 

something t h a t ' s i n v i o l a t i o n , we f o l l o w i t up w i t h a review t o 

f i n d out what's going on. 

I t h i n k what you're asking -- what I understand you 

to be asking -- i s can we t e l l you the s t a t u s of any other of 

McElvain p i t s , not only t h e i r s , but other operators? No, I 

can't. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. So how do we then determine 

t h a t i t ' s now more than s i x months so t h a t t h i s p i t has t o be 

closed. How do you know t h a t ? You can t e l l t h a t from the 

sundry? 
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THE WITNESS: The operator puts i t on the sundry t h a t 

we set our l a s t casing s t r i n g and cemented i t on so-and-so 

date. That's something -- the way i t was developed i s t h a t i s 

something operators have t o r e p o r t . I t ' s r e q u i r e d by the r u l e . 

Every operator does i t , so i t ' s a s t e a d f a s t way f o r us t o go. 

MR. EZEANYIM: So where do you get t h a t ? Are you 

watching s i x months a f t e r t h a t ? You go back t o t h a t p a r t i c u l a r 

w e l l , and i f i t ' s not -- i f you don't have any other sundry 

saying t h i s p i t f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r w e l l has been closed, then 

you know t h a t t h e y ' r e out of compliance a f t e r you in s p e c t i t ? 

THE WITNESS: We go out and ins p e c t w e l l s . We 

ins p e c t hundreds of w e l l s t h a t don't have p i t s . So i f they go 

to an area -- i n t h i s case, he went out t o Angel Peak -- he 

inspected numerous w e l l s on t h a t day. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I understand. 

THE WITNESS: When he came up t o one t h a t had a p i t , 

he checked i n h i s computer t o see i f th e r e was a p i t date, any 

i n f o r m a t i o n . He d i d n ' t have i t , so he c a l l e d the o f f i c e , had 

the o f f i c e p u l l i t up on the imaging system and they s a i d , 

"Well, the casing was set on t h i s date." 

I t was past s i x months past t h a t date and i n 

v i o l a t i o n . 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

MR. BROOKS: I don't have any questions. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I have a couple of b r i e f f o l l o w - u p 
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questions. 

REDIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. To f o l l o w up on Hearing Examiner Ezeanyim's 

concern r e g a r d i n g whether or not operators have been informed 

on the OCD p o l i c y , do you f e e l t h a t McElvain s p e c i f i c a l l y had 

been f u l l y informed of the p o l i c y r e g a r d i n g t h i s r u l e and the 

c a l c u l a t i o n of six-month time period? 

A. Yes, ma'am, they had. 

Q. And do you f e e l t h a t they had been informed i n 

enough time t o accomplish the c l o s u r e of these two p i t s w i t h i n 

t h a t time p e r i o d or t o request an extension? 

A. Yes, ma'am, I do. 

Q. Counsel had mentioned what he termed the omission 

of c e r t a i n i n f o r m a t i o n i n the time l i n e o u t l i n e d i n the NOV f o r 

the Wiedemer p i t s , i n c l u d i n g reference t o c e r t a i n sundries 

addressing the completion of the w e l l and also reference t o 

when the p i t was u l t i m a t e l y closed. Why would t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n 

not have been i n c l u d e d i n the NOV? 

A. I t wasn't r e l e v a n t . 

Q. And why wasn't i t r e l e v a n t ? 

A. I t wasn't p a r t of the a c t i o n t o do a t the p i t . 

Q. Because i t wasn't p a r t of the assessment of 

whether or not there was a v i o l a t i o n of the p i t closure? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. He also referenced.language i n the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n r e g a r d i n g the c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n t h a t we had put i n 

the NOV s t a t i n g t h a t c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n was e s s e n t i a l . Would 

you say t h a t f o r an operator t h a t has demonstrated repeated 

d i s r e g a r d f o r Rule 50 t h a t c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n would be 

e s s e n t i a l ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And what k i n d of c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n would you 

expect i n t h a t s i t u a t i o n ? 

A. For them not t o continue doing the same t h i n g , 

c r e a t i n g the same v i o l a t i o n . 

Q. And as an example, using counsel's example of the 

Patina f i l e , I can't remember which p a r t i c u l a r -- I t h i n k i t 

was 22, the a d d i t i o n a l E x h i b i t 22 t h a t he had handed out -- at 

paragraph 17 of t h a t e x h i b i t , a f t e r having expressed t h e i r 

d i s c o n t e n t w i t h the D i v i s i o n ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50, what 

d i d they i n d i c a t e at paragraph 17? 

A. Patina's going t o change t h e i r o p e r a t i n g process 

t o operate i n accordance w i t h the r u l e s . 

Q. So d e s p i t e the f a c t t h a t they had i n t e r p r e t e d 

c e ssation of use d i f f e r e n t l y , they have expressed an i n t e n t i o n 

t h a t now they are apprised of the D i v i s i o n ' s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n t o 

change t h e i r p o l i c y ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And have -- t o your knowledge, has Patina had any 
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a d d i t i o n a l issues w i t h p i t closures? 

A. Not t o my knowledge. 

Q. Regarding the Right Angle case t h a t was c i t e d by 

counsel -- I t h i n k i t ' s E x h i b i t 6 i n t h e i r packet -- the 

references i n t h a t case measures the six-month p e r i o d from 

the -- I f o r g e t how i t ' s phrased, e x a c t l y -- but t h a t i n v o l v e d 

a p l u g g i n g o f a w e l l ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And so the measure of the six-months time p e r i o d , 

according t o D i v i s i o n p o l i c y , i s d i f f e r e n t than would be f o r a 

w e l l t h a t ' s being d r i l l e d f o r p r o d u c t i o n ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And i f I could d i r e c t you back t o E x h i b i t A a t 

question number 3, which i s the memorandum from D i r e c t o r 

Fesmire, what does t h a t memorandum i n d i c a t e w i t h regard t o 

c a l c u l a t i n g the time p e r i o d f o r plugged w e l l s ? 

A. The six-month time frame f o r c l o s i n g d r i l l i n g 

p i t s c o n s t r u c t e d a f t e r A p r i l 15, 2007, w i l l s t a r t on the date 

t h a t the l a s t casing s t r i n g i s set or the w e l l i s p r o p e r l y 

plugged and abandoned i f the w e l l i s a dry w e l l . 

Q. Okay. So i n the case of the Right Angle w e l l 

where i t was a plugged w e l l , t h a t six-month time p e r i o d would 

have been measured from the pl u g g i n g and abandonment time 

r a t h e r than the running of the casing s t r i n g since i t wasn't a 

producing w e l l ? 
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A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. With regard t o the memorandum i t s e l f , even though 

you hadn't been the person t o whom i t was d i r e c t e d and d i d n ' t 

a c t u a l l y p e r s o n a l l y review the memo, you were t r a i n e d according 

t o the p o l i c y t h a t i s embodied by t h a t memo; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And you were aware t h a t t h e r e was a D i v i s i o n - w i d e 

p o l i c y and t h a t was why you were t r a i n e d i n t h a t fashion? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And f i n a l l y , t h e r e was some reference t o some 

perceived i n c o n s i s t e n c i e s w i t h the p e n a l t y amounts t h a t were 

being sought. I s n ' t i t the case t h a t t y p i c a l l y the D i v i s i o n 

w i l l seek a lower p e n a l t y amount when they are pursuing a less 

formal compliance a c t i o n through the NOV process --

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. -- than through the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e h e a r i n g 

process? 

A. Yes, ma'am. 

Q. And t h a t ' s so t h a t -- t o f a c i l i t a t e a compromise 

and work w i t h the operators t o move the case towards 

r e s o l u t i o n ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, ma'am, i t i s . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Do you have anything, Mr. Ezeanyim? 

MR. EZEANYIM: Yes. Just one on cross-examination. 
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MR. BROOKS: Go ahead. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Based on t h a t , I want t o c l a r i f y 

c e r t a i n t h i n g s . C o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n : How do I ask t h i s 

question? Because I haven't f u l l y understood what c o r r e c t i v e 

a c t i o n i s . What i s c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n under these 

circumstances ? 

THE WITNESS: Under these circumstances, what we do 

i s we c a l l the operator i n , we say, "Look, we found t h i s 

v i o l a t i o n . T e l l us why. T e l l us how. T e l l us what you're 

going t o do about i t . " 

So we t r y t o work w i t h the operator i n the d i s t r i c t 

a l l o w i n g them t o be able t o make changes t o t h e i r plans or 

e x p l a i n t o us what happened or develop some k i n d of program t o 

prevent t h i s from o c c u r r i n g again, again, again, again. 

Q. Okay. Let's say you issued the NOV before the 

p i t i s closed. What would be the c o r r e c t i v e a ction? 

A. Well, i f the p i t hasn't been closed and we issue 

an NOV, t h a t ' s one of the requirements t h a t they come i n t o 

compliance w i t h the r u l e . They e i t h e r have t o close i t or ask 

f o r an extensi o n . An extension -- what we do w i t h an extension 

when we rece i v e i t -- because of the six-month time l i m i t and 

the exposure t o the sun, we have an i n s p e c t o r a c t u a l l y go out 

to the s i t e and look and see i f t h i s p i t i s acceptable t o be 

l e f t open. 

There's areas where the l i n e r s are t o r n . We re c e i v e 
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requests f o r extensions, we don't grant them. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

RECROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. This d i s t i n c t i o n or d i f f e r e n c e t h a t counsel's 

drawn between plugged w e l l s and w e l l s t h a t are complete i n 

terms of the time frames f o r c e s s a t i o n of use, has t h a t been 

communicated i n any fas h i o n t o o p e r a t o r s , t h a t you're aware of? 

A. Communicated v e r b a l or i n w r i t i n g ? 

Q. I n w r i t i n g . 

A. No, I can't say i t has. 

Q. Okay. Now, t h i s d e c i s i o n t o increase the f i n e 

from $2,000 t o $5,000 when McElvain would concede t o a knowing 

and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n under an Agreed Compliance Order. Who 

made t h a t d e c i s i o n t o increase the f i n e ? 

A. The D i v i s i o n . 

Q. Okay. And when you had t h i s a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r Wiedemer Notice o f V i o l a t i o n , okay? Where you 

were t a l k i n g about what c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n people c o u l d do, and 

you went through your l i t a n y of what normally happens a t these 

conferences w i t h respect t o the Wiedemer w e l l , by the time you 

issued the Notice of V i o l a t i o n , they had already been closed, 

r i g h t ? These p i t s had already been closed? 

A. Yes. The v i o l a t i o n had s t i l l --
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Q. I t had alr e a d y been determined t h a t there had 

been no t h r e a t t o the p u b l i c h e a l t h or environment i n those 

p i t s , r i g h t ? 

A. There was no c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n r e q u i r e d f o r the 

p i t . 

Q. And they communicated t o you a t t h i s 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference t h a t they were unaware of your 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cessation of use? 

A. Yes, I t h i n k Mr. Steuble expressed s e v e r a l t h i n g s 

at t h a t conference, i n c l u d i n g h i s f r u s t r a t i o n about our 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n and t h e i r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

Q. Okay. And so the only issue a t t h i s 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference t h a t you had was whether McElvain was 

going t o agree t h a t t h i s was a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . 

That was r e a l l y the only issue remaining, c o r r e c t ? 

A. I understand t h a t the Agreed Compliance Order 

in c l u d e d a reference t o the Amacker t h a t the l e g a l f o l k s d i d n ' t 

l i k e . I understand t h a t knowing and w i l l f u l was an issue, no 

matter how i t was worded, and t h a t was the reason they came 

forward. You keep r e f e r e n c i n g the $2,000. The $2,000 p e n a l t y 

i s what i s issued and what we use i n the f i e l d , $1,000 per 

v i o l a t i o n , t o help r e s o l v e t h a t and give the operator time t o 

do something e l s e . I t comes o f f the t a b l e when i t goes past 

t h a t . 

Q. I understand. 
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A. Okay. 

Q. I t can be a l i t t l e p u n i t i v e i f you don't agree t o 

a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. That's a l l I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r , Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: One moment. Yeah, one f o l l o w - u p . The 

c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n of which we speak, you had al s o spoken about 

the f a c t t h a t t h e r e had been other -- even though they weren't 

f o r m a l l y p a r t of the o r i g i n a l NOV -- t h a t t h e r e had been other 

p i t s t h a t were i n v i o l a t i o n t h a t needed t o be addressed. 

Would t h a t c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n have i n c l u d e d asking the 

operator t o close the w e l l s , l i k e the Cougar Corns t h a t were 

p a r t l y open i n v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, ma'am. 

MS. ALTOMARE: Okay. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Those have a l l been closed, haven't 

they, Mr. Perrin? 

THE WITNESS: I b e l i e v e so. 

MR. BROOKS: Are you through? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I am. 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I have no more questions. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. The witness may stand down. 

MS. ALTOMARE: At t h i s time, I would move OCD 

E x h i b i t s A through K i n t o evidence. 
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MR. BROOKS: Any o b j e c t i o n , Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, Mr. Examiner, I do i n t e n d t o 

in c l u d e the admission of our e x h i b i t a t the end. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. OCD's E x h i b i t s A through K are 

admitted. 

[ A p p l i c a n t ' s E x h i b i t s A through K adm i t t e d i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. BROOKS: Does t h a t conclude your p r e s e n t a t i o n i n 

ch i e f ? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t does. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Feldewert, you have 

49 minutes remaining. You may begin. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Mr. Examiner, would I be using my 

time i f I ask i f you would e n t e r t a i n a motion t o dismiss at 

t h i s p o i n t ? 

MR. BROOKS: You would be using your time i f you want 

to argue i t , yes. Time i s time. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Would you e n t e r t a i n a motion t o 

dismiss? 

MR. BROOKS: I ' l l l e t you use your time however you 

f e e l . 

MR. FELDEWERT: So your p o i n t i s I get 49 minutes t o 

put on our witnesses? 

MR. BROOKS: That's what I'm t e l l i n g you. 

MR. FELDEWERT: We w i l l c a l l Michael Bratcher. 
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MR. BROOKS: Mr. Bratcher? Were you sworn, 

Mr. Bratcher? 

MR. BRATCHER: Yes. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. 

MICHAEL BRATCHER 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Bratcher, you're the environmental and f i e l d 

s u p e r visor f o r D i s t r i c t I I i n A r t e s i a , are you not? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Mr. Gum i s your supervisor? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Your j o b r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s i n c l u d e environmental 

p e r m i t t i n g , i n s p e c t i o n , compliance, release, complaints, et 

cetera? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As a r e s u l t , are you f a m i l i a r w i t h 

the requirements of D i v i s i o n r u l e s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h how they have been enforced 

and i n t e r p r e t e d by the D i v i s i o n ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you o c c a s i o n a l l y work w i t h the Hobbs o f f i c e on 
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enforcement compliance matters down th e r e i n southeast New 

Mexico? 

A. Sometimes, yes. 

Q. I s n ' t i t your p o l i c y , or the p o l i c y down i n the 

southern p a r t of the State, Mr. Bratcher, t h a t i f an i n s p e c t i o n 

reveals a p o t e n t i a l v i o l a t i o n , n o r m a l l y you issue f i r s t a 

l e t t e r of v i o l a t i o n t o the operator i d e n t i f y i n g the problem you 

perceive and p r o v i d i n g the operator w i t h a p e r i o d o f time i n 

which t o c o r r e c t the v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. T y p i c a l l y , yes, t h a t ' s now we handle i t . 

Q. And i f the operator a c t u a l l y sees an a c t u a l 

n o t i c e of a p o t e n t i a l v i o l a t i o n , undertakes those c o r r e c t i v e 

measures w i t h i n the time frame set f o r t h i n your L e t t e r of 

V i o l a t i o n , t h e r e ' s u s u a l l y not a Notice o f V i o l a t i o n or 

pen a l t y , i s there? 

A. Usual l y , not. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Counselor, l e t me i n t e r r u p t . Could 

you l e t us know who t h i s person i s ? We don't know who he works 

f o r . I don't know what's going on. We haven't -- f o r the 

record, we want t o put i t i n the rec o r d . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): Mr. Bratcher, you work a t 

the O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n , r i g h t ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. Okay. And you are a f i e l d s u p e r v i s o r i n 
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D i s t r i c t I I ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You work under Tim Gum? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . I'm concerned about my time. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. I'm s o r r y . 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : Okay. So a t l e a s t i n the 

southern p a r t of the Stat e , i f you f e e l t h a t t h e r e has been a 

v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50, what you a l l do f i r s t i s you send out a 

L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n t o the operator g i v i n g them a c t u a l n o t i c e 

of how you're i n t e r p r e t i n g the r u l e and t h a t you consider i t t o 

be a v i o l a t i o n . 

A. T y p i c a l l y . We'll send out a n o t i f i c a t i o n . 

Sometimes i t can be a phone c a l l ; sometimes i t can be a v i s i t 

i n the f i e l d . Generally, i t ' s going t o be a L e t t e r of 

V i o l a t i o n . 

Q. So something i n w r i t i n g ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And then you gave them maybe a month t o comply 

w i t h your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of the r u l e , r i g h t ? 

A. Time frame w i l l vary; i t depends on the 

circumstances. 

Q. For p i t s i t ' s u s u a l l y a month, i s n ' t i t ? 

A. I t depends on circumstances, i t r e a l l y does. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f they meet your requirements 
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w i t h i n t h a t p e r i o d of time, i t ends there? There's no 

a l l e g a t i o n of a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n and no f i n e , 

g e n e r a l l y ? 

A. Generally, c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. Would you t u r n t o McElvain E x h i b i t No. 17? 

A. I s t h a t what I'm l o o k i n g at here? 

Q. Yes, i n the notebook. I'm s o r r y . Okay. 

McElvain E x h i b i t No. 17 on the f i r s t page contains a L e t t e r of 

V i o l a t i o n and LOV? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And t h i s i s t y p i c a l l y a form t h a t goes out 

from your o f f i c e ; i s i t not? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i t l i s t s the comments on the i n s p e c t i o n at 

the bottom. I n t h i s case, there was an unauthorized p i t i n the 

l o c a t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right? 

Q. And t h i s occurred -- t h i s i s a c t u a l l y i n March of 

2008? 

A. Right. 

Q. And you gave them u n t i l A p r i l 13th, 2008, t o get 

t h i s p i t closed? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, w i t h i n t h i s e x h i b i t , i t f o l l o w s 

up w i t h , i n t h i s case, because they d i d n ' t take any a c t i o n i n 
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response t o your L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n , the D i v i s i o n o f f i c e here 

i n Santa Fe issued a Notice of V i o l a t i o n on May 15, 2008; i s 

t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Ri g h t . 

Q. Okay. And t h i s i s from Mr. Sanchez here i n 

Santa Fe, r i g h t ? 

A. Corr e c t . 

Q. I'm t r y i n g t o go through t h i s q u i c k l y . I 

apologize. I f I look a t page 2 here, the f i r s t f u l l paragraph 

notes t h a t your o f f i c e had sent a L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n t o t h i s 

o perator, the one we have j u s t seen? 

A. Correct. 

Q. You gave them a due date f o r c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n . 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. But u n f o r t u n a t e l y t h i s operator d i d n ' t comply 

w i t h t h a t due date f o r c o r r e c t i v e a c t i o n , c o r r e c t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And as of the day of t h i s N otice of V i o l a t i o n , 

t h a t p i t remained open? 

A. I b e l i e v e so, yes. 

Q. And i f I look at the t h i r d paragraph, i t says, 

"Tipton knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d Rule 50.F(1) by not 

c l o s i n g the p i t and s u b m i t t i n g a C-144 clos u r e plan even a f t e r 

OCD informed T i p t o n t h a t i t had t o do so by A p r i l 13, 2008." 

Do you see t h a t ? 
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A. Uh-huh. 

Q. So we have a circumstance here where you found an 

open p i t , you t o l d the operator i t needed t o be closed, you 

gave them a p e r i o d of time i n which t o do i t , you gave them 

w r i t t e n n o t i c e , and when they f a i l e d t o do i t , o nly then d i d 

you issue a Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

A. Right. 

Q. I n t h i s case, you imposed a $1,000 c i v i l p e n a l t y . 

A. Correct. 

Q. So they had a c t u a l n o t i c e of your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

of the r u l e , t h e i r o b l i g a t i o n , and when they f a i l e d t o comply 

w i t h i t , you then issued a penalty? 

A. Right. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Excuse me. I'm confused. I can't 

take i t anymore. I'm confused. What are we t r y i n g t o do? I 

thought the witness works f o r OCD. 

MR. FELDEWERT: He does. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I s he a h o s t i l e witness? 

MR. FELDEWERT: He i s — no. I would not c a l l him a 

h o s t i l e witness. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I s t h i s a ppropriate? I don't know. 

I'm not a l e g a l person. But, you know, I j u s t -- I'm 

confused --

MR. FELDEWERT: Here's what I'm t r y i n g t o do. Let me 

put some context t o i t . 
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MR. EZEANYIM: Yeah. Please. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I've been through t h i s f i l e . 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. 

MR. FELDEWERT: They were k i n d enough t o produce 

t h e i r f i l e s t o me. 

MR. EZEANYIM: Okay. Very good, because I don't 

understand, because I'm not l e g a l , so I wanted t o know why he's 

t e s t i f y i n g . 

MR. FELDEWERT: Okay. Here's what happened. I asked 

them t o produce a l l t h e i r f i l e s i n which they have a l l e g e d t h a t 

an operator had committed a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n of 

Rule 50 and i n which they had imposed f i n e s , okay? 

Part of what they produced t o me were f i l e s from the 

southern p a r t of the State, okay? As I go through these f i l e s , 

Mr. Examiner -- and I'm going t o do i t as q u i c k l y as 

po s s i b l e what you w i l l see i s t h a t , u n l i k e what they d i d 

w i t h McElvain here i n t h i s case, they p r o v i d e n o t i c e , a c t u a l 

w r i t t e n n o t i c e , t o the operator down t h e r e how they are 

i n t e r p r e t i n g the r u l e , and they g i v e them a p e r i o d of time f o r 

a s p e c i f i c w e l l , s p e c i f i c p i t , i n which t o meet t h a t 

o b l i g a t i o n . And i f they don't do i t -- i f t h a t operator 

doesn't do i t a f t e r g i v i n g w r i t t e n a c t u a l n o t i c e of a problem, 

then they issue a Notice of V i o l a t i o n f o r a knowing and w i l l f u l 

v i o l a t i o n . 

And I would submit t o you p r o p e r l y so, because they 
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have put the operator on a c t u a l n o t i c e of how they are 

i n t e r p r e t i n g the r u l e , a c t u a l n o t i c e of a problem. They gave 

t h a t operator time t o comply, and the operator doesn't do i t . 

So then t h e r e i s a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . You have a 

c l e a r record of a c t u a l n o t i c e . That's how they do i t i n the 

southern p a r t of the State. 

I t h i n k t h a t ' s very important here because i t d i d n ' t 

happen t o McElvain. These guys are over here r e l y i n g upon what 

they r e c o l l e c t about conversations t h a t took place over a year 

ago and who s a i d what t o whom, because they have nothin g i n 

w r i t i n g t o i n d i c a t e t o McElvain -- or any other operator i n 

t h i s State -- t h a t they i n t e r p r e t c e s s a t i o n of use t o be when a 

casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented. 

And d e s p i t e t h a t , they go out and issue i t --

immediately, boom -- a Notice of V i o l a t i o n i n which they s a i d , 

"Oh, you are a bad operator. You have committed a knowing and 

w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n of our r u l e s . I t ' s c r i m i n a l i n t e n t , and 

we're going t o f i n e you $5,000." 

I don't understand t h a t p o l i c y . 

MR. BROOKS: Excuse me, Mr. Feldewert, I b e l i e v e 

you've responded. I took you o f f the cl o c k because you were 

responding t o Co-Examiner's questions, but i f you -- at t h i s 

p o i n t , I b e l i e v e you've done so. So i f you want t o argue 

f u r t h e r , I'm going t o put you back on the cl o c k . 

MR. EZEANYIM: Yeah. Because d i d you have t o 
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subpoena him? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I d i d . 

MR. EZEANYIM: You d i d have t o subpoena him. 

MR. FELDEWERT: Yeah. He had no choice. 

MR. EZEANYIM: I s the r e a c o n f l i c t of i n t e r e s t here? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, because he's under a subpoena. 

I'm s o r r y . 

MR. EZEANYIM: I t r i e d . Okay. 

MR. BROOKS: Go ahead. Back on the cloc k a t 5:01. 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : Okay. Then go t o E x h i b i t 

No. 18, Mr. Bratcher. This i s another L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n t h a t 

was sent out by your o f f i c e i n A p r i l of 2008 t o another 

operator? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i t ' s f o r a v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50, r i g h t ? They 

had f a i l e d t o close the p i t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. And you i n s t r u c t e d them t o close i t w i t h i n 

30 days, r i g h t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then i f we go t o the next page, the 

next document i n t h i s E x h i b i t 18, t h i s i s a Notice of V i o l a t i o n 

now f o r t h i s operator, about three months l a t e r , i n J u l y of 

2008? 

A. Okay. 
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Q. Issued by Mr. Sanchez i n Santa Fe? 

A. Right. 

Q. And i t p o i n t s out i n here on the second page, and 

I'm i n the -- one, two, t h r e e , f o u r -- t h i r d paragraph down: 

"Morexoco knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e d Rule 50 by not 

c l o s i n g the p i t even a f t e r being informed by OCD t o close t h a t 

p i t , " r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And i t remained open even a t the time of t h i s 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

A. I b e l i e v e so. 

Q. Okay. And you imposed on them under t h i s Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n a $1,000 f i n e , r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. One t h i n g about these p i t s t h a t you're 

b r i n g i n g up i s none of these are d r i l l i n g p i t s . 

Q. What p i t was i n v o l v e d here? 

A. These were o l d p r o d u c t i o n p i t s . 

Q. They were i n existence? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. And where do you draw t h a t from? 

A. My knowledge. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And you can also look a t API numbers and see how 

o l d the API numbers are. 

Q. Let me ask you w i t h these o l d p r o d u c t i o n p i t s , i f 
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e i t h e r of these two operators had closed the p i t a f t e r 

r e c e i v i n g your L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n , would you have imposed the 

$1,000 f i n e ? 

A. Not l i k e l y on these two. 

Q. Okay. 

A. On the f i r s t one th e r e was a c t u a l l y some concern 

over who the a c t u a l operator was. I b e l i e v e the Ti p t o n p i t --

the person we were d e a l i n g w i t h was a Zack Zimmerman. 

Q. Okay. 

A. So there was some confusion over who even 

belonged t o t h a t p i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, l e t me have you go t o 

E x h i b i t 19. This i s t o Primero Operating i n March of 2008, 

r i g h t ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. And t h i s i s three months a f t e r the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n was issued t o McElvain here. And I'm l o o k i n g at here 

down a t the bottom of t h i s page, the f i f t h paragraph, i t says., 

"The j o b r e q u i r i n g the p i t was completed i n J u l y of 2005. 

Under OCD Rule 50.F(1), the p i t should have been closed w i t h i n 

s i x month of J u l y of 2005." Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

MR. BROOKS: Where are you, Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I'm on E x h i b i t 19, second page, 

second page a t the bottom. 
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MR. BROOKS: Second page of the agreed order? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No, the f i r s t page, the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Proceed. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): And t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n 

issued by Mr. Sanchez i s saying here t h a t the p i t should have 

been closed w i t h i n s i x months of when the j o b r e q u i r i n g the p i t 

was completed. I s t h a t how you read t h a t ? 

A. Okay. Ask me t h a t again. 

Q. Down a t the bottom i t says, "Job r e q u i r i n g the 

p i t was completed i n J u l y of 2005." And Mr. Sanchez then says, 

"Under Rule 50.F(1), the p i t should have been closed w i t h i n s i x 

months of J u l y 2005." 

A. Okay. 

Q. So am I c o r r e c t he's using the date t h a t the j o b 

r e q u i r i n g the p i t was completed as a commencement date f o r the 

six-month period? 

A. Yeah. I n t h a t sense, i t doesn't r e a l l y make any 

sense t o me. I'm not sure what he was t a l k i n g about or why 

t h a t was phrased l i k e t h a t . I don't know why i t was worded 

t h a t way. 

Q. Okay. I f I go t o the next page, t h i s i s again a 

circumstance where you had, according t o the second, t h i r d , and 

f o u r t h paragraph, given a L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n t o Primero 

t e l l i n g them t o take and close t h i s p i t . As of the day of t h i s 
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Notice o f V i o l a t i o n , i t had not been closed so you used t h a t 

a c t u a l w r i t t e n n o t i c e and t h e i r f a i l u r e t o close i t f o r 

j u s t i f y i n g a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. C o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. Rig h t . I'm t r y i n g t o r e l y on memory t o remember 

the exact circumstances of these. This p a r t i c u l a r p i t , t h i s 

Primero Operating, had a c t u a l l y acquired t h i s p r o p e r t y from 

somebody e l s e . This was another -- not a normal circumstance. 

Q. Okay. 

A. As f a r as c l o s i n g the d r i l l i n g p i t , he had some 

pa r t n e r s t h a t b a i l e d out on him and l e f t him h o l d i n g the bag on 

t h i s one. 

Q. I got you. I t sounds a l o t l i k e the Amacker 

w e l l . Now, i f I go f u r t h e r on i n t h i s e x h i b i t , I get t o an 

Agreed Compliance Order. 

A. Okay. Where are you going there? 

Q. Page on through t h i s e x h i b i t . 

A. A f t e r the p i c t u r e s ? 

Q. Past the p i c t u r e s . 

A. Okay. 

Q. And the Agreed Compliance Order, May 5th, 2008. 

What I'm i n t e r e s t e d i n , Mr. Bratcher, i s paragraph 8. I t says 

"The j o b conducted by C o l l i n s r e q u i r i n g p i t c l o s u r e was 

completed i n J u l y 2005. Under OCD Rule 50.F(1), the p i t should 
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have been closed w i t h i n s i x months o f J u l y 2005." 

Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So they're using here, the D i v i s i o n 

i s , when a j o b r e q u i r i n g a p i t was completed i n order t o 

commence the s i x months c e s s a t i o n of use p e r i o d of time? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Okay. Let's go t o the next e x h i b i t . 

MR. FELDEWERT: How am I doing, Mr. Brooks? 

MR. BROOKS: Let's see. You've got 32 minutes 

remaining. 

Q. (By Mr. Fel d e w e r t ) : Mr. Bratcher, look at 

E x h i b i t 20 f o r me, please. Okay. Now, here I have a f i l e 

i n v o l v i n g two d r i l l i n g p i t s , do I not? The Red Lake 36-A State 

No. 004 d r i l l i n g p i t and the Red Lake 36-C State No. 004 

d r i l l i n g p i t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. I go up t o the next page i n t h i s e x h i b i t , and I 

have a L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n from your o f f i c e dated A p r i l 

23, 2007, r i g h t ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. And I'm reading the comments on i n s p e c t i o n s and 

i t says, " D r i l l i n g p i t open, l i n e r i n t a c t , w e l l i s i n v i o l a t i o n 

o f " -- and i t c i t e s the r u l e -- " i n t h a t completion r e p o r t s 

r e q u i r e d by t h i s r u l e have not been submitted." 
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You wanted t o see the completion r e p o r t s , r i g h t ? 

A. Ri g h t . 

Q. Your o f f i c e did? 

A. Correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So you asked them t o get those t o you 

i n A p r i l of 2007. Are you w i t h me so f a r ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Then we jump forward t o September 20th, 2007, and 

I'm going through your f i l e . 

A. Yeah. 

Q. You app a r e n t l y got your completion r e p o r t s , but 

now you have a new L e t t e r o f V i o l a t i o n of Rule 50; i s t h a t 

r i g h t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. Would you read f o r me -- w e l l , I ' l l read 

i t f o r you, and I ' l l look a t both comments on i n s p e c t i o n . And 

i t says here -- and I'm l o o k i n g a t the f i r s t one -- comments on 

i n s p e c t i o n : " D r i l l i n g p i t i s open and f u l l of s o l i d s , looks 

l i k e f l u i d s have been d r a i n e d o f f , C-144 approved f o r p i t 

c l o s u r e on 4/23/07." Then i t goes on t o say, "Well completed 

on 1/23/07." Do you see t h a t ? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. " V i o l a t i o n o f Rule 50. P i t s are t o be closed 

w i t h i n s i x months a f t e r completion of w e l l . " 

A. Right. 
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Q. I t says the same t h i n g about the other p i t . 

A. Rig h t . 

Q. These are d r i l l i n g p i t s , r i g h t ? 

A. Yep. 

Q. And what your o f f i c e down t h e r e i s communicating 

t o Edge Petroleum i n 2007 i s t h a t under your i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of 

Rule 50, these p i t s are t o be closed w i t h i n s i x months of when 

completion o p e r a t i o n s have ceased? 

A. Yeah. And t h a t ' s how t h i s i n s p e c t o r wrote t h a t 

v i o l a t i o n up. We've always used the same i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . The 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of cess a t i o n of use came about a f t e r Rule 50 was 

formed. I t came out j u s t l i k e i t was s a i d e a r l i e r . I t was a 

memorandum sent out by the D i v i s i o n d i r e c t o r t o be used by the 

d i s t r i c t s t o determine cessation of use. 

We set up a system. Mr. Harvey was the i n s p e c t o r on 

t h i s . He's been w i t h us a l i t t l e over a year now. We've got a 

method set up --

Q. Let me stop you here, only because I'm shor t of 

time. I f you want t o b r i n g t h i s out w i t h Ms. Altomare, t h a t ' s 

f i n e , but I have t o concentrate on my time. 

What's important t o me here -- and t e l l me i f I'm not 

reading t h i s c o r r e c t l y -- but t h a t Mr. Harvey here i n September 

of 2007, which i s s h o r t l y before these guys issue a Notice o f 

V i o l a t i o n t o McElvain, they're saying t h a t under t h e i r 

i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of Rule 50, the p i t s are t o be closed w i t h i n s i x 
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months of ce s s a t i o n of the completion o p e r a t i o n s , r i g h t , the 

completion of the w e l l ? 

A. And the reason i t ' s w r i t t e n up l i k e t h a t i s 

because he does the p i t i n s p e c t i o n s , and he does them o f f the 

completion r e p o r t s , and t h a t ' s j u s t how he had t h i s wrote up. 

Q. That's now --

A. He gets the completion r e p o r t s , and t h a t ' s when 

we go out t o look and see i f they've been closed or not. 

Q. I understand. 

A. That shouldn't have been w r i t t e n up t h a t way. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's go t o the next e x h i b i t , 

E x h i b i t 21. Now, t h i s i s a f i l e -- i t ' s not from your 

d i s t r i c t , i t ' s from Hobbs, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Okay. Where are you at on 21? 

Q. E x h i b i t 21, I'm l o o k i n g a t f i r s t , a L e t t e r of 

V i o l a t i o n , which always precedes a Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

A. Okay. 

Q. And I'm l o o k i n g on the second page of the L e t t e r 

of V i o l a t i o n , and y o u ' l l see at the top t h e r e , " D r i l l p i t s 

open, needs w e l l s i g n , and d r i l l p i t s closed per NMOCD Rule 50, 

f i r s t n o t i c e . " 

A. Okay. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then i f we page on through t h i s 

e x h i b i t , we get t o a Notice of V i o l a t i o n , okay? 

A. Okay. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, t h i s i s not w r i t t e n by any f i e l d 

s u p e r v i s o r . This i s w r i t t e n by Mr. Sanchez here i n Santa Fe, 

r i g h t ? 

A. I don't know. I t ' s signed by Mr. Sanchez, yeah. 

Q. He's i s s u i n g t h i s i n November of 2007. Now, t h i s 

i s j u s t two months before these guys issue t h e i r NOV t o 

McElvain, okay? I want t o walk through t h i s . 

This November 19th, 2007 Notice of V i o l a t i o n — I'm 

lo o k i n g a t paragraph 2. We're d e a l i n g w i t h d r i l l i n g p i t s , 

c o r r e c t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. And he's d e a l i n g here i n paragraphs 2 

through 6. He's d e a l i n g w i t h a s e r i e s of d r i l l i n g p i t s a t 

variou s w e l l s ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Then i n paragraph 7, and t h i s i s what's 

important, he's r e f e r e n c i n g here when the w e l l s were completed; 

do you see t h a t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. Not when a casing s t r i n g was set and cemented. 

He's r e f e r e n c i n g when the w e l l s were completed. Then i n 

paragraph 13, he notes t h a t there was a L e t t e r of V i o l a t i o n 

sent out because the p i t s were not closed under Rule 50 w i t h i n 

s i x months of cess a t i o n of a c t i v i t y ? 

A. Okay. 
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Q. Nothing mentioned about casing s t r i n g and 

cementing. And then the very next paragraph begins, "Melrose 

v i o l a t e d Rule 50.F" -- he says here, "Melrose v i o l a t e d Rule 

50.F by f a i l i n g t o close the d r i l l i n g p i t s w i t h i n s i x months of 

cessa t i o n of d r i l l i n g o p erations based on Melrose's r e p o r t e d 

completion dates f o r the w e l l s . " 

A. The completion r e p o r t s t y p i c a l l y w i l l have the 

date t h a t the p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g was set . That's a block t h a t 

you f i l l out i n the completion r e p o r t . 

Q. Uh-huh. He doesn't say anyth i n g about casing 

s t r i n g . He says when the w e l l s were completed. 

A. Well, when the w e l l i s completed i s whenever you 

set your l a s t s t r i n g o f casing. Your p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g 

completes the d r i l l i n g of t h a t w e l l . 

Q. Your w e l l i s not completed when completion 

operati o n s --

A. Your d r i l l i n g completions are f i n i s h e d when you 

set t h a t l a s t s t r i n g o f p r o d u c t i o n casing. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . But I don't see anyth i n g i n here. 

Where are you g e t t i n g t h a t from? I'm s o r r y . I j u s t have the 

b e n e f i t of the f i l e s t h a t they produced t o me. I don't see 

t h a t i n here. 

A. Okay. I t says, "Cessation of d r i l l i n g 

o p e r a t i o n s " i n the photograph t h a t you j u s t quoted. 

Q. Based on what? What he set f o r t h i n paragraph 7? 
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A. Based on Melrose's r e p o r t e d completion dates f o r 

the w e l l s . 

Q. Okay. And he r e p o r t s t h a t i n paragraph 7 on the 

previous page, doesn't he? 

A. Let's see. Yeah. But what he's t a l k i n g about 

here i s the cess a t i o n of d r i l l i n g o p e r a t i o n s . 

Q. Yeah. And he's using the completion dates f o r 

when the d r i l l i n g o perations have ceased. 

A. I t h i n k he was probably using the completion 

r e p o r t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Well, we don't know. 

A. No. 

Q. A l l we have i s what we got i n here? 

A. Right. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

A. I t h i n k i t depends on who w r i t e s t h i s s t u f f up, 

you know, j u s t l i k e what I r e f e r r e d t o w i t h my i n s p e c t o r . The 

way he wrote t h a t up, t h a t ' s probably not how he should have 

w r i t t e n i t up, but because of the way he does the i n s p e c t i o n s , 

t h a t ' s what he wrote i t on. 

Q. Now, here's my problem: The f i l e s t h a t I got 

from the D i v i s i o n , which i n c l u d e d your o f f i c e --

A. Right. 

Q. -- I d i d n ' t see any s i n g l e N otice of V i o l a t i o n 

t h a t premised any f i n d i n g of a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n on 
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the p r o p o s i t i o n t h a t c e s s a t i o n of use means when a casing 

s t r i n g i s set and cemented. 

A. Okay. I can't say t h a t we've w r i t t e n one. 

Q. You're not aware of any, are you? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. And can you p o i n t me t o any -- do you know 

of any D i v i s i o n p u b l i c a t i o n t h a t as f a r as operators i n the 

State of New Mexico, t h a t cessation of use commences -- the 

six-month p e r i o d commences when the casing s t r i n g i s set and 

cemented? 

A. Like I say, t h a t was out when the l a s t set of 

g u i d e l i n e s were put out a f t e r Rule 50 came i n t o being. 

Q. What was put out? 

A. March of 2004. 

Q. What was put out? 

A. Rule 50 --

Q. Okay. Rule 50 was put out? 

A. -- which was very c o n t r o v e r s i a l , t o say the 

l e a s t . I mean, OCD broke new ground w i t h even promulgating a 

P i t Rule. From March through November 1 s t , I t h i n k , when the 

l a s t set of g u i d e l i n e s , the g u i d e l i n e s t h a t we have now, were 

put out, t here were th r e e other sets of g u i d e l i n e s t h a t were 

put out d u r i n g t h a t time frame. 

Q. Any of them using casing s t r i n g ? 

A. Pardon me? 
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Q. Did any of them use casing s t r i n g should be set 

and cemented f o r the d e f i n i t i o n of cessation o f use? 

A. No. That was something t h a t was put out a f t e r 

t h a t l a s t set of g u i d e l i n e s -- and I'm going o f f of my memory 

here --

Q. Hold on. Hold on. Hold on. My que s t i o n i s : 

What document went out t o the operators i n the State of 

New Mexico i n f o r m i n g them t h a t c essation of use occurred when 

the d r i l l i n g s t r i n g i s set and cemented? 

A. To my knowledge, there's not a document t h a t goes 

out t o the operator. But my knowledge of the o i l f i e l d i s t h a t 

the grapevine i s a very e f f e c t i v e method of communicating i n 

the o i l f i e l d . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I've had sev e r a l conversations w i t h operators. 

This was something t h a t came up not only from the NMOGA, from 

people not only i n the i n d u s t r y but also i n the OCD, too, i s : 

What i s cess a t i o n of use? We need a d e f i n i t i o n of cessation of 

use. 

Now, should t h a t have been put i n the g u i d e l i n e s ? 

Should i t have been put i n the Rule? I t probably should have. 

I f i t would have been put i n the r u l e , we would have had t o 

r e w r i t e the r u l e . The new r u l e now has i t s p e l l e d out. 

Q. Agreed. I disagree w i t h one t h i n g : I don't 

t h i n k you would have t o r e w r i t e the r u l e . I t h i n k Mr. Ezeanyim 
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i s r i g h t . I f they had issued some k i n d o f a p u b l i c a t i o n t o the 

operators i n the State of New Mexico of how they were 

i n t e r p r e t i n g the ces s a t i o n of use, then I t h i n k they could have 

b u i l t a case f o r knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n . 

But I'm having a hard time seeing i t when there i s 

no t h i n g i n w r i t i n g , and we're r e l y i n g upon r e c o l l e c t i o n s of 

people about events t h a t occurred about a year ago. 

That's a l l the questions I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: I have a couple of questions. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. Bratcher, there's been some i n q u i r y about the 

LOV process i n the southern p a r t of the State. I s i t your 

understanding t h a t the LOV process f o r the f i r s t l e v e l of 

n o t i f y i n g operators when th e r e are suspected v i o l a t i o n s i s 

analogous t o the less -- the i n f o r m a l telephone or d i r e c t 

communication process t h a t i s used i n the D i s t r i c t I I I o f f i c e ? 

A. Yes. And we use t h a t sometimes i n l i e u of 

an LOV. 

Q. So i s i t your understanding t h a t the Aztec o f f i c e 

also uses an i n f o r m a l f i r s t step of n o t i f y i n g operators 

f r e q u e n t l y of v i o l a t i o n s p r i o r t o i s s u i n g NOVs as well? 

A. Well, I ' d hate t o say what Aztec uses because 

I'm -- I've never worked i n t h a t d i s t r i c t so I'm not r e a l 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, S u i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

141 

f a m i l i a r w i t h t h e i r methods. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I can only speak t o what we do i n D i s t r i c t I I . 

Q. Okay. Are t h e r e times where you have an operator 

who i s -- or the same operator r e p e a t e d l y coming up w i t h some 

v i o l a t i o n where you j u s t go s t r a i g h t t o an NOV or even s t r a i g h t 

t o a hearing process, and you j u s t s k i p the LOV process 

a l t o g e t h e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. So the d i s t r i c t i s not o b l i g a t e d t o s t a r t 

w i t h an LOV i n a l l s i t u a t i o n s ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. Okay. I n f a c t , the LOV, even the ones t h a t he's 

gone over, they're not r e a l l y d e t a i l e d . They're very 

s t r a i g h t f o r w a r d , bare bones d e s c r i p t i o n s of t h i s i s the 

v i o l a t i o n , t h i s i s your deadline, get i t done. 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. Are t h e r e times when i t ' s e a s i e r t o give 

n o t i c e d i r e c t l y t o an operator out i n the f i e l d or by telephone 

than by g i v i n g them a l e t t e r ? 

A. Yes, i t i s . 

Q. I f f a c t , t h e r e are some operators t h a t aren't so 

good about p i c k i n g up t h e i r m a i l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes. That's an excuse we hear a l o t . 

Q. Okay. With regard t o the NOVs, although the 
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language i s s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t i n the Notice of V i o l a t i o n s 

issued i n the southern d i s t r i c t s , even though they don't 

s p e c i f i c a l l y reference the casing s t r i n g , they do reference the 

f a i l u r e t o close w i t h i n s i x months o f ce s s a t i o n of use on these 

kinds of v i o l a t i o n s ; i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Ri g h t . 

Q. And what i s your understanding of the p o l i c y 

State-wide, i n c l u d i n g the southern d i s t r i c t s , r e g a r d i n g 

c a l c u l a t i o n of the six-month p e r i o d of time f o r cessation of 

use? 

A. The date the p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g i s s e t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. And we had t o come up w i t h something l i k e t h a t 

because we've got operators t h a t would keep the p i t open f o r 

the l i f e t i m e of the w e l l . They'd say, w e l l , we're p u t t i n g our 

pr o d u c t i o n water i n t h e r e . We're using i t f o r an evaporation 

p i t . So we're s t i l l u sing i t . So we had t o come up and 

something t h a t was a cessation o f use. 

Q. Do you o f t e n s i t i n on the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conferences t h a t occur i n your d i s t r i c t t h a t a r i s e from NOVs 

t h a t are issued? 

A. I do now, j u s t r e c e n t l y . 

Q. Okay. And has t h i s issue come up? Have p i t 

closure issues or Rule 50 issues come up a t a l l ? 

A. Yes. 
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Q. And when you discuss those issues w i t h o p erators, 

do you e x p l a i n t o them what the D i v i s i o n p o l i c y -- or d i d you 

p r i o r t o the changes t o the P i t Rule what the D i v i s i o n 

p o l i c y was f o r c a l c u l a t i n g t h a t time period? 

A. Yes. And I assumed t h a t was common knowledge i n 

the i n d u s t r y , because t h a t ' s what we've used since November 

2004 when i t came out. 

Q. And what's your impression when you would discuss 

t h a t w i t h operators d u r i n g the course of the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conferences? Did many of them seem aware of the D i v i s i o n 

p o l i c y ? 

A. Yeah. Most of them were aware of i t . 

Q. Regarding the language i n the Primero example 

t h a t was used -- I t h i n k i t was E x h i b i t 19 -- where the 

language t h a t ' s used about t h i s job r e q u i r i n g the p i t t o be 

completed, i s i t p o s s i b l e t h a t t h a t language was used because 

i t was a p i t t h a t was being reworked? 

And a c t u a l l y , i f you would look at the sundry, the 

C-103 t h a t i s f o u r pages a f t e r the Agreed Compliance Order 

under --

A. I n 19? 

Q. The Primero Tab 19. 

A. Okay. 

Q. The sundry i n f o r m a t i o n on t h e r e i n d i c a t e s t h a t 

they d r i l l e d out cement plugs. Does t h a t i n d i c a t e t h a t they 
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were reworking t h a t w e l l ? 

A. I t h i n k t h i s was probably a r e - e n t r y , I t h i n k . 

Q. So t h a t p i t wasn't -- p o s s i b l y wasn't an o r i g i n a l 

d r i l l i n g p i t , r i g h t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. So p o s s i b l y t h a t ' s not analogous t o s i t u a t i o n i n 

t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case? 

A. Right. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Well, t h i s was an 8 0 - b a r r e l p i t , too, so I mean, 

t h i s i s not t y p i c a l l y a d r i l l i n g p i t . I n southeast New Mexico, 

i t ' s 10,000 p l u s . 

Q. Okay. So c l e a r l y t h i s i s a d i s t i n c t s i t u a t i o n . 

I t ' s not a t y p i c a l d r i l l i n g p i t f o r t h i s geographic area? 

A. Right, r i g h t . 

Q. I ' d l i k e t o d i r e c t your a t t e n t i o n t o E x h i b i t G i n 

the OCD e x h i b i t s , the ACO we issued w i t h regard t o the Amacker. 

Could you t u r n t o page 2 of E x h i b i t G, a t 

paragraph -- i t ' s a c t u a l l y subparagraph H of paragraph 4 --

t h a t i n d i c a t e s t h a t the p r o d u c t i o n casing s t r i n g was set and 

cemented on June 20th, 2006, i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r ACO, r i g h t ? 

A. Right. 

Q. Would t h a t have c o n s t i t u t e d w r i t t e n n o t i c e t o the 

operator t h a t t h a t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t date f o r c a l c u l a t i n g the 

deadline i n t h i s case? 
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A. I would t h i n k so, since i t was put i n t h e r e . 

Q. P a r t i c u l a r l y g i v en the next l i n e which i n d i c a t e s 

McElvain v i o l a t e d OCD Rule 50.F(1) by f a i l i n g t o close the p i t 

w i t h i n s i x months a f t e r c e s s a t i o n of use w i t h o u t being granted 

an extension? 

A. Yes. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l I have f o r t h i s 

witness. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Mr. Ezeanyim? 

MR. EZEANYIM: I have no questions f o r t h i s witness. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. I have no questions. Redirect, 

Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: No. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. You may stand down. You may 

c a l l your next witness, Mr. Feldewert. You have 20 minutes 

remaining. 

MR. FELDEWERT: I c a l l John Steuble. 

JOHN STEUBLE 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, by whom are you employed and i n what 

capacity? 

A. I'm v i c e p r e s i d e n t of engineering f o r McElvain 
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O i l and Gas P r o p e r t i e s , I nc. 

Q. What are your r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ? 

A. I head up the d r i l l i n g p r o d u c t i o n and r e s e r v o i r 

departments f o r the company. 

Q. How long have you been w i t h McElvain O i l and Gas? 

A. About ten-and-a-half years. 

Q. How long have you t e s t i f i e d as a witness f o r the 

company i n proceedings before the D i v i s i o n Examiners? 

A. Approximately ten years. 

Q. Mr. Steuble, how long has McElvain operated w e l l s 

i n New Mexico? 

A. We c a l l him Grandpa McElvain. T. H. McElvain 

Senior f i r s t s t a r t e d d r i l l i n g w e l l s i n the San Juan Basin i n 

the 1950s. 

Q. So you've been o p e r a t i n g i n the San Juan Basin 

f o r almost 60 years? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Wasn't McElvain a l o c a l Santa Fe company f o r most 

of t h a t p e r i o d of time? 

A. Yes. T. H. McElvain used t o l i v e at 220 Shelby 

S t r e e t . Right now i t ' s an a r t g a l l e r y and a Pink Coyote 

business. 

Q. Okay. As a long-time company up the r e i n the San 

Juan Basin, you got accused i n May of 2007 of a knowing and 

w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n f o r a p i t at t h i s Amacker w e l l s i t e , c o r r e c t ? 

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS 

500 4th S t r e e t , NW, Su i t e 105, Albuquerque, NM 87102 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

147 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. There's been a l o t of d i s c u s s i o n about t h a t 

today. I t ' s a d i f f e r e n t w e l l s i t e from the one t h a t ' s a t issue 

here, the Wiedemer wells ? 

A. Correct. 

Q. But there's been a l o t of reference t o the 

Amacker. 

A. Yes. 

Q. So I ' d l i k e you t o take a look a t McElvain 

E x h i b i t 10, the time l i n e f o r the Amacker w e l l s ; i s t h a t 

c o r r e c t , Mr. Steuble? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And i s t h i s time l i n e accurate? 

A. I've reviewed i t , and i t appears t o be accurate, 

yes . 

Q. And the r e are documents s u p p o r t i n g the events on 

the time l i n e attached t o i t , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, you were -- before we get t o 

t h a t time l i n e , j u s t t o put t h i s i n p e r s p e c t i v e , i n May of 

2007, McElvain was accused of a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n 

f o r what? 

A. We were accused of a knowing and w i l l f u l 

v i o l a t i o n f o r a l l o w i n g l i q u i d s t o run over the top of the 

l i n e r , f a i l u r e t o change a w e l l s i g n , and f a i l i n g t o close a 
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p i t . 

Q. Okay. Now, were you the primary contact between 

McElvain and the D i v i s i o n over t h i s issue? 

A. Yes. 

Q. How was t h i s Amacker issue resolved? 

A. VJe went t o a meeting w i t h Mr. P e r r i n and Mr. --

the other f e l l o w -- I'm s o r r y , I'm t r y i n g t o h u r r y f o r you --

i n the Aztec o f f i c e and came up w i t h an Agreed Compliance 

Order. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did they agree t o waive the knowing 

and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. Yes, they d i d . 

Q. Did they agree t o waive the overto p p i n g of the 

l i n e r t h a t you were accused of knowing and w i l l f u l l y a l l o w i n g 

t o happen? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. But i n order t o put t h a t case behind you, 

you had t o pay a $1,000 f i n e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Okay. And t h a t was f o r f a i l u r e t o close the 

d r i l l i n g p i t w i t h i n s i x months of cessation of use, r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And now the D i v i s i o n has sat here today and s a i d 

t h a t these events i n v o l v i n g the Amacker w e l l p r o v i d e d you and 

the company w i t h a c t u a l n o t i c e , t h a t t h e i r d i s t r i c t o f f i c e 
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considered c e s s a t i o n of use t o be when a casing s t r i n g i s set 

and cemented r a t h e r than when your use of the p i t ceases. Were 

you t o l d t h i s at any time d u r i n g t h i s conference or d u r i n g 

these events? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e so. And i f I might be given a 

l i t t l e leeway here, can I e x p l a i n something? 

This was a w e l l t h a t was abandoned by F r o n t i e r 

D r i l l i n g i n September of '06, I b e l i e v e . We were p a r t n e r s w i t h 

t h a t company, and we saw p o t e n t i a l t o have Mesaverde reserves 

i n the w e l l bore. So F r o n t i e r went away; t h e r e wasn't anybody 

to plug the w e l l ; we took over o p e r a t i o n s . 

Mistakenly, I signed a Change of Operator form 

s t a r t i n g January 1 s t . I t h i n k I submitted t h a t on 

January 25th. We inspected the w e l l on January 11th and there 

was about t h i s much snow on the -- I want t o say two f e e t of 

snow on the l o c a t i o n . We couldn't get a pickup up t h e r e . 

We went ahead and took over the operatio n s t h i n k i n g 

we could make gas out of i t . A l l of the operations t h a t had 

been done by F r o n t i e r were not re p o r t e d . That was put on us t o 

do t h i s . They had stopped o p e r a t i n g since September of '06. 

We got the Notice of V i o l a t i o n i n May of '06. By the time we 

got the v i o l a t i o n , we had already emptied the p i t , but we could 

not close i t because from the time we took i t over t o May of 

'06, we had 35 inches of snow i n January and February. We had 

t h a t much more -- I don't know how much more -- i n March and 
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A p r i l and f i n a l l y c o uld get a t r u c k up i n t o the l o c a t i o n . 

MR. BROOKS: When you say May of '06, you mean May 

of '07? 

THE WITNESS: May of '07. I'm s o r r y . The whole 

p o i n t being i s you co u l d n ' t close the p i t i n t h a t time frame i f 

you wanted t o . You had too much snow. And what does snow do 

when i t melts? I t creates mud. 

So the issue of the p i t not being used was not an 

issue. We knew i t wasn't used. So I don't r e c a l l ever having 

discussions w i t h any of the OCD people r e g a r d i n g what the 

d e f i n i t i o n of cess a t i o n of use was. I t was a non-issue. What 

our concern was the breach of the p i t t h a t had f i l l e d up w i t h 

water, and we wanted t o make sure t h a t we d i d n ' t do anything 

e n v i r o n m e n t a l l y bad because we d i d n ' t know what was i n the p i t 

when we took i t over. And t h a t was our focus. 

Q. (By Mr. Fe l d e w e r t ) : Okay. 

A. I'm s o r r y i f I took too long. 

Q. Did you have an environmental s i t e assessment 

done? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. What d i d t h a t reveal? 

A. I t revealed, I t h i n k , i t was p r e t t y much clean 

and we could -- I t h i n k t h e r e have may have been one spot, but 

i t was -- b a s i c a l l y , i t was clean. 

Q. Okay. So i f I'm understanding you, what happened 
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was, an i n s p e c t o r went up t h e r e and saw the r u n o f f i n the p i t , 

and i t had run over the top of the l i n e r and t h a t i t had not 

been closed. So they sent out a Notice of V i o l a t i o n saying i t 

was a knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n , and you're s u b j e c t t o a 

f i n e ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . And what's i n t e r e s t i n g , i t took 

them 30 days t o do t h a t from the time he inspected i t t o the 

time we got the v i o l a t i o n -- approximately 30 days. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And then the way you got t h i s 

r e s o l v e d a t the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference was you accepted an 

Agreed Compliance Order. 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. Okay. And d e s p i t e the f a c t t h a t you hadn't --

you had j u s t taken over the p i t , and you couldn't even get up 

ther e before May, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Now, what at t h i s conference t h a t you 

had about the Amacker w e l l -- you mentioned t h a t c e s s a t i o n of 

use and the time frame f o r when t h a t commenced, t h a t wasn't 

even an issue? 

A. I t was not an issue, and I don't r e c a l l ever 

d i s c u s s i n g i t because from September of '06 t o May of '07 was 

w e l l beyond anybody's comprehension of ces s a t i o n of use would 

mean. I mean, i t was not being used. 

Q. They d i d t e l l you t o f i l e a p i t extension 
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request, though? 

A. We f i l e d a non-standard l o c a t i o n i n e a r l y May, I 

t h i n k , May 2nd or 4th f o r re-completion. So we wanted t o reuse 

the p i t and not have t o cover i t up and r e - d i g i t and they t o l d 

us t o f i l e an extension, which we d i d . 

Q. Okay. Did you f i l e i t the day a f t e r your 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference? 

A. Yes, we d i d . 

Q. Then you get t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h r e e 

months l a t e r ? 

A. Pardon me? 

Q. Then you get f o r t h i s Amacker w e l l a Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. No. 

Q. I'm s o r r y . The Agreed Compliance Order was then 

done three months l a t e r ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Why d i d you accept t h i s Agreed Compliance 

Order even though you f e l t l i k e you had not v i o l a t e d any of the 

D i v i s i o n r u l e s ? 

A. Well, i t j u s t wasn't worth the f i g h t . The $1,000 

would a l l o w us t o pay the f i n e and move on. We got the knowing 

and w i l l f u l removed from i t . One other t h i n g t h a t I would l i k e 

t o add i s we p a i d a f i n e f o r not c l o s i n g a p i t , but there was 

never a p i t permit issued on t h i s w e l l t h a t i s i n the p u b l i c 
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records. So we; got f i n e d f o r something t h a t wasn't even i n the 

records. Anyway, t h a t ' s a s i d e l i n e . I t wasn't worth the 

f i g h t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Then l e t ' s move t o the Wiedemer 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n . And we've already seen the p i c t u r e s of 

t h a t p i t . They c i t e you f o r f a i l u r e t o close the p i t w i t h i n 

s i x months of ce s s a t i o n of use. 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Now, i f you go t o the Wiedemer time l i n e , 

Mr. Steuble, which E x h i b i t 4 --

A. Yep. 

Q. --- i t shows the dates t h a t the completion 

operations had ceased at both of these w e l l s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. Are those dates accurate? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did McElvain use these p i t s d u r i n g the completion 

process? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Did they then close these p i t s w i t h i n s i x months 

of the time t h a t the use of these p i t s had ceased? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I'm l o o k i n g now at the time l i n e of the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n down t h e r e . When d i d Mr. Roberts i n f o r m you of h i s 

i n s p e c t i o n ? 
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A. I t h i n k he inspected i t on September 11th, and he 

c a l l e d one of our employees on September 21st. 

Q. So almost ten days l a t e r ? 

A. Ten days l a t e r . 

Q. Okay. And what d i d he ask you t o do a t t h a t 

time? 

A. He asked us t o close the p i t s , and we found some 

equipment, and they were closed over t h a t weekend, and they 

were both closed by September 25th. 

Q. So they were closed w i t h i n f o u r days of being 

contacted by the D i v i s i o n t h a t they wanted you t o immediately 

close those p i t s ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. Now, t h i s i n s p e c t i o n took place on 

September 11, 2007, okay? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were these p i t s scheduled by McElvain t o be 

closed before t h a t i n s p e c t i o n ? 

A. We had them scheduled t o be closed -- t h a t ' s i n 

August, J u l y or August, and i f -- K e l l y may remember here --

but we had a very bad August, and we had a p i t breach because 

of f l o o d i n g , and we took t h a t c o n t r a c t o r t h a t was going t o move 

out t o these Wiedemer p i t s t o r e b u i l d the breached p i t t h a t 

flooded -- because i t was along a drainage i n a county road. 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y , t h a t c o n t r a c t o r had t o go t o work f o r 
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o t h e r people. We d i d n ' t have him f o r t h a t whole p e r i o d of 

time. So we had wanted t o get them closed p r i o r t o t h a t , but 

the r a i n s t h a t came i n August circumvented t h a t . And t h a t ' s 

why we d i d n ' t get them closed. 

Q. Now, l e t me ask you t h i s : You had these p i t s 

scheduled t o be closed i n J u l y or August? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Why d i d you p i c k J u l y or August? What do you use 

f o r the schedule f o r the c l o s i n g of your p i t s ? 

A. A l o t of i t i s the weather and how dry i t i s and 

i f we can get the equipment i n t h e r e w i t h o u t t e a r i n g up more 

land than we can save. 

Q. Now, do you schedule t o make sure t h a t these p i t s 

are closed w i t h i n s i x months of cessation of use? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. And what do you use as c e s s a t i o n of use? 

A. We use the completion date. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Or d i d . 

Q. Or d i d . I s t h a t going t o change? 

A. Oh, t h a t ' l l change. 

Q. Now, you mentioned t h a t these were scheduled t o 

be closed i n August, which means t h a t they would have been 

closed before the i n s p e c t o r even got there on September 11th? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 
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Q. And what prevented t h a t was t h a t you had a r a i n 

storm i n August? 

A. We had a r a i n s t o r m i n A p r i l . August was a r a i n y 

month, and we had d r i l l e d the w e l l along a creek, and i t k i n d 

of f l a s h f l o o d e d and f l o a t e d the l i n e r out of the p i t . We had 

to address t h a t problem. 

Q. So you d i v e r t e d your crew from the Wiedemer p i t s 

down t o t h i s area where the p i t had fl o o d e d because of rain ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . P r i o r t o r e c e i p t of the Wiedemer NOV, 

Mr. Steuble, do you r e c a l l any time when the D i v i s i o n informed 

you or anyone from McElvain t h a t they considered cessation of 

use t o be when the casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented? 

A. Not p r i o r t o the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference w i t h 

the Wiedemer's. Now, a f t e r the Wiedemer's, we were very c l e a r 

on how they i n t e r p r e t e d i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And you closed these p i t s , then, 

w i t h i n t h r e e days of when they contacted you about i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Did McElvain, Mr. Steuble, who has 

operated i n t h i s State f o r 60 years, d i d they go out t h e r e and 

knowingly and w i l l f u l l y v i o l a t e Rule 50.F(1)? 

A. No. 

MR. BROOKS: You have f i v e minutes remaining. 

Q. (By Mr. Feldewert): And were these p i t s closed, 
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Mr. Steuble, w i t h i n s i x months of ce s s a t i o n of use of those 

p i t s ? 

A. Yes, they were. 

MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l the questions I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Very good. Ms. Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Thank you, Mr. Hearing Examiner. 

CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. Steuble, you attended both the Amacker and 

the Wiedemer a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conferences, c o r r e c t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You d i d not, however, p a r t i c i p a t e i n the 

telephone conference regarding the Badger w e l l ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. No. 

Q. Were you aware t h a t the Badger w e l l was i n 

v i o l a t i o n of Rule 50 f o r p i t closure? 

A. Yes. 

Q. When d i d you become aware o f t h a t ? 

A. Well, I gave Mr. P e r r i n a l i s t of our w e l l s 

d u r i n g one of our conferences, and the Badger 14 l-A was on the 

top of the l i s t . So yes, they were. 

Q. Okay. But, i n f a c t , I t h i n k the conversation 

took place p r i o r t o you g i v i n g t h a t l i s t ? Oh, no. Maybe not. 

A. No. 

Q. You're r i g h t . That occurred i n June, I t h i n k . 
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1 Could you t u r n t o E x h i b i t F, a c t u a l l y , i n our packet? That's 

2 the e-mail where you made t h a t l i s t ? 

3 A. This one. 

4 Q. E x h i b i t F i s the two-page --

5 MR. FELDEWERT: The f i r s t time he s a i d he conveyed 

6 t h a t l i s t t o them? 

7 MS . ALTOMARE: Yeah. I t was e l e c t r o n i c a l l y 

8 t r a n s m i t t e d . The f i r s t one i s the e-mail and the second i s the 

9 p i t l i s t . 

10 Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Do you recognize these 

11 documents? 

12 A. Yes . 

13 Q. And i s t h i s , i n f a c t , the e-mail where you sent 

14 the p i t s l i s t t o Mr. Roberts and Mr. Perrin? 

15 A. I b e l i e v e so. 

16 Q- So what prompted you t o send t h i s l i s t of wells ? 

17 A. We were a t the -- was i t the Amacker? I get them 

18 confused. 

19 Q. The May 30th a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference? 

20 A. On May 30th, we had the breach o f the Amacker, so 

21 we went ahead and, you know -- we knew we were going t o do 

22 something. During t h a t time, i n an e f f o r t t o work togeth e r 

23 w i t h the OCD, we discussed how we were going t o , you know --

24 may I back up a minute, j u s t quick, b r i e f l y ? 

25 Q. Well --
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A. The year before t h i s , we had a very a c t i v e 

d r i l l i n g program. The problem was i t was a very hard w i n t e r . 

Most of these p i t s are down i n the L i n d r i t h area. These w e l l s 

are at 7,000 f e e t i n e l e v a t i o n . They freeze and there's j u s t a 

very l i m i t e d time t h a t you can clean up the p i t s . So we had 

a l l these p i t s open. We knew we had these p i t s open because we 

could not get them cleaned. 

Q. The p o i n t of sending t h i s e-mail was t o address 

the f a c t t h a t you know you had open p i t s t h a t needed t o be 

closed? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And t h a t you had planned--

A. And t h a t we weren't t r y i n g t o hide anything from 

the OCD. We were t r y i n g t o show them t h a t we were w i l l i n g t o 

go complete a l l o f the p i t s t h a t we had open. 

Q. Okay. And a t the time of the a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference f o r the Amacker, you advised the OCD of the f a c t 

t h a t these p i t s e x i s t e d and t h a t you would be f o l l o w i n g up by 

sending t h i s l i s t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So you d i d , i n f a c t , discuss c l o s u r e issues and 

the f a c t t h a t you had other p i t s w i t h issues of g e t t i n g closed 

w i t h i n the six-month time frame? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So you d i d a c t u a l l y t a l k about c l o s i n g w i t h i n the 
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six-month time frame a t t h a t Amacker conference? 

A. No. A l l of these -- most of these w e l l s had 

already been completed, so i t d i d n ' t matter what date you used. 

They were w e l l over the s i x months from whatever date you used. 

Q. Okay. So even using your standard of measuring 

from date of completion --

A. Most of these were past t h a t , so I can't s i t here 

and t e l l you which ones, e x a c t l y , but -- because we d i d f i l e 

some extensions. 

Q. Okay. Now, l o o k i n g a t t h i s l i s t , the Wiedemer 

w e l l s are a c t u a l l y l i s t e d on here; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. That's c o r r e c t . 

Q. And you have them l i s t e d both as being open and 

scheduled f o r c l o s u r e . 

A. That's what I j u s t t e s t i f i e d t o . We wanted t o 

close them t h a t summer. 

Q. Okay. But you hadn't i n d i c a t e d t h a t you were 

going t o f i l e an exte n s i o n f o r e i t h e r one? 

A. We d i d n ' t t h i n k we needed t o . We thought we had 

enough time i n June and J u l y and e a r l y August t o get them done. 

U n f o r t u n a t e l y i t d i d n ' t work out t h a t way. 

Q. But you've also not made a n o t a t i o n regarding any 

a d d i t i o n a l completion processes f o r e i t h e r one of these w e l l s 

t h a t you would be c l o s i n g the p i t s a f t e r ? 

A. The w e l l s had already been completed. 
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Q. The w e l l s had already been completed? 

A. I b e l i e v e so. 

Q. Okay. 

A. They were completed i n March and A p r i l . 

Q. Okay. You may be r i g h t , but --

A. They were completed i n March and A p r i l , so s i x 

months past March we thought we could get them completed i n 

t h a t time frame i n t h a t summer. 

Q. Okay. 

A. Which goes back t o my other deal about the 

c o n t r a c t o r . 

Q. Okay. And on t h i s l i s t , the t h r e e Cougar Com 

w e l l s t h a t are l i s t e d on here --

A. Yes. 

Q. --- t h i s l i s t was compiled o r i g i n a l l y i n June of 

2007? 

A. Yes. 

Q. And as of the February 2008 conference, those 

t h r e e w e l l s were s t i l l open; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. No. Two w e l l s were open. There was one t h a t d i d 

not get — the 33 1-B was closed on 10/14/08. The 33 1-M was 

closed on 5/4/08, and the Cougar Com 4 2-A was closed on 

5/12/08. 

MR. FELDEWERT: You mean '07? 

THE WITNESS: Of '07, I'm s o r r y . 
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Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Of '07? 

A. No. Of '08. 

Q. So a l l t h r e e were indeed s t i l l open on 

February 27th of 2008? 

A. As of when? 

Q. As of -- I'm s o r r y . As of the date of the 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference on the Wiedemer wells? 

A. I ' d have t o double check t h a t , but I t h i n k so. 

Q. Okay. Did your business p a r t n e r discuss w i t h you 

the warning t h a t had been issued i n August of 2007 re g a r d i n g 

the Badger w e l l a f t e r he had the conv e r s a t i o n w i t h the d i s t r i c t 

o f f i c e ? 

A. Pardon me? 

Q. Did your business p a r t n e r discuss w i t h you the 

warning r e g a r d i n g the Badger w e l l c l o s u r e issue a f t e r the 

telephone conference w i t h Mr. Per r i n ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . I don't know. 

Q. Okay. You have i n d i c a t e d t h a t as p a r t of the 

agreement f o r the Agreed Compliance Order on the Amacker t h a t , 

quote, "The OCD agreed t o waive the knowing and w i l l f u l 

v i o l a t i o n , " but a c t u a l l y , the a c t u a l language -- i f y o u ' l l look 

t o E x h i b i t G a t page 4, paragraph 9, could you read t h a t f o r 

us, please? 

A. "McElvain disputes t h a t any knowing and w i l l f u l 

v i o l a t i o n of the O i l and Gas Act or OCD Rules occurred i n t h i s 
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matter, but agrees t h a t a f a c t f i n d e r could determine otherwise 

and s u b j e c t McElvain t o c i v i l p e n a l t i e s under NMSA 1978, 

Section" -- whatever -- " f o r f a i l u r e t o close p i t s w i t h i n s i x 

months of ces s a t i o n of use, a v i o l a t i o n of OCD Rule 50.F(1)." 

Q. So, i n f a c t , t h e r e was some concession made by 

the OCD but the r e was a concession made also by McElvain t h a t 

had t h i s gone t o heari n g , t h e r e was a p o s s i b i l i t y t h a t McElvain 

could have been found being i n knowing and w i l l f u l v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. Okay. 

Q. I f you would t u r n t o E x h i b i t B, which i s the 

Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t was issued i n the Amacker w e l l , and 

look t o paragraph -- I'm s o r r y -- page 2 a t paragraph 3. I n 

f a c t , i n the Notice of V i o l a t i o n t h a t was issued on 

May 11, 2007, i t s p e c i f i c a l l y s t a t e d t o you t h a t the p r o d u c t i o n 

casing s t r i n g was set and cemented on June 20, 2006. I t ' s 

i n d i c a t e d t o your company t h a t t h a t i s a s i g n i f i c a n t date f o r 

purposes of t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n ; i s t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Say t h a t again. 

Q. At paragraph 3, i t i n d i c a t e s the p r o d u c t i o n 

casing s t r i n g was set and cemented on June 20th, 2006? 

A. That's what i t says. 

Q. And then at paragraph 5 i t goes on -- I'm 

so r r y -- i t l a t e r goes on t o c a l c u l a t e -- t o conclude t h a t --

at paragraph 8. I apologize -- t h a t McElvain v i o l a t e d OCD 

Rule 50.F(1) by f a i l i n g t o close the p i t w i t h i n s i x months 
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a f t e r c e ssation o f use w i t h o u t being granted an extensi o n . 

A. There's n o t h i n g t o l i n k those two t o g e t h e r . I 

don't know what you're g e t t i n g a t . 

Q. But you would agree t h a t you've been n o t i f i e d at 

l e a s t -- t h a t t h a t ' s a s i g n i f i c a n t date o u t l i n e d i n the Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n ? 

A. And I t e s t i f i e d on the Amacker t h a t c essation of 

use was not an issue because no matter what date you use, we 

got the v i o l a t i o n long a f t e r any a c t i v i t y had been done because 

the previous operator abandoned the w e l l s i t e . 

Q. Ri g h t . But my p o i n t i s t h a t you were n o t i f i e d 

the p r o d u c t i o n casing s t r i n g s e t t i n g date was s i g n i f i c a n t by 

issuance of t h i s Notice of V i o l a t i o n . 

A. No. I'm n o t i f i e d t h a t the p r o d u c t i o n casing 

s t r i n g was se t . That's a l l t h a t — i t ' s a sentence. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I mean, i t ' s no d i f f e r e n t than me saying 

i t ' s 5:55. 

Q. Do you remember p a r t i c i p a t i n g i n the 

a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference f o r Wiedemer? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l the OCD r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s reminding 

you t h a t you had p r e v i o u s l y been informed of the standard f o r 

c a l c u l a t i o n of t h a t six-month p e r i o d of time? You don't 

remember them r e v i e w i n g t h a t w i t h you and asking i f you 
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remember having discussed i t a t the p r i o r a d m i n i s t r a t i v e 

conference? 

A. No. I j u s t t e s t i f i e d t h a t a f t e r the Wiedemer --

what are we c a l l i n g i t -- conference, i t was ver y c l e a r t h a t 

they used the s e t t i n g , casing s e t t i n g date, as the k i c k - o f f 

p o i n t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. P r i o r t o t h a t , we d i d n ' t know t h a t because i t was 

never an issue i n the Amacker. 

Q. You never requested any k i n d of exten s i o n f o r 

e i t h e r o f the Wiedemer w e l l s , c o r r e c t ? 

A. No. Because I --

Q. Just a yes are no? 

A. Okay. 

Q. Are you a member of the San Juan Basin Working 

Committee? Is McElvain i s member of the San Juan Basin Working 

Committee? 

A. I don't b e l i e v e so. I mean, I'm not. I don't 

know. 

Q. Okay. Have you ever attended a meeting there a t 

the San Juan Basin Working Committee? 

A. Me, p e r s o n a l l y , no. 

Q. Do you know i f anybody i n your o r g a n i z a t i o n has? 

A. I don't know. I s t h a t NMOGA? 

MR. PERRIN: Yes, i n the San Juan Basin. 
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Q. (By Ms. Altomare): Are you a member of NMOGA? 

A. Our company i s , yes. 

Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the o b l i g a t i o n s of an 

operator under Rule 12 t o f a m i l i a r i z e themselves w i t h the r u l e s 

and comply w i t h the rules? 

A. I t h i n k Mr. P e r r i n showed me t h a t , yes. I'm not 

i n t i m a t e l y f a m i l i a r w i t h i t , but I know the general idea. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've acknowledged t h a t due t o 

vari o u s circumstances, t h e r e were a s i g n i f i c a n t number of p i t s 

t h a t you had some issues w i t h c l o s i n g t h a t f e l l beyond any ki n d 

of a six-month c a l c u l a t i o n . 

I n f a c t , the OCD d i d not take enforcement a c t i o n w i t h 

regard t o any of the thr e e Cougar Com w e l l s , the Badger w e l l , 

or any of the other w e l l s t h a t were on t h a t l i s t as needing t o 

be closed and i n being i n v i o l a t i o n of t h a t six-month p e r i o d ; 

i s n ' t t h a t r i g h t ? 

A. Yes, but t h a t was our agreement. 

Q. Where i s t h a t l i s t e d i n any of the paperwork t h a t 

we've looked at today? 

A. I don't t h i n k i t i s l i s t e d . 

Q. Okay. What p a r t of the agreement was t h a t ? When 

was t h a t negotiated? 

A. I t was n e g o t i a t e d a t the May 30th. 

Q. Okay. So i n an e f f o r t t o work w i t h your company, 

the OCD was n e g o t i a t i n g and not b r i n g i n g enforcement a c t i o n f o r 
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every s i n g l e v i o l a t i o n ? 

A. I n an e f f o r t f o r both the company and the OCD t o 

work t o g e t h e r t o re s o l v e whatever issues t h a t could be out 

th e r e , yes. 

Q. So j u s t t o be c l e a r , the OCD d i d not b r i n g an 

enforcement a c t i o n f o r m a l l y a g a i n s t your company f o r every 

v i o l a t i o n t h a t e x isted? 

A. No. 

Q. Okay. 

A. But we also provided them w i t h the l i s t . 

Q. I s La r r y Van Ryan a McElvain employee? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Are you aware i f he attends the NMOGA meetings or 

the San Juan Basin? 

A. I don't know i f he does or not. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I know he attends the major NMOGA meeting, but I 

don't i f he attends the --

Q. What i s h i s p o s i t i o n w i t h your company? 

A. He's a senio r v i c e p r e s i d e n t . 

Q. Okay. So i f he were t o go t o meetings and get 

i n f o r m a t i o n , he'd be a p r e t t y r e l i a b l e resource t o get t h a t 

i n f o r m a t i o n disseminated t o your company? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You've i n d i c a t e d t h a t t h a t e-mail correspondence 
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b a s i c a l l y c o n s t i t u t e d an agreement w i t h the OCD t o work w i t h us 

so t h a t we d i d n ' t b r i n g formal compliance a c t i o n on those. Was 

there some k i n d o f agreement wherein McElvain would then be 

allowed t o keep some of those p i t s open f o r a year beyond t h a t 

date? 

A. No. 

Q. I s th e r e a reason t h a t the Cougar Com w e l l s were 

open almost t h a t long? 

A. Which Cougar Com wells? 

Q. The th r e e Cougar Com w e l l s , Cougar Com 33 1-B, 

Cougar Com 33 1-M and Cougar Com 4 2-A? 

A. Just one second here. Which well s ? 

Q. The Cougar Com 33 1-B, Cougar Com 33 1-M and 

Cougar Com 4 2-A. 

A. Well, i f you want t o go through i t , yes. I don't 

know. 

Q. What was your understanding a f t e r sending out 

t h a t l i s t of the time frame f o r g e t t i n g those p i t s closed? 

A. That we were a c t i v e l y t r y i n g t o clean up those 

p i t s and t h a t we d i d have some issues w i t h some of them. At 

our Wiedemer conference, we had a couple of them t h a t had some 

exte n u a t i n g circumstances. 

For example, one of the w e l l s s i t s r i g h t by the O j i t o 

Road. Other o p e r a t o r s , or other people, would d r i v e by t h a t 

p i t . Because i t was close t o the road, they would dump t h e i r 
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t r a s h . By t r a s h I mean o i l y substances i n the p i t . And we d i d 

not want t o clean the p i t up w i t h o u t having conferences w i t h 

your helper there concerning -- we d i d n ' t want t o contaminate 

anything even though we d i d n ' t contaminate the p i t . 

I t j u s t happened t o be the r e and water t r u c k d r i v e r s 

d r i v i n g by w i t h contaminated and I'm t a l k i n g about o i l f i e l d 

contamination, crude o i l , t h i n g s l i k e t h a t , tank bottoms --

would dump them i n t h i s p i t because i t was c l o s e . 

Now, we could have went and covered i t up and nobody 

would have known the d i f f e r e n c e . But t r y i n g t o be prudent 

operators, we went t o the OCD and s a i d , "We have t h i s problem." 

Another p i t i s owned by a p r i v a t e l a n d owner who i s 

not t o t a l l y s t a b l e --

Q. I understand t h e r e are issues. 

A. Well, t h e r e ' s issues, but you keep asking, t r y i n g 

t o p i n p o i n t --

Q. But my understanding from t h a t l i s t i s t h a t you 

had w r i t t e n out a l i s t of the ones t h a t you a n t i c i p a t e d being 

able t o close w i t h o u t an extension and i n d i c a t e d the ones you 

thought you were going t o need an extension f o r t h a t you would 

be asking f o r extensions. 

A. Yes. 

Q. Okay. The ones t h a t you d i d n ' t a n t i c i p a t e having 

t o ask f o r an extension --

A. We a n t i c i p a t e d g e t t i n g them closed i n time. 
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Q. Okay. Was i t your understanding, then, i f 

circumstances were t o change, t h a t you would take whatever 

a d d i t i o n a l a c t i o n would be necessary t o get an ext e n s i o n or to 

work w i t h the OCD t o make sure t h a t you remained i n compliance 

as much as possible? 

A. As much as p o s s i b l e , but when you r e l y on 

m u l t i p l e people t o do m u l t i p l e t h i n g s t o send a piece of paper, 

i t doesn't always happen. 

Q. Okay. 

A. I'm sure i n everybody's s i t u a t i o n t h a t happens. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the questions I 

have f o r t h i s witness. 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Ezeanyim? 

MR. EZEANYIM: Yes, I have some questions. 

MR. BROOKS: Go ahead. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

Q. Have you ever requested from the s t a t i o n t o close 

any p i t ? I mean, any p i t , not j u s t t h i s one. 

A. Sure. 

Q. You have? What year d i d you do t h a t ? 

A. I don't r e c a l l . But we --

Q. Was i t a long time ago? 

A. Well --
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Q. Last year? W i t h i n the l a s t year? Or 2004? 

A. Yeah, '04, '05 probably, I mean — 

Q. Okay. Very good. Then what i s your d e f i n i t i o n 

of c e s s a t i o n of use, the way you request the c l o s u r e of a p i t . 

What i s going through your mind when you know i t ' s time f o r you 

to go and ask f o r t h a t e x t e n s i o n . What time frame d i d you use? 

Did you use the time frame t h a t says a f t e r you set 

your p r o d u c t i o n s t r i n g and cement i t or a f t e r you complete the 

wel l ? What time frame d i d you use t o determine t h a t you are 

now going t o ask f o r an extension? 

A. I t depends on the s i t u a t i o n . I f we had a w e l l 

s i t t i n g t h e r e and we were w a i t i n g on a p i p e l i n e r i g h t - o f - w a y , 

our p o l i c y i s not t o complete a w e l l u n t i l we can t u r n i t down 

the p i p e l i n e . We have had some s i t u a t i o n s where we have w e l l s 

and p i t s s i t t i n g t h ere uncompleted w a i t i n g f o r a p i p e l i n e 

r i g h t - o f - w a y . When t h a t happens, we look from the day we move 

the d r i l l i n g r i g o f f and ask f o r an extension from t h a t time. 

Q. Okay. So your answer i s t h a t once you move out 

the r i g , you s t a r t counting? 

A. I f we haven't completed i t . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I f we have a p i p e l i n e t h e r e , and we can move on a 

completion r i g q u i c k l y , then we use the date from the day we 

q u i t u s i n g the p i t , which i s the completion date. 

Q. You see what I'm saying? That because now the r e 
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i s some t h a t s t a r t s the time t h a t says, okay, i t ' s time f o r me 

to go get an ext e n s i o n . 

A. Yeah. 

Q. So I'm t r y i n g t o see what c a l c u l a t i o n , what time, 

d i d you use t o c a l c u l a t e t h a t time? 

A. I t depends on, you know -- i t depends on what --

i f the w e l l i s being completed or the w e l l i s s i t t i n g t h e r e 

w a i t i n g on completion i s what determines i t . 

Q. And t h a t ' s what you've been using? 

A. Yes. Because we know we need the p i t t o complete 

the w e l l and i f i t ' s j u s t t h e r e , they're going t o want us t o 

clean i t up, you know, w i t h i n s i x months. 

Q. So you are saying t h a t you only heard about t h i s 

p o l i c y d u r i n g your a d m i n i s t r a t i v e conference sometime l a s t year 

or something? I s t h a t when you heard about i t the f i r s t time? 

I s t h a t when you heard about t h a t procedure t h a t --

A. That they s p e c i f i c a l l y use the casing s e t t i n g , 

yes. That was the Wiedemer one. 

Q. Just l a s t year? You j u s t heard about t h i s l a s t 

year? 

A. Yeah. 

Q. Okay. 

MR. EZEANYIM: That's a l l I have. 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Feldewert, you have f i v e minutes 

remaining. 
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1 MR. FELDEWERT: One questio n you d i d n ' t get t o f i n i s h 

2 on t h a t Cougar Com p i t . I s t h a t the one where the landowner 

3 was using i t t o water h i s l i v e s t o c k , and he d i d n ' t want you t o 

4 close i t ? 

5 THE WITNESS: Yes, t h a t ' s t r u e . 

6 MR. FELDEWERT: That's a l l I have. 

7 MR. BROOKS: Okay. Anything f u r t h e r , Ms. Altomare? 

8 MS . ALTOMARE: I don't t h i n k so. 

9 MR. BROOKS: The witness may stand down. Does t h a t 

10 conclude your case? 

11 MR. FELDEWERT: I have one more quick witness i n my 

12 f i v e minutes. 

13 MR. BROOKS: Okay. C a l l your next witness. 

14 MS . ALTOMARE: I would o b j e c t . There i s no other 

15 witness l i s t e d on your l i s t . 

16 MR. FELDEWERT: I f i l e d an amended pre- h e a r i n g 

17 statement. 

18 MS . ALTOMARE: I wasn't pr o v i d e d w i t h i t . 

19 MR. FELDEWERT: I f i l e d i t l a s t week. 

20 MS . ALTOMARE: Was a copy pr o v i d e d t o counsel? 

21 MR. FELDEWERT: To my understanding. 

22 MR. BROOKS: Who i s your witness? 

23 MR. FELDEWERT: A r t Me r r i c k . 

24 MR. BROOKS: Okay. You can c a l l him. 

25 MS . ALTOMARE: I'm going t o mai n t a i n my o b j e c t i o n f o r 
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the r e c ord. I was not p r o v i d e d w i t h the amended pre- h e a r i n g 

statement. 

MR. BROOKS: We'll o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n and you can 

continue. 

ART MERRICK 

a f t e r having been f i r s t d u l y sworn under oath, 

was questioned and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. FELDEWERT: 

Q. Mr. Mer r i c k , are you employed by McElvain O i l and 

Gas? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. How long have you been w i t h the company? 

A. Since J u l y 2006. 

Q. What are your j o b r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s ? 

A. D i s t r i c t engineer. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . As d i s t r i c t engineer, are you 

f a m i l i a r w i t h the use of the p i t s d u r i n g the completion 

process ? 

A. Yes, I am. 

Q. Just r e a l quick, how are these p i t s used when you 

are out th e r e completing a well? 

A. When we move the completion r i g on, we r i g up the 

blowout preventer. We run l i n e s t o a flow-back tank. We run 

another l i n e from the flow-back tank back t o the reserve p i t or 
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d r i l l i n g p i t . 

And then we -- i n the event t h a t d u r i n g the 

completion we take a k i c k or whatever, and t h a t flow-back tank 

f i l l s up, then we w i l l use the p i t as a backup so t h a t we don't 

s p i l l water i n something other than a tank or a l i n e d p i t . 

Q. So i s i t p a r t of the s a f e t y measures on your 

blowout preventer system? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I s i t also used when you prime the pumps f o r 

fr a c ? 

A. Yeah. As soon as the f r a c i s over -- w e l l , 

before the f r a c -- t h e y ' l l prime the pumps i n t o the p i t . As 

soon as the f r a c i s over, then they w i l l take any excess t h a t 

i s i n t h e i r pumps and tanks and put i t i n t o the p i t . 

Q. Okay. I s i t used --

A. By t h a t I mean tanks on the t r u c k . 

Q. I s i t used d u r i n g the swabbing o p e r a t i o n s , the 

p i t ? 

A. Sometimes when we're swabbing and we get a l a r g e 

amount of f l u i d , we w i l l swab i n t o the flow-back tank i n an 

e f f o r t t o get accurate measurements of what our f l u i d i s . I f 

we're having t r o u b l e g e t t i n g water t r u c k s i n , then sometimes we 

d r a i n t o t h a t p i t t o , again, prevent s p i l l i n g on the ground. 

Q. Okay. And what about when you're f i n i s h e d 

t r a c i n g , how i s the p i t used? 
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A. Just f o r the backup f o r the flow-back tank from 

swabbing. 

Q. Do they ever clean your equipment, t r a c i n g 

equipment, u s i n g the p i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Water flows i n the p i t ? 

A. I t ' s the f r a c equipment -- cleans up t h e i r 

equipment i n t o the p i t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . During the time t h a t you were 

completing these Wiedemer w e l l s j u s t the month a f t e r they were 

d r i l l e d , was McElvain using these p i t s d u r i n g the completion 

process ? 

A. Yes. There was some. There was cleanup w i t h the 

f r a c equipment. V i r t u a l l y a l l o f the swabbing went r i g h t i n t o 

the flow-back tank. I don't remember d r a i n i n g the tank i n t o 

the p i t . 

Q. Was i t p a r t of your blowout preventer s a f e t y 

system, these p i t s ? 

A. I t ' s a l l an i n t e g r a l p a r t , yes. I t ' s j u s t a l l 

p a r t of the system. 

Q. So when d i d your use of these p i t s cease a t these 

Wiedemer w e l l s ? 

A. As soon as we landed the t u b i n g and removed the 

blowout p r e v e n t e r . 

Q. Okay. So when these w e l l s were completed? 
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A. Ri g h t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And d i d you and McElvain close these 

w i t h i n s i x months of cessation of t h a t use d u r i n g the 

completion process? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Were you a t the Amacker conference? 

A. Yes, I was. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Was cess a t i o n o f use or the t r i g g e r 

date f o r the ce s s a t i o n of use w i t h i n six-months? Was t h a t an 

issue at the Amacker conference? 

A. No, i t wasn't. 

Q. Do you r e c a l l i t being discussed? 

A. No, I don't. 

Q. The t r i g g e r date? 

A. Not the t r i g g e r date. 

Q. Okay. When was the f i r s t time t h a t you heard 

from the D i v i s i o n or the d i s t r i c t t h a t the six-month p e r i o d 

commenced not a t the time when you ceased using the p i t s but 

in s t e a d when the casing s t r i n g i s set and cemented? 

A. At the Wiedemer conference. 

Q. Okay. They mentioned a conference f o r t h i s 

Badger 14 A - l . 

A. Right. 

Q. A telephone c a l l ? 

A. Rig h t . 
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Q. Now, take a look a t E x h i b i t , D i v i s i o n E x h i b i t F. 

A. I s t h a t t h i s one? 

Q. I t ' s t h a t l i s t of w e l l s . 

MR. FELDEWERT: May I approach? 

MR. BROOKS: You may. 

Q. (By Mr. Felde w e r t ) : The Badger 14 l-A t h a t they 

c a l l e d you about, t h a t was on the l i s t t h a t McElvain had 

v o l u n t a r i l y p r o v i d e d t o the D i v i s i o n d u r i n g the Amacker 

conference, c o r r e c t ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And so you had already i n d i c a t e d t o 

them t h a t t h i s Badger 14 l-A was beyond the six-month p e r i o d , 

not what date you used? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. You were t h i n k i n g your date, c e s s a t i o n of use, as 

you normally used? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Not the one they hadn't d i s c l o s e d t o you. So the 

six-month p e r i o d wasn't an issue f o r the 14 l-A? 

A. No, i t wasn't. 

Q. So you had sent t h i s l i s t and t a l k e d t o them 

about t h i s i n June of 2007? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Okay. They claimed they c a l l e d you i n August of 

2007 t o t a l k about the Badger 14 l-A f o r the f i r s t time? 
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A. Right. 

Q. Okay. I s t h a t t r ue? What was discussed d u r i n g 

t h a t s h o r t conversation i n August of 2007? 

A. What was discussed, as I remember i t , we t a l k e d 

about the l i n e r being breached, t h a t t h e r e was f l u i d above 

these t e a r s i n the l i n e r , and t h a t we needed t o get an 

environmental assessment of the area surrounding the p i t . 

A f t e r t h a t , I immediately c a l l e d our people and had 

water t r u c k s t r y i n g t o move i n there and p u l l i t down below 

t h a t t e a r , and I contacted E n v i r o t e c h , and we sampled the area 

f o r contamination. 

Q. Because they already had t h i s l i s t , and you 

already had a di s c u s s i o n about the w e l l i n June. Was t h a t a 

sho r t conversation or a long conversation on the telephone i n 

August? 

A. Short. 

MR. BROOKS: I'm s o r r y . F i n i s h your answer. 

THE WITNESS: They c a l l e d on my c e l l phone as I -was 

d r i v i n g down the s t r e e t , so no, I wouldn't say i t was. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. Your time i s up, Mr. Feldewert. 

I n f a c t , i t was a couple of minutes over but I wanted t o allow 

f o r the f a c t t h a t he had t r o u b l e f i n d i n g the e x h i b i t t h e r e . 

Do you have cross-examination of t h i s witness, Ms. 

Altomare? 

MS. ALTOMARE: Just a couple of questions. 
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CROSS-EXAMINATION 

BY MS. ALTOMARE: 

Q. Mr. Merrick, you i n d i c a t e d t h a t you were a t t h a t 

Amacker and at the Wiedemer conferences. 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Did you take notes a t e i t h e r one of those 

conferences ? 

A. No, I d i d n ' t . 

Q. So you're basing e v e r y t h i n g s t r i c t l y on your 

memory and your r e c o l l e c t i o n ? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. The Badger telephone conference, you don't r e c a l l 

being advised again about what the s p e c i f i c p o l i c y f o r 

c a l c u l a t i n g c l o s u r e was at t h a t time? 

A. No, I don't r e c a l l a n y t h i n g . 

Q. Your focus was s t r i c t l y on the l i n e r breach, not 

on the cl o s u r e issue a t t h a t p o i n t ? 

A. E x a c t l y . 

Q. Okay. But, i n f a c t , the clo s u r e deadline 

v i o l a t i o n was also an issue f o r the Badger w e l l ? 

A. We had a l l known t h a t . I t was e s t a b l i s h e d w e l l 

before t h a t time. 

Q. Okay. Were you i n v o l v e d i n the previous Notice 

of V i o l a t i o n n e g o t i a t i o n f o r the Amacker? When the Notice of 

V i o l a t i o n was issued, d i d you review i t ? 
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1 A. No, I d i d n ' t . 

2 Q. Okay. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h the San Juan Basin 

3 Working Committee? 

4 A. Yes, I am f a m i l i a r w i t h i t . 

5 Q. Have you ever attended those meetings? 

6 A. No, I haven't. 

7 Q. Are you f a m i l i a r w i t h L a r r y Van Ryan? 

8 A. Yes, I am. 

9 Q. Are you aware of whether or not he attends 

10 meetings ? 

11 A. I know he attends the major meetings of NMOGA. 

12 Q. Would you consider the San Juan Basin Working 

13 Committee a major meeting i n the San Juan Basin area? 

14 A. No. And Larry's not i n t i m a t e l y i n v o l v e d i n 

15 o p e r a t i o n s , so I don't t h i n k he would. 

16 Q. Okay. I'm t r y i n g not t o r e i t e r a t e t h i n g s t h a t 

17 I've already gone over w i t h Mr. Steuble. 

18 Do you r e c a l l a d v i s i n g -- a t the Amacker 

19 conference -- a d v i s i n g the OCD r e p r e s e n t a t i v e s t h a t McElvain 

20 had f o r g o t t e n t o apply f o r an extension f o r t h a t w e l l ? 

21 A. Yeah, I t h i n k John e s t a b l i s h e d t h a t . 

22 Q. Okay. So McElvain was p r e t t y f a m i l i a r w i t h 

23 Rule 50 as f a r as the requirements and the o p t i o n s f o r a p p l y i n g 

24 f o r extensions? 

25 A. Yes, they were. 
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Q. And an extension was never a p p l i e d f o r f o r the 

Wiedemer d e s p i t e the f a c t t h a t you r e r o u t e d resources t o 

address the L i n d r i t h area w e l l s instead? 

A. Say t h a t again. 

Q. You never a p p l i e d f o r an extension f o r the 

Wiedemer p i t s d e s p i t e the f a c t t h a t you had t o delay c l o s i n g 

those p i t s beyond what you had planned? 

A. No. They were on a schedule t o be closed, and we 

were t r y i n g t o s t i c k t o t h a t schedule. We d i d d i v e r t when the 

Cassidy No. 1 was i n the draw, and the r a i n s t o r m washed out 

t h a t p i t . And I re c e i v e d a v e r b a l approval t o close t h a t p i t 

from Brandon, and we closed i t . And when we closed i t , we had 

to do a d d i t i o n a l work t o prevent any other r u n o f f or 

catastrophe l i k e t h a t from washing out our l o c a t i o n . 

Q. Do you work p r e t t y c l o s e l y w i t h the OCD D i v i s i o n 

D i s t r i c t I I I o f f i c e i n your operations i n the San Juan Basin 

area? 

A. I guess I don't know what c l o s e l y means, but --

Q. I mean, t h a t ' s the d i s t r i c t o f f i c e t h a t you work 

through --

A. Yeah, sure. 

Q. -- f o r the San Juan Basin area operations? 

A. That's r i g h t . 

Q. Have you ever had any problems i f you have a 

question r e g a r d i n g i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of r u l e s or op e r a t i o n s , have 
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you ever had any problem g e t t i n g a response from the o f f i c e , 

going i n and asking questions? 

A. No. 

MS. ALTOMARE: I t h i n k t h a t ' s a l l the questions I 

have. 

MR. BROOKS: Mr. Ezeanyim? 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. EZEANYIM: 

Q. How long does i t take t o close a p i t ? 

A. I t a l l depends on the p i t , of course. The 

Wiedemer's, a very s h o r t p e r i o d of time. They're very small 

p i t s . These are very shallow w e l l s , so the p i t s are p r e t t y 

s m a l l . 

Q. Take, f o r example, a deeper w e l l t h a t has a very 

b i g p i t , how long would i t take t o close t h a t p i t ? How long? 

A. I t could take up t o two weeks -- two t o three 

weeks. 

Q. Okay. Now, then, another q u e s t i o n i s a f t e r you 

set your p r o d u c t i o n casing and cement i t , you d r i l l the w e l l , 

set your p r o d u c t i o n casing and cement i t . How long does i t 

take you from there u n t i l you complete and are ready t o 

produce? 

A. I f , again, i t depends on the l e n g t h , but a 

Mesaverde w e l l could take anywhere up t o 45 or even longer. 

Q. 45 days? 
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A. 4 5 days. 

Q. And i t takes about two weeks t o close a p i t ? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You see what I'm t r y i n g t o get a t here i s t h a t 

because, you know, because of the m i s i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t 

Rule 50, the o l d Rule 50, which nobody knows when ce s s a t i o n of 

use occurs, then the p o l i c y was put i n place i n 2004 by the 

D i v i s i o n d i r e c t o r t o say t h a t once you set your p r o d u c t i o n 

casing and cement i t , the time s t a r t s t i c k i n g . So t h a t ' s why 

I'm t r y i n g t o explore t h i s . 

So i t takes about 45 days t o complete the w e l l and 

ready t o produce, and i t takes two weeks. That would seem t o 

be a good time frame. So i t ' s not unreasonable t o say, w e l l , 

you set the p r o d u c t i o n casing and cemented i t , i t ' s not 

counted. Because, you see they have enough time t o do whatever 

you want t o do w i t h t h a t p i t before you close i t . 

A. But we can't always move onto the w e l l . 

Q. What? 

A. We can't always move onto the w e l l r i g h t a f t e r 

completion. 

Q. Okay. 

A. We have engineering t o do. We have --

Q. I know. 

A. And many times i t ' s c o n s i d e r a b l y longer. 

Q. Okay. I s i t going t o be more than s i x months? 
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A. I t could very w e l l be t h a t , yes. 

Q. And then you can get an ext e n s i o n . 

A. Yes. 

Q. That's, you can get an ext e n s i o n . I mean, I'm 

not saying you d i d something wrong. I'm t r y i n g t o explore f o r 

the purposes of my own consumption t o see whether we are doing 

something unreasonable. I don't t h i n k so, you know, because, I 

t h i n k , i n the d i s t r i c t , t h a t ' s why you see d i f f e r e n t d i s t r i c t s 

doing t h i n g s d i f f e r e n t l y . The D i v i s i o n d i r e c t o r s give a p o l i c y 

on how we're going t o do i t . So I'm t r y i n g t o probe whether 

t h a t ' s unreasonable or not. 

I f i t ' s not unreasonable, then everybody now w i l l use 

i t . But you heard when I mentioned t h a t we d i d n ' t communicate 

i t t o the operators as i t should be? 

A. Yes. 

Q. So i f i t ' s communicated and everybody -- you are 

s t i l l i n v i o l a t i o n , then t h a t ' s your own, you know, you know 

you are v i o l a t i n g something. But I t h i n k f o r a l l i n t e n t s and 

purposes, you could, you know, set the p r o d u c t i o n casing and 

cement i t w i t h a l l the engineering v a r i a b l e you have, you could 

close t h a t p i t , you know, mostly 60, 70, 80 percent of the 

time, close the p i t w i t h i n t h a t six-month p e r i o d . 

And t h a t ' s why i t ' s put i n t o the r u l e t h a t i f you 

coul d n ' t , then you ask f o r an extension, a six-month extension 

or even a year, depending on what you are doing. I n t h a t case, 
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they would work w i t h you? 

I t ' s j u s t a comment. I t ' s not a qu e s t i o n . I t ' s j u s t 

a comment because I'm t r y i n g t o understand t h i s so t h a t we can 

see how we approach i t . 

MR. BROOKS: I s t h a t a l l ? 

MR. EZEANYIM: Yes. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. I t h i n k t h a t w i l l conclude the 

examinations since Mr. Feldewert's time has been exhausted, and 

I have no f u r t h e r questions. 

Given the lateness of the hour, I would request the 

p a r t i e s submit c l o s i n g statements i n w r i t i n g i f you wish t o 

submit c l o s i n g statements. 

MS. ALTOMARE: The only a d d i t i o n a l t h i n g I ' d l i k e t o 

address i s I don't have any o b j e c t i o n t o any of the e x h i b i t s --

MR. BROOKS: Oh, t h a t ' s r i g h t . Mr. Feldewert hasn't 

tendered h i s e x h i b i t s . So do you wish t o tender a l l of your 

e x h i b i t s , Mr. Feldewert? 

MR. FELDEWERT: I got cut o f f . E x h i b i t s -- we would 

tender E x h i b i t s 1 through 22. 

MS. ALTOMARE: The only e x h i b i t t h a t I would o b j e c t 

to i s E x h i b i t 4 and 10 i n t h a t they are incomplete and not a 

f u l l f o u n d a t i o n has been provided. They are simply summaries 

provided by counsel. 

MR. BROOKS: Okay. I w i l l o v e r r u l e the o b j e c t i o n , 

and w e ' l l admit E x h i b i t s 1 through 22. 
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[Respondent's E x h i b i t s 1 through 22 admitted i n t o 

evidence.] 

MR. BROOKS: We w i l l take -- Case No. 14186 w i l l be 

taken under advisement. 

• * * 

G CO;,;-
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